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Except where the context requires otherwise and as otherwise set forth herein, in this report, references to the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our” refer to Silvercrest Asset 

Management Group Inc. (“Silvercrest”) and its consolidated subsidiary, Silvercrest L.P., the managing member of our operating subsidiary (“Silvercrest L.P.” or “SLP”). SLP 
is a limited partnership whose existing limited partners are referred to in this report as “principals”. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This report contains, and from time to time our management may make, forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended. For those statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements 
contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. These statements are 
only predictions based on our current expectations and projections about future events. Important factors that could cause actual results, level of activity, performance or 
achievements to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements include but are not limited to: incurrence of net losses, fluctuations in quarterly and 
annual results, adverse economic or market conditions, our expectations with respect to future levels of assets under management, inflows and outflows, our ability to retain 
clients from whom we derive a substantial portion of our assets under management, our ability to maintain our fee structure, our particular choices with regard to investment 
strategies employed, our ability to hire and retain qualified investment professionals, the cost of complying with current and future regulation coupled with the cost of defending 
ourselves from related investigations or litigation, failure of our operational safeguards against breaches in data security, privacy, conflicts of interest or employee misconduct, 
our expected tax rate, and our expectations with respect to deferred tax assets,  adverse economic or market conditions, including the continued adverse effects of the 
coronavirus pandemic, incurrence of net losses, adverse effects of management focusing on implementation of a growth strategy, failure to develop and maintain the Silvercrest 
brand and other factors disclosed under “Risk Factors” in this annual report on Form 10-K.  We undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking 
statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.

Summary Risk Factors 
Our business is subject to risks of which you should be aware before making an investment decision.  The risks described below are a summary of the principal risks associated 
with an investment in us and are not the only risks we face.  These and other risks are discussed more fully in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Part II, Item IA and 
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (our “Risk Factors”).  Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial 
may also adversely affect our business and the trading price of our securities, particularly in light of the fast-changing nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, containment 
measures, the potential for future waves of outbreaks and the related impacts to economic and operating conditions. 
 
Risks Related to our Investment Performance and the Financial Markets

•Volatile market conditions could adversely affect our business in many ways, including by reducing the value of our assets under management or causing clients 
to withdraw funds, either of which could materially reduce our revenues, adversely affect our financial condition and earnings, and expose us to litigation risks. 
•We may not be able to maintain our current fee structure as a result of poor investment performance, competitive pressures or as a result of changes in our 
business mix, which could have a material adverse effect on our profit margins and results of operations.
•The historical returns of our existing investment strategies may not be indicative of their future results or of the future results of investment strategies we may 
develop in the future.
•We derive a substantial portion of our revenues from a limited number of our strategies and clients and contracts and relations that may be terminated on no 
notice.
•The long-only, equity investment focus of the majority of our strategies exposes us to greater risk than certain of our competitors whose investment strategies may 
also include non-equity securities or hedged positions.
•The performance of our investment strategies or the growth of our assets under management may be constrained by the unavailability of appropriate investment 
opportunities.
•Our investment strategies may not obtain attractive returns in the short-term or during certain market periods.
•Our investment process requires us to conduct extensive fundamental research on any company before investing in it, which may result in missed investment 
opportunities and reduce the performance of our investment strategies.
•Our International Equity Strategies invest principally in the securities of non-U.S. companies, which involve foreign currency exchange, tax, political, social and 
economic uncertainties and risks.

 



  

Risks Related to our Key Professionals
•The loss of key investment professionals or members of our senior management team could have a material adverse effect on our business.
•Competition for qualified investment, management and marketing and client service professionals is intense and we may fail to successfully attract and retain 
qualified personnel in the future.

Risks Related to our Growth
•Our efforts to establish and integrate new investment teams, strategies, or enter into new lines of business, may be unsuccessful and could negatively impact our 
results of operations and our reputation and our ability to grow assets under management.
•The due diligence process that we undertake in connection with strategic investments or acquisitions or entry into joint ventures may not reveal all facts that may 
be relevant in connection with an investment, which could subject us to unknown liabilities.
•The significant growth we have experienced may be difficult to sustain.

Risks Related to our Structure
•The rights of holders of Class B units of Silvercrest L.P. may give rise to conflicts of interest.
•We provide a broad range of services to the Silvercrest Funds and family office services, which may expose us to liability.
•Our ability to pay taxes and expenses, including payments under the tax receivable agreement, may be limited by our structure.
•We will be required to pay principals for certain tax benefits we may claim, and the amounts we may pay could be significant.
•In certain cases, payments under the tax receivable agreement to our principals may be accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits we realize in 
respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement.
•If we were deemed an investment company under the Investment Company Act as a result of our ownership interest in Silvercrest L.P., applicable restrictions 
could make it impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risk Related Generally to the Regulatory Environment in Which we Operate
•We are subject to extensive and rapidly changing regulation that imposes numerous obligations on our business.
•We could be subject to regulatory investigations, which could harm our reputation and cause our funds to lose existing investors or us to lose existing accounts or 
fail to attract new investors or accounts.
•Failure to comply with “pay to play” regulations implemented by the SEC and certain states, and changes to the “pay to play” regulatory regimes, could adversely 
affect our business.

Risks Related Generally to our Business
•Our failure to comply with investment guidelines set by our clients and limitations imposed by applicable law could result in damage awards against us and a loss 
of our assets under management.
•Employee misconduct and certain operational risks, including the threat of cyber-attacks or improper disclosure of personal data, may disrupt our business or 
damage our reputation, which could result in losses or limit our growth.
•Failure to properly address conflicts of interest could harm our reputation, business and results of operations.
•The investment management industry faces substantial litigation risks that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of 
operations or cause significant reputational harm to us.
•The investment management industry is intensely competitive.
•Reductions in business sourced through third-party distribution channels, or their poor reviews of us or our products, could materially reduce our revenue and 
ability to attract new clients.
•A change of control could result in termination of our sub-investment advisory and investment advisory agreements.
•If our risk-management techniques are ineffective, we may be exposed to material unanticipated losses.
•Our reliance on prime brokers, custodians, administrators and other agents subjects us to certain risks relating to their execution of transactions and their solvency, 
and the failure by or insolvency of, any such person could adversely affect our business and financial performance.
•If we incur indebtedness or issue senior equity securities, we will be exposed to additional risks, including the typical risks associated with leverage.

 



  
•The interest rates under our credit agreement may be impacted by the phase-out of the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).
•Future financings could adversely affect us and our common stockholders by diluting existing stockholders or by placing restrictions on our ability to run our 
business, including making distributions to unitholders.
•Newly enacted laws or regulations and future changes in the taxation of businesses may impact our effective tax rate or may adversely affect our business, 
financial condition and operating results.
•The market price and trading volume of our Class A common stock may be volatile, which could result in rapid and substantial losses for our stockholders.
•Future issuances and sales of our Class A common stock in the public market could lower our stock price, and any additional capital raised by us through the sale 
of equity or convertible securities may dilute your ownership in us.
•The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources and distract our management, which could make it difficult to manage our business, 
particularly since we are no longer an “emerging growth company.”
•Anti-takeover provisions in our second amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws could discourage a change of control 
that our stockholders may favor, which also could adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock.
•If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price and trading volume 
could decline.
•The Company has been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and cannot predict what effects COVID-19 may have in the Company’s business, clients, vendors, 
and other business partners in the future.

 
 

 



 
PART I. 
 
Item 1. Business. 

Our Guiding Principles 

We operate our business in accordance with the following guiding principles:

•We seek to create, build and maintain an environment that encourages innovation and original thought and apply this fresh thinking to the needs of our clients and our 
firm. 

•We seek to attract, motivate and retain unusually talented and ambitious professionals who share a passion for the investment business and an antipathy for corporate 
bureaucracy and office politics. 

•We seek to conduct ourselves in all our dealings as highly ethical, responsible and competent professionals who always place our clients’ financial interests ahead of our 
own. 

•We seek to encourage and nurture an entrepreneurial, collegial and action-oriented business culture in which “fun” is inevitable and decisions are generally consensual. 

Our Company 

We are a full-service wealth management firm focused on providing financial advisory and related family office services to ultra-high net worth individuals and 
institutional investors. In addition to a wide range of investment capabilities, we offer a full suite of complementary and customized family office services for families seeking 
comprehensive oversight of their financial affairs. As of December 31, 2021, our assets under management were $32.3 billion. 

We were founded 19 years ago on the premise that if we staffed and organized our business to deliver a combination of excellent investment performance together with 
high-touch client service, we would differentiate our business from a crowded field of firms nominally in the wealth management business. We seek to attract and serve a base 
of individuals and families with $10 million or more of investable assets, and we believe we are well-positioned to offer comprehensive investment and family office service 
solutions to families with over $25 million of investable assets. As of December 31, 2021, we had 873 client relationships with an average size of $37 million that represented 
approximately 99% of our assets under management. Our top 50 relationships averaged $381 million in size, and such amount represented approximately 59% of our assets 
under management. As a boutique, we are large enough to provide an array of comprehensive capabilities, yet agile enough to coordinate and deliver highly personalized client 
service. 

Our annual client retention rate has averaged 98% since 2006 and, as shown below, the compound annual growth rate, or CAGR, in our assets under management since 
inception is 30%. Our growth rate in any 12-month period ending on the last day of a fiscal quarter since inception ranged from (23%) to 1,142%, with a mean of 36%. We 
believe our record of growth is a direct result of our demonstrated record of delivering excellent performance together with highly personalized service to our clients. 
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Our organic growth has been complemented by selective hiring and by nine successfully completed strategic acquisitions that have expanded not only assets under 
management, but also our professional ranks, geographic footprint and service capabilities. We believe additional acquisitions will allow us to extend our geographic presence 
nationally. As we grow, we will maintain our value proposition to continue to deliver to our clients excellent investment performance together with excellent client service, the 
essence of what differentiates us from our competitors. 

Our clients engage us to advise them on traditional investment strategies focused on equities, fixed income and cash as well as non-traditional investment strategies 
including hedge funds, private equity funds, real estate and commodities. Our clients receive a full menu of proprietary investment capabilities together with a focused array of 
complementary non-proprietary capabilities offered by unaffiliated firms selected by us. In addition to our investment capabilities, we also provide our clients with family office 
services and related administrative services, which include financial planning, tax planning and preparation, partnership accounting and fund administration, and consolidated 
wealth reporting. Our fees for our investment advisory services, non-proprietary services and family office and related administrative services are structured to align our 
financial incentives with those of our clients to ensure they receive unconflicted advice. The vast majority of our fees are derived from discretionary assets under management, 
and are based on the value of the assets we manage for our clients. These fees increase if our clients’ assets grow in value; on the other hand, these fees decrease if our clients’ 
assets decline in value.  Unlike our management fees, our fees for family office services and related administrative services are generally not based on or correlated to market 
values. For these services, we generally charge our clients a negotiated fee based on the scope of work. These services create strong client relationships and contribute 
meaningfully to our record of client retention. 

As of December 31, 2021, approximately 69% of our discretionary assets under management were held for individual clients and 31% for institutional clients. Based on 
the results we have achieved in a number of our equity strategies, we continue to attract a significant amount of institutional investor interest. Our equity capabilities are on the 
approved lists of several prominent institutional consultants and, as a result, we believe significant institutional growth is likely to continue in future years.  
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History, Organization and Philosophy 

When forming our company, our founders had the objective of creating a large full-service boutique operation focused on managing portfolios and delivering financial 
advice to wealthy individuals and select institutions. We commenced operations in April of 2002 as a corporation. Our first partners and employees came almost entirely from 
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette (“DLJ”) Asset Management Group, which had been acquired by Credit Suisse Asset Management in late 2000. In 2002, we carefully recruited 
and hired the same equity, fixed income and client service teams with whom our clients had worked at DLJ Asset Management Group. As of December 31, 2021, 
approximately nine percent of our 148 employees are veterans of DLJ. Many of our principals, therefore, have worked together for 25 years and, in some cases, even longer.

On June 26, 2013, Silvercrest completed its corporate reorganization, and on July 2, 2013, Silvercrest closed its initial public offering. Prior to that date, Silvercrest was 
a private company. 

Our headquarters are located in New York City with additional offices in Massachusetts, Virginia, New Jersey, California and Wisconsin. From inception, we have 
embraced an organizational structure in which the primary functions of client service, investments, technology and operations, and business administration are organized and 
staffed with professionals who specialize in each of those functions. This structure permits each professional to focus on his or her area of expertise without the distraction of 
other business responsibilities. At many other firms, the senior professionals are expected to serve multiple roles simultaneously, which we believe dilutes the value to clients 
and makes scaling the business effectively unachievable. We firmly believe that our business structure represents a better approach and will permit us to greatly expand our 
business on our existing platform. 

To meet our primary objective to deliver strong investment results, we seek to add value through our asset allocation advice, as well as through our proprietary equity 
and fixed income strategies and outsourced investment capabilities. We recruited and hired a team of seasoned securities analysts who have an institutional caliber approach to 
security selection and a long record of success in implementing their strategies. We encourage them to focus 100% of their professional time on the task of securities selection. 
Our in-house growth and value equity analysts are focused on U.S. large cap, small cap, smid cap, multi cap, equity income and focused value equity strategies. On the fixed 
income side, our analysts are focused on high-grade municipals, high-yield municipals and high-grade taxables. 

In order to deliver excellent client service, our portfolio managers are charged with the responsibility of working individually with each client to help define investment 
objectives, risk tolerance, cash flow requirements and other financial needs. Client-facing portfolio managers, their support staffs and the family office services group, account 
for 64% of our total employees, a reflection of our high commitment to excellent client service. We are staffed to ensure that each client receives senior level personal attention. 

We have a staff of nine professionals who work with our portfolio managers to deliver family office services to interested clients. The fees for family office services are 
negotiated with the client and generally are not asset-based. For this reason, the revenues generated by our family office services are non-correlated to market movements and 
provide us with a diversified source of earnings. We believe these family office services have been an attractive component of our overall value proposition and engender a 
stronger relationship with our clients, leading to greater client retention and the institutionalization of client relationships. 

Our Growth Strategy  

We built our company to take market share from financial services firms whose wealth management models we believe are flawed. Our growth strategy has been and 
will continue to be to grow our business organically, to complement our organic growth with strategic hires and acquisitions and to expand our presence in the institutional 
market. In support of each of these initiatives we plan to continue to invest in establishing our brand through continued selective advertising and public relations. 

Organic Growth 

We have a proven ability to identify, attract and retain ultra-high net worth clients who seek a firm designed to deliver excellent investment performance and excellent 
client service. Our organizational model of separate and distinct business functions has proven scalable and our company’s assets under management have grown to $32.3 
billion as of December 31, 2021 without a commensurate increase in headcount. Importantly, we have achieved our growth while maintaining our profitability during one of the 
most challenging periods in the history of the U.S. financial markets. Going forward, we will continue to execute our business plan for attracting ultra-high net worth clients. 
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The business of attracting ultra-high net worth clients is the business of obtaining referrals and gaining trust. At our company, these responsibilities reside principally 
with our portfolio managers. Our senior portfolio managers have on average nearly 38 years of industry experience and they have developed a wealth of contacts and 
professional referral sources as a result of that experience. In spearheading the effort to deliver excellent performance and service to their clients, our portfolio managers have 
developed very close relationships with their clients and in many cases these relationships are much older than our company itself. Much of our new business results from 
referrals from existing clients. In this regard, it is critical that our portfolio managers work closely with each of their clients to establish and maintain the trust that is at the heart 
of the relationship. 

Where appropriate, our portfolio managers are also encouraged to introduce our clients to our family office services capabilities and we have capacity for growth in 
client utilization of these services.  Five of our ten largest clients use our family office services and some of these clients have closed their own family offices to consolidate 
those activities with us. This is a profitable business for us and it serves to tighten our ties to those clients who avail themselves of the services we offer. It is also extremely 
useful to us in new business competitions where we use these services as a differentiator from our competitors. We continue to see the opportunity for greater penetration with 
our current clients in future years. 

Complementing the efforts of our senior portfolio managers to cultivate client referrals, our business development team is charged with identifying newly-formed 
wealth (resulting from merger, acquisition or corporate finance) and then creating customized solicitations. Our objective is two-fold: we will expand awareness of our company 
and its capabilities by distributing our marketing materials to this new audience and we will attract a certain amount of new business. The basis of this effort is careful research 
designed to ascertain if the prospect has any relationship with us-or any of our clients or friends-and then our solicitation is tailored to those circumstances. 

In all of our business development efforts we devote a great deal of time and effort to developing highly customized and detailed proposals for our prospects. In order to 
do so, we spend as much time as is required to thoroughly understand the prospect’s circumstances and goals as well as the sources of its dissatisfaction with its existing 
adviser. Where appropriate our proposals include the integration of our entire suite of family office services. We believe our customized new business presentations distinguish 
us from both our much larger competitors, which have substantial resources, but whose size, we believe, may impede them from easily tailoring solutions to suit clients’ needs, 
as well as from our smaller competitors which, we believe, do not have our depth of resources or capabilities. 

Acquired Growth 

From our inception, our organic growth has been complemented by selective hiring and strategic acquisitions, which have served to enlarge our client base, expand our 
professional ranks, increase our geographic presence and broaden our service capabilities. We therefore expect to continue to recruit and hire senior portfolio managers with 
significant client relationships as well as successful investment professionals with capabilities currently not available internally to us. We have used acquisitions to extend our 
presence into new geographies (Boston, Virginia, New Jersey, California and Wisconsin) and to gain new investment expertise. The nine strategic acquisitions we have 
successfully completed have allowed us to benefit from economies of scale and scope. 

In making acquisitions, we look for firms with compatible professionals of the highest integrity who believe in our high service-high performance model for the 
business. It is important that their clientele be principally clients of high net worth and it is helpful if they have similar value and growth-based investment methodologies. These 
firms are attracted to our company by the strength of our brand, the breadth of our services and the integrity of our people. Often these firms are extremely limited in the 
investment products and services they can offer their clients and it is not uncommon that they have succession or other management issues to resolve. In addition, the high and 
growing cost of compliance with federal and state laws governing their business is often an added inducement. We believe we will become the partner of choice for many such 
firms. 

To continue implementing our growth strategy, we intend to establish additional U.S. offices in major wealth centers on the West Coast, in the Southwest and in the 
Midwest in order to be closer to both our clients and to prospective clients. 

Our past acquisitions have sharpened our ability to integrate acquired businesses, and we believe that once we identify an acquisition target we will be able to complete 
the acquisition and integrate the acquired business expeditiously. 

Institutional Growth 

After thirteen years of effort focused on cultivating relationships with institutional investment consultants, we continue to regularly make new business presentations to 
institutional investors, including public and corporate pension funds, endowments, foundations, and their consultants. 
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We are on the “approved” lists of certain prominent institutional investment consultants, which means that these consultants would be permitted to recommend our firm 
to institutional clients in search of a particular investment strategy for their clients. This has significantly enhanced our ability to win mandates that these consultants seek for 
their institutional clients and, as a result, we have won institutional mandates in our equity strategies. We expect this trend to continue once it is publicly known that these and 
other institutions have engaged us to manage significant portfolios for them. The importance of institutional growth to our company is noteworthy: institutional assets will likely 
expand not only our assets under management but also our profit margins; and the due diligence conducted by these institutions before selecting us will ratify and confirm the 
decisions to hire us made by our individual clients. 

Over the past few years we have deliberately and gradually built our team and capability focused on providing Outsourced Chief Investment Officer services (“OCIO”).  
These services typically involve management on a discretionary or advisory basis for complex, multi-asset class pools of capital, often for tax exempt entities. On a discretionary 
engagement, our team provides a full-service approach inclusive of asset allocation, manager selection and due diligence, customized portfolio construction and risk analytics.  
On an advisory basis, these services can be performed without discretion or on a tailored basis.  Traditionally, investment committees of these entities would manage the assets 
directly.  However, with the growth in the size and complexity of many asset pools, these entities are often seeking outside management and advice.  

Brand Management 

We have invested heavily to build, maintain and extend our brand. We have done so in the belief that creating awareness of our company and its differentiated 
characteristics would support all aspects of our business, but most notably our growth. 

With limited resources, we have created a focused national advertising campaign, which has drawn praise from clients, prospects and competitors alike. We have 
carefully chosen media outlets that reach our target audience efficiently.  This effort has resulted in appearances on CNBC.  We estimate that the new business that we get 
directly as a result of our advertising now finances its cost. 

Complementing our advertising strategy, and again, with limited resources, we have also invested in an effort to get media coverage of our company in some of the 
nation’s most prestigious national publications as well as in industry journals and newsletters. This effort has resulted in press coverage by the Wall Street Journal, Barron’s, 
Bloomberg, the Financial Times and The New York Times as well as various trade publications distributed within our industry. This public relations effort has proven very 
helpful in establishing our company as a leader in our industry. 

Our Business Model 

We were founded in 2002 to provide independent investment advisory and related family office services to ultra-high net worth individuals and endowments, 
foundations and other institutional investors. To this end, we are structured to provide our clients with institutional-quality investment management advice and/or services with 
the superior level of service expected by wealthy individuals. 

To provide this high level of service, we rely on portfolio management teams and our family office services team to provide objective, conflict-free investment 
management selection and a fully integrated, customized family-centric approach to wealth management. We believe the combination of comprehensive family office service, 
excellent investment capabilities and a high level of personal service allows us to take advantage of economies of scale to service the needs of our ultra-high net worth clients. 

We have dedicated investment management teams tasked with successfully implementing their respective investment strategies. To increase the probability of success 
in meeting this objective, our analysts are not responsible for client interaction, management of our business, marketing or compliance oversight. This enables us to effectively 
serve ultra-high net worth clients as well as institutions that typically perform in-depth due diligence before selecting a manager. 

Delivering Investment Performance 

The Investment Policy & Strategy Group, or IPSG, which is comprised of our chief strategist and several of our senior portfolio managers, is charged with the 
responsibility of adding value through asset allocation and manager selection. This is done through the use of our proprietary investment management by our internal analysts, 
and by those whom we believe are best-of-breed external managers. 

8



  

The IPSG develops model asset allocations assuming differing levels of risk, liquidity and income tolerance as well as conducting outside manager due diligence. Our 
proprietary model portfolio structures are not merely a backward-looking, mechanical exercise based on the past performance of different asset classes. Instead, our IPSG 
overlays our judgment on the likely future performance of different asset classes in arriving at optimal portfolio structures. None of our dedicated investment analysts serves on 
this committee, which safeguards the independence of the IPSG’s recommendations. 

Our portfolio managers are responsible for creating a customized investment program for each client based upon the IPSG’s work. An interactive dialogue ensures that 
each portfolio plan is based upon each client’s defined written objectives. Each client’s portfolio strategy takes into account that client’s risk tolerance, income and liquidity 
requirements as well as the effect of diversifying out of low-basis and/or sentimental holdings. 

Historically, the IPSG has added value to our clients’ portfolios through asset allocation weightings and manager selection. 

From inception, we have employed a system of peer group reviews to ensure that client portfolios have been constructed in a manner consistent with our best collective 
thinking. In annual peer group reviews, the asset allocation within each client portfolio is compared with such portfolio’s defined objectives and portfolios that are not fully 
aligned with the investment objective are then singled out for further review and discussion. Our objective is for all clients to receive our best thinking and for portfolio 
managers to manage portfolios consistently with our policy. As a combination of these various factors, the client relationship is with us and not merely with an individual at our 
company. 

We believe that it is impossible for a single manager to perform all forms of investing equally well. Thus, our core proprietary investment capabilities are focused on a 
narrow range of highly disciplined U.S. equity and fixed income management strategies. Our investment teams have exhibited strong performance records. With respect to 
these strategies, roughly 66% of our total assets under management are managed in our proprietary investment strategies. 

Our outsourced investment capabilities include alternative investments as well as traditional investment approaches in the categories of domestic large, mid and small 
cap growth equity, international equities and high-yield bonds. 

Proprietary Equity Strategies 

Our equity strategies rely on a team-based investment approach and a rigorous investment process. This approach has resulted in returns that exceed relevant market 
benchmarks. We believe this team approach has provided and will continue to provide consistency to our investment process and results over the long-term. Our investment 
analysts are generalists who employ a “bottom-up” equity selection methodology based upon their respective value, growth and international investment styles. Our analysts 
collectively monitor a universe of approximately 250 stocks that are deemed to be attractively valued relative to their business outlook and management’s history of creating 
shareholder value. 

Once stocks have been approved for investment from this body of research, they become part of one or more model equity portfolios. These are generally large cap, 
small cap, smid cap, multi-cap, equity income and focused value. Each stock position is continually monitored against its investment thesis to ensure investment discipline, and, 
leveraging this discipline, we employ a strict policy to trim or sell securities in the following circumstances: 

•when a stock is excessively valued in our models or the best case scenario is reflected in the stock price; 

•due to a stock’s outperformance, which can adversely affect a portfolio’s diversification; 

•due to underperformance, when a stock trails relevant benchmarks by more than 10%; or 

•when the investment thesis changes, due to a loss of confidence in management, a change in business prospects or the deterioration in earnings quality. 
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Below is a breakdown of assets among the various proprietary equity strategies as of December 31, 2021:1

 
_____________________________________________
1.As of the filing of this annual report our small cap value strategy is closed to new investors.  The strategy may be reopened if one or more of our investors elects to rebalance its assets, which may occur at 
any time.
2.Includes smid cap growth, focused opportunity, small cap concentrated, energy infrastructure, REIT, core international, international multi cap value, global multi cap value, emerging markets, focused 
international value and international small cap strategies.
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Each of our equity strategies has outperformed its benchmark since inception as illustrated by the following chart: 
 
PROPRIETARY EQUITY PERFORMANCE  ANNUALIZED PERFORMANCE  
AS OF 12/31/21  INCEPTION    1-YEAR    3-YEAR    5-YEAR    7-YEAR    INCEPTION  
                         
Large Cap Value Composite  4/1/02    31.7    23.3    16.8    14.2    10.4  
Russell 1000 Value Index      25.2    17.6    11.2      9.7      8.2  
                         

Small Cap Value Composite  4/1/02    25.8    19.1      9.9    10.7    11.2  
Russell 2000 Value Index      28.3    18.0      9.1      9.5      8.8  
                         

Smid Cap Value Composite  10/1/05    29.0    19.2    11.4    12.1    10.8  
Russell 2500 Value Index      27.8    18.3      9.9      9.6      8.6  
                         

Multi Cap Value Composite  7/1/02    32.2    22.2    14.4    12.9    10.8  
Russell 3000 Value Index      25.4    17.6    11.0      9.7      8.8  
                         

Equity Income Composite  12/1/03    28.4    16.5    12.6    11.9    12.1  
Russell 3000 Value Index      25.4    17.6    11.0      9.7      9.0  
                         

Focused Value Composite  9/1/04    26.4    17.3    11.5    11.5    11.2  
Russell 3000 Value Index      25.4    17.6    11.0      9.7      8.8  
                        

Small Cap Opportunity Composite  7/1/04    16.9    22.1    14.6    13.7    12.2  
Russell 2000 Index      14.8    20.0    12.0    10.8      9.4  
                        

Small Cap Growth Composite  7/1/04    20.5    31.4    22.5    18.2    13.1  
Russell 2000 Growth Index        2.8    21.2    14.5    11.7    10.0  
                        

Smid Cap Growth Composite  1/1/06    13.4    38.7    26.9    19.6    14.0  
Russell 2500 Growth Index        5.0    25.1    17.7    13.8    11.4  
                        

 
1Returns are based upon a time weighted rate of return of various fully discretionary equity portfolios with similar investment objectives, strategies and policies and other relevant criteria managed by 
Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC (“SAMG LLC”), a subsidiary of Silvercrest. Performance results are gross of fees and net of commission charges. An investor’s actual return will be reduced by the 
advisory fees and any other expenses it may incur in the management of the investment advisory account. SAMG LLC’s standard advisory fees are described in Part 2 of its Form ADV. Actual fees and 
expenses will vary depending on a variety of factors, including the size of a particular account. Returns greater than one year are shown as annualized compounded returns and include gains and accrued 
income and reinvestment of distributions. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This report contains no recommendations to buy or sell securities or a solicitation of an offer to buy or sell securities 
or investment services or adopt any investment position. This report is not intended to constitute investment advice and is based upon conditions in place during the period noted. Market and economic views 
are subject to change without notice and may be untimely when presented here. Readers are advised not to infer or assume that any securities, sectors or markets described were or will be profitable. SAMG 
LLC is an independent investment advisory and financial services firm created to meet the investment and administrative needs of individuals with substantial assets and select institutional investors. SAMG 
LLC claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®).

2The market indices used to compare to the performance of our strategies are as follows:

The Russell 1000 Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures the 1000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000. The Russell 1000 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged 
index that includes those Russell 1000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower expected growth values.

The Russell 2000 Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures the 2000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000. The Russell 2000 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged 
index that includes those Russell 2000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower expected growth values. The Russell 2000 Growth Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that 
includes those Russell 2000 Index companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth.

The Russell 2500 Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures the 2500 smallest companies in the Russell 3000. The Russell 2500 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged 
index that includes those Russell 2000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower expected growth values. The Russell 2500 Growth Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that 
includes those Russell 2500 Index companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth.

The Russell 3000 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures those Russell 3000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted growth.
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Proprietary Fixed Income Strategies 

In the management of fixed income investments, clients typically give us the mandate to produce stable returns to dampen the volatility of their portfolios as a counter-
weight to equities as part of their complete asset allocation. For those investors who can take advantage of the tax exemption of municipal bonds, we have developed two high-
yield municipal bond products designed to add value to the returns possible from high-grade bonds in a low interest rate environment. Below is the breakdown of assets under 
management by strategy as of December 31, 2021: 

 

 
 

 Our fixed income strategy employs a bottom-up fundamental value approach designed to minimize the risk of loss. Almost all of our bond portfolios are highly customized and 
focused on income and liquidity generation as opposed to capital appreciation. 

Outsourced Manager Selection 

Recognizing the value of diversification to our clients, we offer a variety of outsourced investment capabilities designed to complement our proprietary capabilities. 
These outsourced capabilities include managers who have long records of success in managing growth equities, international equities, taxable high-yield bonds, hedge funds 
and other strategies not offered on a proprietary basis by us. In selecting these managers, we utilize an investment manager database for initial screening and then a dedicated 
staff conducts on-site due diligence. Potential managers are reviewed and selected by our IPSG. Our selection criteria include the following: 

•Highly Consistent Returns. We emphasize consistency of performance over strong performance marked by high volatility. 

•Tax Sensitivity. We seek managers with a low turnover style of management designed to achieve attractive after-tax rates of return. 

•Solid Operations and Technology. We require each manager to produce evidence that it has strong technology and operations capabilities as well as vigorous compliance 
adherence. 

•Alignment of Interest. We require evidence that the strategy’s key people have significant equity in their company and are motivated to stay in place. 

•Willingness to Negotiate Fees. We require our managers to accept a significant discount in their management fees because we expect to manage all aspects of the client 
relationship. Their only responsibility is to manage the capital entrusted to them. No manager has refused to offer the discounts we seek. 
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For large clients with significant hedge fund exposure, we offer a hedge fund advisory service that creates customized hedge fund portfolios. Each of our funds of funds 
appears below: 

•Silvercrest Hedged Equity Fund is designed to complement and diversify long-only equity portfolios through investments with managers who employ long and short 
strategies; 

•Silvercrest International Fund provides investors with broad coverage of international markets, spanning developed, emerging and frontier markets; 

•Silvercrest Special Situations Fund is designed to outperform traditional benchmarks with less volatility; and

•Silvercrest Jefferson Fund is designed to outperform its benchmarks on a risk-adjusted basis for investors who seek to minimize risk and preserve capital.

We have two types of fee arrangements with outsourced managers. Clients may either pay a discounted fee, negotiated by us, directly to the manager who retains the 
entire fee, or pay directly to the manager, who then distributes a portion of the fee to us. Clients are informed of the applicable arrangement and sign a written 
acknowledgement. 

Delivering Client Service 

We take a holistic approach to client service, whereby a senior portfolio manager spearheads the coordination of the IPSG recommendations, family office services 
work and the investment management team in order to deliver the full range of our capabilities to the client. 

Five out of our ten largest high net worth clients use one or more components of our family office services. We believe that this is an attractive growth area for our 
company and we have initiated plans to increase the provision of these services to both broaden relationships with existing clients and to attract potential clients. Our family 
office services are profitable and are not used as a loss-leader for attracting clients. Our family office capabilities include the following: 

•Financial Planning; 

•Tax Planning and Preparation; 

•Partnership Accounting and Fund Administration; 

•Consolidated Wealth Reporting; 

•Estate or Trust Agency; and 

•Art Consultancy and Management. 

For institutional client relationships, contact with our clients is handled by a dedicated institutional client service team headed by a Managing Director who also 
maintains our relationships with institutional investment consultants. This structure permits our investment professionals to maintain their focus on achieving superior 
investment results without the distraction of client demands. 

Competition

The wealth management industry is highly competitive and is comprised of many players. We compete directly with some of the largest financial service companies, as 
well as some of the smallest. We primarily compete on the basis of several factors, including our level of service, the quality of our advice, independence, stability, performance 
results, breadth of our capabilities and fees. In general, these competitors fall into one of the following categories: 

•Diversified Financial Institutions have divisions aimed at providing wealth management solutions to the high net worth segment that are usually staffed by brokers. 

•Asset Management Firms offer proprietary institutional and retail asset management services catering to the high net worth segment largely with off-the-shelf products. 

•Trust Companies combine fiduciary and investment services as well as ancillary financial services. 

•MFO/RIAs focus exclusively on the high net worth segment and are frequently dominated by one or two families. 
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As a registered investment adviser that is not affiliated with other financial firms, we are free from the conflicts associated with brokerage or investment banking firms. 
In advising our clients on portfolio strategies, we are motivated to meet our clients’ investment objectives—not to generate commissions or placement fees—and to focus solely 
on providing excellent service and investment performance. 

We have the size and resources to compete with larger organizations, and unlike many smaller firms, to provide our clients with fully customized, full-service wealth 
management and integrated family office solutions. 

While many competitors outsource investment management, we have chosen to compete with excellent proprietary investment capabilities coupled with a focused array 
of complementary non-proprietary capabilities offered by unaffiliated firms. This combination enables us to compete for and win the business of wealthy investors. We believe 
this is a key to our past and future success. 

Employees 

As of December 31, 2021, we had 146 full-time employees and two part-time employees.  None of our employees are subject to a collective bargaining agreement.  We 
believe that relations with our employees continue to remain strong.

We are a full-service wealth management firm and our most important resources are our employees.  We have a long history of low employee turnover which is directly 
the result of a culture that embraces an organizational structure in which the primary functions of client service, investments, technology, operations, and business 
administration are organized and staffed with professionals who specialize in each of those functions. This structure permits each professional to focus on his or her area of 
expertise without the distraction of other business responsibilities.

We attract talented individuals who share our entrepreneurial spirit and embrace our culture which is focused on delivering a combination of excellent investment 
performance together with high-touch client service.   

Employees have opportunities for promotion either within their specific discipline or by joining other groups within the firm.  We have also gained expertise in several 
disciplines as a result of acquisitions that we have completed which has resulted in filling necessary roles within the firm.  Furthermore, several employees have been promoted 
to partner throughout our history.

Our firm also provides employees with opportunities to become members of various committees covering many disciplines including technology, operations and the 
Silvercrest Academy which provides internal professional development to all members of the firm.  Many of our younger employees are provided the opportunity to take on 
leadership roles in the aforementioned committees as part of their own professional development.   This allows employees to participate in firm advancement and encourages 
further collaboration throughout Silvercrest.  

We also offer employees tuition assistance in order to support their educational aspirations and development within the firm.

Our employees and culture differentiate Silvercrest from other firms in the wealth management space and we will continue to attract and develop talent necessary to 
ultimately deliver on the promise of providing exceptional service to our clients and colleagues.

Our Structure and Reorganization

Holding Company Structure 

Our only business is acting as the general partner of Silvercrest L.P. and, as such, we will continue to operate and control all of its business and affairs and consolidate its 
financial results into our financial statements. The ownership interests of holders of limited partnership interests of Silvercrest L.P. are accounted for as a non-controlling 
interest in our consolidated financial statements. 

Net profits, net losses and distributions of Silvercrest L.P. are allocated and made to each of its partners on a pro rata basis in accordance with the number of partnership 
units of Silvercrest L.P. held by each of them. In addition, Silvercrest L.P. has issued deferred equity units and restricted stock units exercisable for Class B units that entitle the 
holders thereof to receive distributions from Silvercrest L.P. to the same extent as if the underlying Class B units were outstanding.
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Set forth below is our holding company structure and ownership as of December 31, 2021.  

 
 
 
(1)Each share of Class B common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Class B stockholders have the right to receive the par value of the Class B common stock upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-
up. 

(2)Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Class A common stockholders have 100% of the rights of all classes of our capital stock to receive distributions, and substantially all 
assets, after payment in full to creditors and holders of preferred stock, if any. 

(3)Each Class B unit held by a principal is exchangeable for one share of Class A common stock. The principals collectively hold 4,593,687 Class B units as of December 31, 2021, which represents the right 
to receive approximately 31.8% of the distributions made by Silvercrest L.P. The principals also collectively hold 170,854 restricted stock units which are exercisable for one Class B unit, which collectively 
represent the right to receive approximately 0.5% of the distributions made by Silvercrest L.P. The 170,854 restricted stock units which have been issued to our principals entitle the holders thereof to 
participate in distributions from Silvercrest L.P. as if the underlying Class B units are outstanding and thus are taken into account to determine the economic interest of each holder of units in Silvercrest L.P. 
However, because the Class B units underlying the restricted stock units have not been issued and are not deemed outstanding, the holders of restricted stock units have no voting rights with respect to the 
underlying Class B units. We will not issue shares of Class B common stock in respect of restricted stock units of Silvercrest L.P. until such time that the underlying Class B units are issued. 
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(4)We hold 9,869,101 Class A units, which represents the right to receive approximately 67.5% of the distributions made by Silvercrest L.P. The 170,854 restricted stock units which have been issued to our 
principals entitle the holders thereof to participate in distributions from Silvercrest L.P. as if the underlying Class B units are outstanding and thus are taken into account to determine the economic interest of 
each holder of units in Silvercrest L.P. However, because the Class B units underlying the restricted stock units have not been issued and are not deemed outstanding, the holders of restricted stock units have 
no voting rights with respect to those Class B units. We will not issue shares of Class B common stock in respect of restricted stock units of Silvercrest L.P. until such time that the underlying Class B units are 
issued.

Regulatory Environment 

Our business is subject to extensive regulation in the United States at the federal level and, to a lesser extent, the state level. Under these laws and regulations, agencies 
that regulate investment advisers have broad administrative powers, including the power to limit, restrict or prohibit an investment adviser from carrying on its business in the 
event that it fails to comply with such laws and regulations. Possible sanctions that may be imposed include the suspension of individual employees, limitations on engaging in 
certain lines of business for specified periods of time, revocation of investment adviser license and other registrations, censures and fines. 

The legislative and regulatory environment in which we operate has undergone significant changes in recent years. New laws or regulations, or changes in the 
enforcement of existing laws or regulations, applicable to us, our activities and our clients may adversely affect our business. Our ability to function in this environment will 
depend on our ability to monitor and promptly react to legislative and regulatory changes. There have been a number of highly publicized regulatory inquiries that have focused 
on the investment management industry. These inquiries have resulted in increased scrutiny of the industry and new rules and regulations for investment advisers. This 
regulatory scrutiny may limit our ability to engage in certain activities that might be beneficial to our stockholders. 

In addition, as a result of market events, acts of serious fraud in the investment management industry and perceived lapses in regulatory oversight, U.S. and non-U.S. 
governmental and regulatory authorities may increase regulatory oversight of our businesses. We may be adversely affected as a result of new or revised legislation or 
regulations imposed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”), other U.S. or non-U.S. 
regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that supervise the financial markets. We also may be adversely affected by changes in the interpretation or enforcement of 
existing laws and rules by these governmental authorities and self-regulatory organizations, as well as by U.S. and non-U.S. courts. It is impossible to determine the extent of 
the impact of any new proposed laws, regulations or initiatives that could apply to markets in which we trade, or whether any of those proposals will become law. Compliance 
with any new laws or regulations could add to our compliance burden and costs and affect the manner in which we conduct our business. 

SEC Regulation 

SAMG LLC is registered with the SEC as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Advisers Act”). The Advisers Act, 
together with the SEC’s regulations and interpretations thereunder, imposes substantive and material restrictions and requirements on the operations of investment advisers. The 
SEC is authorized to institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations of the Advisers Act, ranging from fines and censures to termination of an adviser’s registration. 

The Advisers Act imposes substantive regulation on virtually all aspects of our business and relationships with our clients. As a registered investment adviser, we are 
subject to many requirements that cover, among other things, disclosure of information about our business to clients; maintenance of written policies and procedures; 
maintenance of extensive books and records; restrictions on the types of fees we may charge, including performance fees; solicitation arrangements; engaging in transactions 
with clients; maintaining an effective compliance program; custody of client assets; client privacy; advertising; pay-to-play; cybersecurity and proxy voting. The SEC has 
authority to inspect any registered investment adviser from time to time to determine whether the adviser is conducting its activities (i) in accordance with applicable laws, (ii) 
consistent with disclosures made to clients and (iii) with adequate systems and procedures to ensure compliance. 
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As an investment adviser, we have a fiduciary duty to our clients. The SEC has interpreted this duty to impose standards, requirements, and limitations on, among other 
things: trading for proprietary, personal and client accounts; allocations of investment opportunities among clients; use of soft dollars; execution of transactions; and 
recommendations to clients. We manage 88% of our accounts on a discretionary basis, with authority to buy and sell securities for each portfolio, select broker-dealers to 
execute trades and negotiate brokerage commission rates. In connection with these transactions, we receive soft dollar credits from broker-dealers that have the effect of 
reducing certain of our expenses. Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, provides a “safe harbor” to an investment adviser against claims 
that it breached its fiduciary duty under state or federal law (including The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or ERISA) solely because the 
adviser caused its clients’ accounts to pay more than the lowest available commission for executing a securities trade in return for brokerage and research services. To rely on 
the safe harbor offered by Section 28(e), (i) we must make a good-faith determination that the amount of commissions is reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and 
research services being received and (ii) the brokerage and research services must provide lawful and appropriate assistance to us in carrying out our investment decision-
making responsibilities. In permissible circumstances, we may receive technology-based research, market quotation and/or market survey services which are paid for in whole 
or in part by soft dollar brokerage arrangements. If our ability to use soft dollars were reduced or eliminated as a result of the implementation of statutory amendments or new 
regulations, our operating expenses would increase. 

Under the Advisers Act, our investment management agreements may not be assigned without client consent. The term “assignment” is broadly defined and includes 
direct assignments as well as assignments that may be deemed to occur upon the transfer, directly or indirectly, of a controlling interest in an investment adviser. 

The failure of SAMG LLC to comply with the requirements of the Advisers Act, and the regulations and interpretations thereunder, could have a material adverse effect 
on us. 

CFTC Regulation 

SAMG LLC is registered with the CFTC and the National Futures Association, or the NFA, as a commodity pool operator and commodity trading advisor. Registration 
subjects us and our affiliates to substantive and material restrictions and requirements, including, among other things, reporting, recordkeeping, disclosure, self-examination and 
training requirements. Registration also subjects us to periodic on-site audits, and the CFTC is authorized to institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations of the 
Commodity Exchange Act of 1974, as amended (the “Commodity Exchange Act”) and/or CFTC rules. 

Dodd-Frank 

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, or the Dodd-Frank Act, was signed into law on July 21, 2010. The Dodd-Frank Act has not caused 
us to reconsider our basic strategy.  However, certain provisions have, and others may continue to increase regulatory burdens related to compliance costs. The scope of many 
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act has been, or will be, determined by implementing regulations, some of which will require lengthy proposal and promulgation periods. 

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, the SEC and the CFTC have adopted certain reporting requirements that require that Silvercrest report certain information about a 
number of our private funds, commodity pools and commodity trading advisory arrangements, including regulations promulgated under the authority given to the SEC and 
CFTC under Sections 404 and 406 of the Dodd-Frank Act requiring a Form-PF and/or a CTA-PQR and CTA-PR to be filed by us. These filings have necessitated and will 
continue to necessitate investments in people and systems to ensure timely and accurate reporting. Further, we will need to monitor compliance with new SEC and CFTC rules 
concerning swaps and other derivatives, including, among other things, designated trading venues, mandated central clearing arrangements and other conduct requirements.

The Dodd-Frank Act affects a broad range of market participants with whom we interact or may interact. Regulatory changes that will affect other market participants 
are likely to change the way in which we conduct business with our counterparties. Although many aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act have been implemented, there remains 
significant uncertainty regarding implementation of other aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act.  While its impact on the investment management industry and us cannot be predicted 
at this time, it will continue to be a risk for our business.
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ERISA-Related Regulation 

To the extent that SAMG LLC or any other of our affiliates is a “fiduciary” under ERISA with respect to benefit plan clients (including IRAs), it is subject to ERISA 
(and/or applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, referred to as the Internal Revenue Code) and to regulations promulgated thereunder. Among 
other things, ERISA and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code impose certain duties on persons who are fiduciaries under ERISA, prohibit certain transactions 
involving benefit plan clients and provide monetary penalties and taxes for violations of these prohibitions. Our failure to comply with these requirements could have a material 
adverse effect on our business. 

Other Jurisdictions

The Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (“AIFMD”) went into effect in the European Union (“EU”) on July 22, 2013. The AIFMD imposes significant 
regulatory requirements on alternative investment fund managers ("AIFMs''), operating within the EU, and prescribes certain conditions with regard to regulatory standards, 
cooperation and transparency that will need to be satisfied in order for non-EU AIFMs to market alternative investment funds ("AIFs'') into EU Member States. To date, we 
have not registered any funds in EU Member States pursuant to the AIFMD, but we may do so in the future.  Should SAMG LLC or any of our other affiliates market AIFs in 
the EU, they may be subject to significant conditions on their operations. 

Similarly, revisions to the EU’s Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II), which took effect in January 2018, introduced new requirements for certain 
non-EU portfolio managers who provide certain investment services to EU investors. Should SAMG LLC or any of our other affiliates provide such services in the EU, it and 
such funds may be subject to the regulatory requirements of MiFID II.

Additionally, the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the EU under Article 50 of the Treaty of Lisbon means that EU law still will have effect in the UK during a 
transitional period, which is expected to last until December 31, 2020 (unless an extension is agreed to between the United Kingdom and the EU). The terms of the United 
Kingdom’s exit from the EU are not clear, and the shape of the regulatory landscape is not yet defined. The withdrawal process and the uncertainty concerning the United 
Kingdom’s legal and economic relationship with the EU could cause a period of instability and market volatility, including with respect to opportunity, pricing, regulation and 
the tax treatment of any United Kingdom investments. It is not possible to ascertain the precise impact these events may have on SAMG LLC.

In addition, we and/or our affiliates may become subject to additional regulatory demands in the future to the extent we expand our investment advisory business in 
existing and new jurisdictions. There are also a number of pending or recently enacted legislative and regulatory initiatives in the United States and in other jurisdictions that 
could significantly impact our business.

Compliance 

Our legal and compliance functions are integrated into a team of professionals. This group is responsible for all legal and regulatory compliance matters, as well as 
monitoring adherence to client investment guidelines. Senior management is involved at various levels in all of these functions. 

Available Information

We maintain a website at http://ir.silvercrestgroup.com/. We provide access to our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on 
Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports free of charge through this website as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with the SEC. 
Paper copies of annual and periodic reports filed with the SEC may be obtained free of charge upon written request by contacting our headquarters at the address located on the 
front cover of this report or under Investor Relations on our website. In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, By-Laws, Audit 
Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Charter and Nominating and Governance Committee Charter are available on our website (under Corporate Governance) and are 
available in print without charge to any stockholder requesting them. The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, information statements, and other information 
regarding issuers like us who file electronically with the SEC. The SEC’s website is located at www.sec.gov.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors. 

Risks Related to our Investment Performance and the Financial Markets 

Volatile market conditions could adversely affect our business in many ways, including by reducing the value of our assets under management and causing clients to 
withdraw funds, either of which could materially reduce our revenues, adversely affect our financial condition and earnings, and expose us to litigation risks. 

The fees we earn under our investment management agreements with clients are based on the value of our assets under management. The prices of the securities held in 
the portfolios we manage and, therefore, our assets under management, may decline due to any number of factors beyond our control, including, among others, a declining 
stock or bond market, general economic downturn, political uncertainty, natural disasters or pandemics (including the most recent coronavirus outbreak), acts of terrorism or 
other catastrophic or geopolitical events. In periods of difficult market conditions, we may experience accelerated client redemptions or withdrawals if clients move assets to 
investments they perceive as offering greater opportunity or lower risk, which could further reduce our assets under management in addition to market depreciation. The 
economic outlook remains uncertain and we continue to operate in a challenging business environment. If market conditions, or actions taken by clients in response to market 
conditions, cause a decline in our assets under management, it would result in lower investment management fees and other revenue. If our revenues decline without a 
commensurate reduction in our expenses, our net income will be reduced, and our business will be negatively affected.  In addition, while we seek to deliver long-term value to 
our clients, volatility may lead to under-performance in the near term, which could adversely affect our results of operations. 

If market conditions improve greatly, driving the prices of the securities in our clients’ accounts higher, it may lead to withdrawals or redemptions. In many cases, we 
advise only a portion of our clients’ complete financial portfolio. This is because many clients prefer to diversify their portfolio among more than one asset manager or 
investment type. As to those clients, if the portion of their portfolio held by us increases significantly, it may become too large a percentage of their overall portfolio, and they 
may withdraw assets from our management and invest it elsewhere, thereby rebalancing their overall portfolio and returning their allocation to us to its prior level. 

The performance of our investment strategies is critical to retaining existing client assets and to attracting new client assets. Our investment strategies may perform 
poorly for various reasons, including general market conditions, our investment decisions, and the performance of the companies in which we invest on our clients’ behalf.  If 
our investment strategies perform poorly, on an absolute basis or relative to other investment advisers, or if the rankings of mutual funds we sub-advise decline, our clients may 
withdraw funds or terminate their relationships with us and investors in the mutual funds we sub-advise may redeem their investments, which may cause the revenues that we 
generate from investment management and other fees to decline.  Further, third-party financial intermediaries, advisers, or consultants may rate our investment products poorly, 
which may lead our existing clients to withdraw funds from our investment strategies or reduce asset inflows from these third parties or their clients. 

While clients do not generally have legal recourse against us due to poor investment results, if our investment strategies perform poorly, we are more likely to be subject 
to litigation brought by dissatisfied clients. In addition, if clients are successful in claiming that their losses resulted from fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct, breach of 
contract or other similar misconduct, these clients may have remedies against us and/or our investment professionals under the federal securities laws and/or state law. 

We may not be able to maintain our current fee structure as a result of poor investment performance, competitive pressures or as a result of changes in our business mix, 
which could have a material adverse effect on our profit margins and results of operations.

In recent years, there has been a general trend toward lower fees in the investment management industry. Some of our investment strategies, because they tend to invest 
in larger-capitalization companies and are designed with larger capacity and to appeal to larger clients, have lower fee schedules. In order to maintain our fee structure in a 
competitive environment, we must be able to continue to provide investment returns and service that our clients believe justify our fees. If our investment strategies perform 
poorly, we may be forced to lower our fees in order to retain and attract assets to manage. Furthermore, if an increased part of our assets under management are invested in our 
larger capacity, lower fee strategies, our revenue could be adversely affected.
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The historical returns of our existing investment strategies may not be indicative of future results or of future results of investment strategies that we may develop. 

We have outlined the historical returns of our existing investment strategies under the “Business” heading in this report. The historical returns of our strategies should 
not be considered indicative of the future results of these strategies or of the results of any other strategies that we may develop in the future. The investment performance we 
achieve for our clients varies over time and the variance can be wide. The historical performance presented herein is as of December 31, 2021 and for the period then ended. 
The performance we achieve as of a subsequent date and for a subsequent period may be higher or lower and the difference may be material. Our strategies’ returns have 
benefited during some periods from investment opportunities and positive economic and market conditions. In certain periods, general economic and market conditions have 
negatively affected investment opportunities and our strategies’ returns. These negative conditions may occur again, and in the future, we may not be able to identify and invest 
in profitable investment opportunities within our current or future strategies. 

We derive a substantial portion of our revenues from a limited number of strategies and clients. 

As of December 31, 2021, $24.6 billion of our assets under management were concentrated in discretionary managed accounts, and the revenue from these 
discretionary managed accounts represented approximately 96% of our investment management fees for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. In addition, $0.5 billion 
of our assets under management were invested in private partnerships as of December 31, 2021, and the revenue from these private partnerships represented approximately 4% 
of our investment management fees for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021. As a result, a substantial portion of our operating results depends upon the performance of 
a limited number of investment strategies used to manage those discretionary managed accounts and private partnerships, and our ability to retain client assets. If a significant 
portion of the investors in our larger strategies withdrew their investments or terminated their investment management agreements for any reason, including poor investment 
performance or adverse market conditions, our revenues from those strategies would decline, which would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and 
financial condition. 

Furthermore, certain of our strategies may derive a significant portion of their total assets under management from assets of a single client or a small number of clients. 
If any such clients withdraw all or a portion of their assets under management, our business would be significantly affected, which would negatively impact our investment 
management fees and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. 

Substantially all of our revenue generating contracts and relationships may be terminated upon no notice. 

We derive our revenues principally from our assets under management, which may be reduced by our clients, or investors in the mutual funds we sub-advise, at any 
time. Any client may reallocate all or a portion of their assets under management with us at any time, on little to no notice. In addition, investors in the mutual funds we advise 
can redeem their investments in those funds at any time without prior notice. Further, our investment management agreements may be terminated or not renewed by our clients 
upon short notice or no notice, for any reason. The decrease in revenues that could result from a reduction in assets under management or the termination of a material client 
relationship or group of client relationships could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Our long-only, equity investment focus may not obtain attractive returns in the short-term or during certain market periods and may expose us to greater risk than if our 
investment strategies included non-equity securities or hedged positions. 

Even when securities prices are rising generally, portfolio performance may be affected by our investment approach. Our investment strategies employ a long-term 
investment approach, which has outperformed the market in some economic and market environments and underperformed it in others. A prolonged period in which the growth 
style of investing outperforms the value style may cause portions of our investment strategy to go out of favor with some clients, consultants, or third-party intermediaries. Poor 
performance relative to peers, coupled with changes in personnel, unfavorable market environments or other difficulties may result in significant withdrawals of client or 
investor assets, client or investor departures or otherwise result in a reduction in our assets under management.

Our products are best suited for investors with long-term investment horizons. In order for our classic value investment approach to yield attractive returns, we must 
typically hold securities for an average of over three years. Therefore, our investment strategies may not perform well during short periods of time. In addition, our strategies 
may not perform well during points in the economic cycle when value-oriented stocks are relatively less attractive. For instance, during the late stages of an economic cycle or 
during periods where the markets are focused on one investment thesis or sector, investors may purchase relatively expensive stocks in order to obtain access to above average 
growth, as was the case in the late 1990s.
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Our largest equity investment strategies hold long positions in publicly traded equity securities of companies across a wide range of market capitalizations, geographies 
and industries. Accordingly, when there is a general decline in the value of equity securities, each of our equity strategies is likely to perform poorly on an absolute basis. Aside 
from our privately managed funds and funds of funds, we do not have strategies that invest in privately held companies or take short positions in equity securities, which could 
offset some of the poor performance of our long-only, equity strategies. Even if our investment performance remains strong during declining market conditions relative to other 
long-only, equity strategies, investors may withdraw assets from our management or allocate a larger portion of their assets to non-long-only or non-equity strategies. In 
addition, the prices of equity securities may fluctuate more widely than the prices of other types of securities, making the level of our assets under management and related 
revenues more volatile. 

The performance of our investment strategies or the growth of our assets under management may be constrained by the unavailability of appropriate investment 
opportunities. 

Our investment performance depends in large part on our investment teams’ ability to identify appropriate investment opportunities. If any of our investment teams are 
unable to timely identify sufficiently appropriate investment opportunities for existing and new client assets, the investment performance of the relevant investment strategy 
could be adversely affected. In addition, if we determine that there are insufficient investment opportunities available for a strategy, we may restrict the strategy’s growth by 
closing the strategy to all or substantially all new investors or otherwise taking action to limit the flow of assets into the strategy. If we misjudge the point at which it would be 
optimal to limit access to or close a strategy, the strategy’s investment performance could be negatively impacted. The availability of sufficiently appropriate investment 
opportunities is influenced by a number of factors, including general market conditions. The risk that such opportunities may be unavailable is particularly acute with respect to 
our small cap and smid cap strategies that focus on small-cap investments, and is likely to increase as our assets under management increase, particularly if these increases 
occur very rapidly. If we are unable to identify appropriate investment opportunities, our growth and results of operations may be negatively affected.  As of the filing of this 
annual report, our small cap value strategy is closed to new investors.  The strategy may be reopened if one or more of our investors elects to rebalance its assets, which may 
occur at any time. 

Our investment process requires us to conduct extensive fundamental research on any company before investing in it, which may result in missed investment opportunities 
and reduce the performance of our investment strategies. 

Before we add any security to our portfolio, we undergo an in-depth research process, which takes a considerable amount of time, in order to understand the company 
and the business well enough to make an informed decision as to whether we are willing to own a significant position in a company, whose current earnings are below its 
historic norms and that does not yet have earnings visibility. However, the time we take to make this judgment may cause us to miss the opportunity to invest in a company that 
has a sharp and rapid earnings recovery. Any such missed investment opportunity could adversely impact the performance of our investment strategies. 

Our International Equity Strategies invest principally in the securities of non-U.S. companies, which involve foreign currency exchange, tax, political, social and economic 
uncertainties and risks. 

As of December 31, 2021, our international equity strategies, which invest primarily in companies domiciled outside of the United States, accounted for approximately 
1.1% of our assets under management. In addition, some of our other strategies also invest on a more limited basis in securities of non-U.S. companies. Fluctuations in foreign 
currency exchange rates could negatively affect the returns of our clients who are invested in these strategies. In addition, an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to 
non-U.S. currencies is likely to result in a decrease in the U.S. dollar value of our assets under management, which, in turn, could result in lower revenue since we report our 
financial results in U.S. dollars. 

Investments in non-U.S. issuers may also be affected by tax positions taken in countries or regions in which we are invested, as well as political, social and economic 
uncertainty, particularly as a result of the recent decline in economic conditions. Declining tax revenues may cause governments to assert their ability to tax the local gains 
and/or income of foreign investors (including our clients), which could adversely affect clients’ interests in investing outside the United States. Many financial markets are not 
as developed, or as efficient, as the U.S. financial markets, and, as a result, those markets may have limited liquidity and higher price volatility. Liquidity also may be adversely 
affected by political or economic events within a particular country, and our ability to dispose of an investment also may be adversely affected if we increase the size of our 
investments in smaller non-U.S. issuers. Non-U.S. legal and regulatory environments, including financial accounting standards and practices, also may be different, and there 
may be less publicly available information about such companies. These risks could adversely affect the performance of our International Equity Strategies and may be 
particularly acute in the emerging or less developed markets in which we invest. 
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Risks Related to Our Growth

Our efforts to establish new investment teams and strategies may be unsuccessful and could negatively impact our results of operations and our reputation.

As part of our growth strategy, we may seek to take advantage of opportunities to add new investment teams. To the extent we are unable to recruit and retain 
investment teams that complement our business model, we may not successfully diversify our investment strategies and client assets, which could have a material adverse effect 
on our business and future prospects. In addition, the costs associated with establishing a new team and investment strategy initially will exceed the revenues they generate. If 
any such new strategies perform poorly or fail to attract sufficient assets to manage, our results of operations and reputation and the reputation of our investment strategies may 
be negatively impacted.

We may enter into new lines of business, make strategic investments or acquisitions or enter into joint ventures, each of which may result in additional risks and 
uncertainties for our business.

Subject to market conditions, we may choose to grow our business through, among other things, (i) increasing assets under management in existing investment 
strategies, (ii) pursuing new investment strategies, which may be similar or complementary to our existing strategies or be wholly new initiatives, or (iii) consummating 
acquisitions of other investment advisers or entering into joint ventures.

Making strategic investments or acquisitions and entering into strategic relationships, joint ventures, or new lines of business, involve numerous risks and uncertainties, 
including those associated with investment of capital and other resources and with combining or integrating operational and management systems and controls and managing 
potential conflicts. Entry into certain lines of business may subject us to new laws and regulations and may lead to increased litigation and regulatory risk. If a new business 
generates insufficient revenues, produces investment losses, or if we are unable to efficiently manage our expanded operations, our results of operations will be adversely 
affected, and our reputation and business may be harmed. In the case of joint ventures, we are subject to additional risks and uncertainties in that we may be dependent upon, 
and subject to liability, losses or reputational damage relating to, systems, controls and personnel that are not under our control.

We may be unable to successfully execute strategic investments or acquisitions or enter into joint ventures, and we may fail to successfully integrate and operate new 
investment teams, which could limit our ability to grow assets under management and adversely affect our results of operations.

Although we periodically consider strategic investments or acquisitions as part of our growth strategy, we have not at this time entered into any binding agreements with 
respect to any strategic investments or acquisitions or any strategic relationships or joint ventures and we cannot assure you that we will actually make any additional 
acquisitions. Our ability to execute our acquisition strategy will depend on our ability to identify new lines of businesses or new investment teams that meet our investment 
criteria and to successfully negotiate with the owners/managers who may not wish to give up control of the target fund general partner or managing member, as the case may 
be. We cannot be certain that we will be successful in finding new investment teams or investing in new lines of business or that they will have favorable operating results 
following our acquisitions.

Moreover, our future acquisition strategies may focus on privately-held asset managers that pursue single strategy specialized investments. This approach presents 
challenges, including the lack of publicly available information, and greater risks than are generally associated with transactions with more traditional asset managers. The asset 
managers that we may acquire and their financial information may not be subject to the reporting requirements and other rules that govern public companies, including the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley. Moreover, such asset managers may not be subject to regulation under the Advisers Act and/or the Commodity Exchange Act 
at the time we acquire them. As a result, such asset managers could be more susceptible to irregular accounting or fraudulent practices. The targets we seek to acquire in the 
future may have shorter operating histories than us on which to estimate future performance and may not have significant or any operating revenues. They also may have a 
lower capitalization and fewer resources (including cash) and be more vulnerable to failure than traditional asset managers. We will be required to rely on the ability of the 
professionals employed by us to obtain adequate information to evaluate the manager affiliates we seek to acquire.

In addition, our ability to acquire asset managers on favorable terms and successfully integrate and operate them is subject to the following significant risks:
•we may acquire asset managers that are not accretive to our financial results upon acquisition, and we may not successfully manage acquired funds to meet our 
expectations;
•we may be unable to generate sufficient management fees from operations or obtain the necessary debt or equity financing to consummate an acquisition on favorable 
terms or at all;
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•agreements for the acquisition of such asset managers will typically be subject to customary conditions to closing, including satisfactory completion of due diligence 
investigations and negotiation of ancillary documentation, and we may spend significant time and money on potential acquisitions that we do not consummate;
•the process of acquiring or pursuing the acquisition of such asset managers may divert the attention of our management team from the operations of our business and our 
initial funds;
•we will need to attract, hire, train, supervise and manage new employees as a result of the acquisitions of asset managers;
•we may acquire such asset managers without any recourse, or with only limited recourse, for liabilities, whether known or unknown, such as claims against the former 
owners of the asset managers and claims for indemnification by the asset managers, limited partners and others indemnified by the former owners of the managers of the 
funds; and
•we may be unable to quickly and efficiently integrate new acquisitions into our existing operations.

If we cannot complete acquisitions of such asset managers on favorable terms, or integrate or operate new investment teams to meet our goals or expectations, our 
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, trading price of our common stock and ability to satisfy any debt service obligations and to pay distributions could be 
adversely affected. Additionally, any acquisitions that we make generally will not be subject to our stockholders’ consent. These factors increase the risk of investing in our 
Class A common stock.

The due diligence process that we undertake in connection with strategic investments or acquisitions or entry into joint ventures may not reveal all facts that may be 
relevant in connection with an investment, which could subject us to unknown liabilities.

In connection with strategic investments, acquisitions or entry into joint ventures, we conduct due diligence that we deem reasonable and appropriate based on the facts 
and circumstances applicable to such investments, acquisitions or joint ventures and expect to use our resources and oversight to enhance the risk management functions and 
diligence of our business and any investments going forward. When conducting due diligence, we have been required and will be required to evaluate important and complex 
business, financial, tax, accounting and legal issues. Outside consultants, legal advisers, accountants and investment banks may be involved in the due diligence process in the 
future in varying degrees depending on the type of investment. When conducting due diligence and making an assessment regarding a strategic investment, acquisition or joint 
venture, we have and will continue to rely on the resources available to us, including information provided by the target of the strategic investment, acquisition or joint venture, 
in some circumstances, third-party investigations. The due diligence investigations that we have carried out or will carry out with respect to any strategic investment, acquisition 
or joint venture may not reveal or highlight all relevant facts that may be necessary or helpful in evaluating the strategic investment, acquisition or joint venture, which could 
subject us to unknown liabilities that could adversely affect our profitability, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, such investigations will not necessarily 
result in the strategic investment, acquisition or joint venture being successful.

The significant growth we have experienced may be difficult to sustain.

Our assets under management have increased from $7.8 billion as of December 31, 2006 to $32.3 billion as of December 31, 2021. The absolute measure of our assets 
under management represents a significant rate of growth that may be difficult to sustain. The growth of our business will depend on, among other things, our ability to retain 
key investment professionals, to devote sufficient resources to maintaining existing investment strategies and to selectively develop new investment strategies. Our business 
growth also will depend on our success in achieving superior investment performance from our investment strategies, as well as our ability to maintain and extend our 
distribution capabilities, to deal with changing market conditions, to maintain adequate financial and business controls and to comply with new legal and regulatory 
requirements arising in response to both the increased sophistication of the investment management industry and the significant market and economic events of the last few 
years. If we believe that in order to continue to produce attractive returns from some or all of our investment strategies we should limit the growth of those strategies, we have in 
the past chosen, and in the future may choose, to limit or close access to those strategies to some or most categories of new investors or clients or otherwise take action to slow 
the flow of assets into those strategies.

In addition, we expect there to be significant demand on our infrastructure and investment teams and we may not be able to manage our growing business effectively or 
be able to sustain the level of growth we have achieved historically, and any failure to do so could adversely affect our ability to generate revenue and control our expenses.
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Risks Related to our Key Professionals 

The loss of key investment professionals or members of our senior management team could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

We depend on the skills and expertise of our investment professionals and our success depends on our ability to retain the key members of our senior management and 
investment teams, who possess substantial experience in investing and have been primarily responsible for the historically strong investment performance we have achieved. In 
particular, we depend on our portfolio managers. As of December 31, 2021, $15 billion, representing 47% of our assets under management, were managed using one of our 
proprietary equity strategies. Our five largest strategies as of December 31, 2021 were Small Cap Value, Equity Income, Large Cap Value, Multi Cap Value and Small Cap 
Opportunity which represented 27%, 18%, 18%, 12% and 8% of assets under management, respectively. Each of these five strategies has been managed by its current portfolio 
manager since its inception at Silvercrest. 

Because of the long tenure and stable track record of our portfolio managers, our clients may attribute the investment performance we have achieved to these 
individuals. While we have generally experienced very few departures among our portfolio managers, there can be no assurance that this stability will continue in the future. 
The departure of one of a strategy’s portfolio managers could cause clients to withdraw funds from the strategy, which would reduce our assets under management, our 
investment management and other fees and, if we were not able to reduce our expenses sufficiently, our net income, and these reductions could be material to our business. The 
departure of one of a strategy’s portfolio managers also could cause clients or investors to refrain from allocating additional funds to the strategy or delay such allocation of 
additional funds until a sufficient track record under a new portfolio manager or managers has been established. This would have a negative effect on the future growth of our 
assets under management and, therefore, our results of operations. 

We depend on the contributions of our senior management team led by Richard R. Hough III, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, as well as other members of 
our senior management team. In addition, our senior marketing and client service personnel have direct contact with our clients and their consultants and advisors and other key 
individuals within each of our distribution channels. The loss of any of these key professionals could limit our ability to successfully execute our business strategy, prevent us 
from sustaining the historically strong investment performance and adversely affect our ability to retain or attract client assets. 

If any member of our senior management or a key investment professional were to join a competitor or form a competing company, some of our current clients or other 
prominent members of the investing community could choose to invest with that competitor rather than us. 

Certain of our investment or management professionals have resigned and joined a competitor, and others may resign at any time, join our competitors or form 
competing companies. Although the unvested shares of Class A common stock and Class B units held by our principals are subject to forfeiture, and the vested shares of Class 
A common stock and Class B units held by our principals are subject to repurchase, if the principal voluntarily resigns or retires and competes with us while employed or during 
the 12-month period following termination of employment, these forfeiture and repurchase provisions may not be enforceable or may not be enforceable to their full extent. We 
do not carry “key man” insurance on any of our key investment professionals that would provide us with proceeds in the event of the death or disability of any of the key 
members of our investment or management teams. 
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The professional reputations, expertise in investing and client relationships of our senior management and key investment professionals are important elements to 
executing our business strategy and attracting and retaining clients. Accordingly, the retention of our senior management and key investment professionals is a key element to 
our future success. There is no guarantee that they will not resign, join our competitors or form a competing company. The terms of the second amended and restated limited 
partnership agreement of Silvercrest L.P. restrict each of the principals of Silvercrest L.P. from soliciting our clients or other employees during the term of their employment 
with us and for 18 months thereafter. In addition to the legal rights and remedies available to us to enforce these restrictive covenants, the penalty for a breach of these restrictive 
covenants or, if a principal voluntarily resigns or retires from our company, for competing with us during the 12-month period following termination of employment, will be the 
forfeiture of all of the unvested shares of Class A common stock and Class B units of the offending party and his or her permitted transferees and, at the option of Silvercrest 
L.P., the required sale to Silvercrest L.P. of all of the vested Class B units of the offending party and his or her permitted transferees at a purchase price equal to the lesser of (i) 
the aggregate capital account balance of the offending party and his or her permitted transferees in Silvercrest L.P. and (ii) the purchase price paid by the offending party to first 
acquire the Class B units, and, at our option, the required sale to us of all of the Class A common stock collectively held by the offending party and his or her permitted 
transferees at a purchase price equal to the purchase price paid by the offending party to first acquire the Class B units for which such shares of Class A common stock had been 
exchanged. Although we also would likely seek specific performance of these restrictive covenants, there can be no assurance that we would be successful in obtaining this 
relief. Further, after this post-employment restrictive period, we will not be able to prohibit a departed professional from soliciting our clients or employees. If any of our 
principals were to join a competitor or form a competing company, some of our current clients or other prominent members of the investing community could choose to invest 
with that competitor rather than us or otherwise withdraw assets from our company which could have a negative impact on our results of operations. 

Competition for qualified investment, management and marketing and client service professionals is intense and we may fail to successfully attract and retain qualified 
personnel in the future. 

Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel will depend heavily on the amount and structure of compensation and opportunities for equity ownership we offer. 
Historically we have offered key employees equity ownership through interests in Silvercrest L.P. Those key employees who are currently limited partners of Silvercrest L.P. 
hold these interests in the form of Class B units. We expect our compensation structure to include a combination of cash and equity-based incentives as appropriate. Although 
we intend for overall compensation levels to remain commensurate with amounts paid to our key employees in the past, we may not be successful in designing and 
implementing an attractive compensation model. Any cost-reduction initiative or adjustments or reductions to compensation could negatively impact our ability to retain key 
personnel. In addition, changes to our management structure, corporate culture and corporate governance arrangements could negatively impact our ability to retain key 
personnel. If we are unable to retain key personnel, our results of operations may be negatively affected. 

Risks Related to our Structure

The rights of holders of Class B units of Silvercrest L.P. may give rise to conflicts of interest.

As a result of our principals holding all or a portion of their ownership interests in our business through Silvercrest L.P., rather than through Silvercrest, these existing 
owners may have other conflicting interests with holders of our Class A common stock. For example, our principals may have different tax positions from holders of our Class 
A common stock which could influence their decisions regarding whether and when we should dispose of assets, whether and when we should incur new or refinance existing 
indebtedness, especially in light of the existence of the tax receivable agreement that was entered into in connection with our initial public offering, and whether and when our 
company should terminate the tax receivable agreement and accelerate its obligations thereunder. Also, the structuring of future transactions may take into consideration our 
principals’ tax or other considerations even where no similar benefit would accrue to us.

Our ability to pay regular dividends to our stockholders is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and may be limited by our structure and applicable provisions of 
Delaware law.

We intend to declare cash dividends on our Class A common stock. However, our board of directors may, in its sole discretion, change the amount or frequency of 
dividends or discontinue the payment of dividends entirely. In addition, because of our structure, we will be dependent upon the ability of our subsidiaries to generate earnings 
and cash flows and distribute them to us so that we may pay dividends to our stockholders. We expect to cause Silvercrest L.P., which is a Delaware limited partnership, to 
make distributions to its partners, including us, in an amount sufficient for us to pay dividends. However, its ability to make such distributions will be subject to its subsidiaries’ 
operating results, cash requirements and financial condition, the applicable provisions of Delaware law that may limit the amount of funds available for distribution to its 
partners, its compliance with covenants and financial ratios related to current and future indebtedness (including the credit facility entered into in June 2013 by the subsidiaries 
of Silvercrest L.P.), its other agreements with third parties, as well as its obligation to make tax distributions under the second amended and restated limited 
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partnership agreement (which distributions would reduce the cash available for distributions by Silvercrest L.P. to us). As a Delaware corporation, our ability to pay cash 
dividends to our Class A common stockholders with the distributions received by us as general partner of Silvercrest L.P. also will be subject to the applicable provisions of 
Delaware law. Also, each of the companies in the corporate chain must manage its assets, liabilities and working capital in order to meet all of its cash obligations, including the 
payment of dividends or distributions. As a consequence of these various limitations and restrictions, we may not be able to make, or may have to reduce or eliminate, the 
payment of dividends on our Class A common stock. Any change in the level of our dividends or the suspension of the payment thereof could adversely affect the market price 
of our Class A common stock.

Our ability to pay taxes and expenses, including payments under the tax receivable agreement, may be limited by our structure.

We have no material assets other than our ownership of Class A units of Silvercrest L.P. and have no independent means of generating revenue. Silvercrest L.P. is 
treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, is not subject to U.S. federal income tax. Instead, taxable income is allocated to holders of its 
partnership units, including us. Accordingly, we will incur income taxes on our proportionate share of any net taxable income of Silvercrest L.P. and also will incur expenses 
related to our operations. Under the terms of its second amended and restated limited partnership agreement, Silvercrest L.P. is obligated to make tax distributions to holders of 
its partnership units, including us. In addition to tax expenses, we also will incur expenses related to our operations, including expenses under the tax receivable agreement, 
which we expect will be significant. We intend to cause Silvercrest L.P. to make distributions in an amount sufficient to allow us to pay our taxes and operating expenses, 
including any payments due under the tax receivable agreement. However, its ability to make such distributions will be subject to various limitations and restrictions as set forth 
in the preceding risk factor. If, as a consequence of these various limitations and restrictions, we do not have sufficient funds to pay tax or other liabilities to fund our 
operations, we may need to borrow funds, which could have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition. To the extent we are unable to make payments 
under the tax receivable agreement for any reason, such payments will be deferred and will accrue interest at LIBOR plus 300 basis points until paid.

We will be required to pay principals for certain tax benefits we may claim, and the amounts we may pay could be significant.

The corporate reorganization of Silvercrest L.P. resulted in favorable tax attributes for us. In addition, future exchanges of Class B units of Silvercrest L.P. held by our 
principals for shares of our Class A common stock are expected to produce additional favorable tax attributes for us. When we acquire Class B units from existing principals, 
both the existing basis and the anticipated basis adjustments are likely to increase (for tax purposes) depreciation and amortization deductions allocable to us from Silvercrest 
L.P. and therefore reduce the amount of income tax we would otherwise be required to pay in the future. This increase in tax basis also may decrease gain (or increase loss) on 
future dispositions of certain capital assets to the extent the increased tax basis is allocated to those capital assets.

The tax receivable agreement, which we entered into with our principals, generally provides for the payment by us to each of them of 85% of the amount of the cash 
savings, if any, in U.S. federal and state income tax that we actually realize (or are deemed to realize in certain circumstances) in periods after our initial public offering as a 
result of (i) any step-up in tax basis in Silvercrest L.P.’s assets resulting from (a) the purchases or exchanges of Class B units (along with the corresponding shares of our Class 
B common stock) for shares of our Class A common stock and (b) payments under this tax receivable agreement; (ii) certain prior distributions by Silvercrest L.P. and prior 
transfers or exchanges of Class B units which resulted in tax basis adjustments to the assets of Silvercrest L.P.; and (iii) tax benefits related to imputed interest deemed to be 
paid by us as a result of this tax receivable agreement.

We expect that the payments we will be required to make under the tax receivable agreement will be substantial. Assuming no material changes in the relevant tax law 
and that we earn sufficient taxable income to realize all tax benefits that are subject to the tax receivable agreement, we expect that the reduction in tax payments for us 
associated with (i) the purchase of Class B units from certain of the limited partners of Silvercrest L.P. with a portion of the net proceeds of our initial public offering and (ii) 
exchanges of Class B units subsequent to our initial public offering as described above would aggregate approximately $10.8 million over a 15-year period. Under such 
scenario we would be required to pay the holders of Class B limited partnership units approximately $9.2 million, over a  15-year period. The actual amounts may materially 
differ from these hypothetical amounts, as potential future reductions in tax payments for us and tax receivable agreement payments by us will be calculated using the market 
value of our Class A common stock and the prevailing tax rates at the time of the exchange and will be dependent on us generating sufficient future taxable income to realize 
the benefit.

The actual increase in tax basis, as well as the amount and timing of any payments under this agreement, will vary depending upon a number of factors, including the 
timing of exchanges by principals, the price of our Class A common stock at the time of the exchange, the extent to which such exchanges are taxable, the amount and timing of 
the taxable income we generate in the future and the tax rate then applicable, as well as the portion of our payments under the tax receivable agreement constituting imputed 
interest or depreciable or amortizable basis. Payments under the tax receivable agreement will be based on the tax reporting positions that we determine. Although we are not 
aware of any issue that would cause the Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, to challenge a tax basis 
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increase or other tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement, we will not be reimbursed for any payments previously made under the tax receivable agreement. As a 
result, in certain circumstances, payments could be made under the tax receivable agreement in excess of the benefits that we actually realize in respect of the attributes to which 
the tax receivable agreement relates.

In certain cases, payments under the tax receivable agreement to our principals may be accelerated and/or significantly exceed the actual benefits we realize in respect of 
the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement.

The tax receivable agreement provides that upon certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business combinations or other changes of control, or if, at any time, we 
elect an early termination of the tax receivable agreement, our (or our successor’s) obligations under the tax receivable agreement (with respect to all Class B units held by our 
principals, whether or not such Class B units have been exchanged or acquired before or after such transaction) would be based on certain assumptions, including that we would 
have sufficient taxable income to fully avail ourselves of the deductions arising from the increased tax deductions and tax basis and other benefits related to entering into the tax 
receivable agreement. As a result, (i) we could be required to make payments under the tax receivable agreement that are greater than or less than the specified percentage of the 
actual benefits we realize in respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement, and (ii) if we elect to terminate the tax receivable agreement early, we would be 
required to make an immediate payment equal to the present value of the anticipated future tax benefits, which payment may be made significantly in advance of the actual 
realization of such future benefits. In these situations, our obligations under the tax receivable agreement could have a substantial negative impact on our liquidity and could 
have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business combinations or other changes of control. There can be no assurance 
that we will be able to finance our obligations under the tax receivable agreement. If we were to elect to terminate the tax receivable agreement, we estimate that we would be 
required to pay approximately $9.2 million in the aggregate under the tax receivable agreement.

If we were deemed an investment company under the Investment Company Act as a result of our ownership interest in Silvercrest L.P., applicable restrictions could make it 
impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We do not believe that we are an “investment company” under the Investment Company Act. Because we, as the sole general partner of Silvercrest L.P., control and 
operate Silvercrest L.P., we believe that our interest in Silvercrest L.P. is not an “investment security” as that term is used in the Investment Company Act. If we were to cease 
participation in the management of Silvercrest L.P., our interest in Silvercrest L.P. could be deemed an “investment security” for purposes of the Investment Company Act. A 
person may be an “investment company” if it owns investment securities having a value exceeding 40% of the value of its total assets (exclusive of U.S. government securities 
and cash items). Our sole asset is our general partner interest in Silvercrest L.P. A determination that such investment was an investment security could cause us to be deemed 
an investment company under the Investment Company Act and to become subject to the registration and other requirements of the Investment Company Act. In addition, we do 
not believe that we are an investment company under Section 3(b)(1) of the Investment Company Act because we are not primarily engaged in a business that causes us to fall 
within the definition of “investment company.” We and Silvercrest L.P. intend to conduct our operations so that we will not be deemed an investment company. However, if we 
were to be deemed an investment company, restrictions imposed by the Investment Company Act, including limitations on our capital structure and our ability to transact with 
affiliates, could make it impractical for us to continue our business as contemplated and could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We provide a broad range of services to the Silvercrest Funds and family office services, which may expose us to liability.

We provide a broad range of administrative services to the management of certain of our company’s funds of funds and other investment funds (collectively, the 
“Silvercrest Funds”), including preparation or supervision of the preparation of some of the Silvercrest Funds’ regulatory filings, provision of shareholder services and 
communications, accounting services including the supervision of the activities of Silvercrest Funds’ accounting services providers in the calculation of the funds’ net asset 
values, supervision of the preparation of Silvercrest Funds’ financial statements and coordination of the audits of those financial statements, tax services, including supervision 
of tax return preparation and supervision of the work of Silvercrest Funds’ other service providers. If it were determined that the Silvercrest Funds failed to comply with 
applicable regulatory requirements as a result of action or failure to act by our employees, we could be responsible for losses suffered or penalties imposed. 

We also provide a range of family office services to some of our clients, including philanthropic, estate and wealth planning services, tax planning and preparation, 
financial statement, bill paying and record keeping services, bank loan arrangement and payment services and property and casualty insurance review. If we fail to perform 
these services properly, we could incur costs and reputational harm for which we might be liable. Further, we could have penalties imposed on us, be required to pay fines or be 
subject to private litigation, any of which could decrease our future income, or negatively affect our current business or our future growth prospects.
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Risks Related to the Regulatory Environment in Which we Operate 

The regulatory environment in which we operate is subject to continuous change, and regulatory developments designed to increase oversight may adversely affect our 
business. 

The legislative and regulatory environment in which we operate has undergone significant changes in the recent past, including additional filings with the SEC and the 
CFTC required by investment advisors, which have resulted in increased costs to the Company. Significant regulatory changes in our industry may to continue, which would 
likely subject industry participants to additional, more costly and generally more detailed regulation. New laws or regulations, or changes in the enforcement of existing laws or 
regulations, applicable to us and our clients may adversely affect our business. Our ability to function in this environment will depend on our ability to monitor and promptly 
react to legislative and regulatory changes. There have been a number of highly publicized regulatory inquiries that have focused on the investment management industry. 
These inquiries already have resulted in increased scrutiny of the industry and new rules and regulations for investment advisers. This regulatory scrutiny may limit our ability 
to engage in certain activities that might be beneficial to our stockholders. 

In addition, acts of serious fraud in the investment management industry and perceived lapses in regulatory oversight, U.S. and non-U.S. governmental and regulatory 
authorities may increase regulatory oversight of our businesses. We may be adversely affected as a result of new or revised legislation or regulations imposed by the SEC, the 
CFTC, other U.S. or non-U.S. governmental regulatory authorities or self-regulatory organizations that supervise the financial markets. We also may be adversely affected by 
changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules by these governmental authorities and self-regulatory organizations, as well as by U.S. and non-U.S. 
courts. It is impossible to determine the extent of the impact of any new laws, regulations or initiatives that may be proposed on us or the markets in which we trade, or whether 
any of the proposals will become law. Compliance with any new laws or regulations could add to our compliance burden and costs and affect the manner in which we conduct 
business.

Failure to comply with “pay to play” regulations implemented by the SEC and certain states, and changes to the “pay to play” regulatory regimes, could adversely affect 
our business.

The SEC and several states have initiated investigations alleging that certain private equity firms and hedge funds or agents acting on their behalf have paid money to 
current or former government officials or their associates in exchange for improperly soliciting contracts with state pension funds. The SEC has also recently initiated a similar 
investigation into contracts awarded by sovereign wealth funds. The SEC approved Rule 206(4)-5 under the Advisers Act regarding “pay to play” practices by investment 
advisers involving campaign contributions and other payments to government officials able to exert influence on potential government entity clients. Among other restrictions, 
the rule prohibits investment advisers from providing advisory services for compensation to a government entity for two years, subject to very limited exceptions, after the 
investment adviser, its senior executives or its personnel involved in soliciting investments from government entities have made contributions to certain candidates and officials 
in a position to influence the hiring of an investment adviser by such government entity. Advisers are required to implement compliance policies designed, among other matters, 
to track contributions by certain of the adviser’s employees and engagements of third parties that solicit government entities (and political action committees controlled by such 
persons) and to keep certain records in order to enable the SEC to determine compliance with the rule. Additionally, California enacted legislation that requires placement agents 
(including in certain cases employees of investment managers) who solicit funds from California state retirement systems, such as the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System and the California State Teachers’ Retirement System, to register as lobbyists, thereby becoming subject to increased reporting requirements and prohibited from 
receiving contingent compensation for soliciting investments from California state retirement systems. There also has been similar rulemaking in New York and other states. 
Such additional regulations may require the attention of senior management and may result in fines if any of our funds are deemed to have violated any regulations, thereby 
imposing additional expenses on us. Any failure on our part to comply with these rules could cause us to lose compensation for our advisory services or expose us to significant 
penalties and reputational damage. 

We could be subject to regulatory investigations, which could harm our reputation and cause our funds to lose existing investors or us to lose existing accounts or fail to 
attract new investors or accounts.

If we fail to comply with applicable laws or regulations could result in fines, suspensions of individual employees or other sanctions. Even if an investigation or 
proceeding did not result in a fine or sanction or the fine or sanction imposed against us or our employees by a regulator were small in monetary amount, the adverse publicity 
relating to an investigation, proceeding or imposition of these fines or sanctions could harm our reputation and cause our funds to lose existing investors or us to lose existing 
accounts or fail to attract new investors or accounts.
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Risk Related Generally to our Business 

Our failure to comply with investment guidelines set by our clients and limitations imposed by applicable law could result in damage awards against us and a loss of our 
assets under management, either of which could adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition. 

Certain clients who retain us to manage assets on their behalf specify guidelines regarding investment allocation and strategy that we are required to follow in managing 
their portfolios. In addition, the boards of mutual funds we sub-advise generally establish similar guidelines regarding the investment of assets in those funds. We are also 
required to invest the mutual funds’ assets in accordance with limitations under the Investment Company Act, and applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Our 
failure to comply with any of these guidelines and other limitations could result in losses to clients which, depending on the circumstances, could result in our obligation to make 
clients whole for such losses. If we believed that the circumstances did not justify a reimbursement, or clients believed the reimbursement we offered was insufficient, they 
could seek to recover damages from us, withdraw assets from our management or terminate their investment advisory agreement with us. Any of these events could harm our 
reputation and adversely affect our business. 

Operational risks, including the threat of cyber-attacks, may disrupt our business, breach our clients’ security, result in losses or limit our growth. 

We are heavily dependent on the capacity and reliability of the communications, information and technology systems supporting our operations, whether developed, 
owned and operated by us or by third parties. Operational risks, such as trading or operational errors or interruption of our financial, accounting, trading, compliance and other 
data processing systems, whether caused by the failure to prevent or mitigate data loss or other security breaches, or other cyber security threats or attacks, including breaches of 
our vendors’ technology and systems, fire or other natural disaster, power or telecommunications failure, act of terrorism or war or otherwise, could result in a disruption of our 
business, liability to clients, regulatory intervention or reputational damage, and thus have a material adverse effect on our business. Some types of operational risks, including, 
for example, trading errors, may be increased in periods of increased volatility, which can magnify the cost of an error. Cyber security risks relating to our business primarily 
involve the potential security breaches of our clients’ personal and financial information and illegal use thereof through system-wide “hacking” or other means. While we have 
never had any cyber security threat or attack on our technology systems, this may occur in the future. 

Although we have back-up systems and cyber security and consumer protection measures in place, our back-up procedures, cyber defenses and capabilities in the event 
of a failure, interruption, or breach of security may not be adequate. Insurance and other safeguards we use may not be available or may only partially reimburse us for our 
losses related to operational failures or cyber-attacks. In addition, we may choose to reimburse a client in the event of a trading error or under other circumstances, even if we are 
not legally required to do so, and any such reimbursements could adversely affect our results of operations. 

As a public company and as our client base, number of investment strategies and/or physical locations increase, developing and maintaining our operational systems and 
infrastructure and protecting our systems from cyber security attacks and threats may become increasingly challenging and costly, which could constrain our ability to expand 
our businesses. Any upgrades or expansions to our operations and/or technology to accommodate increased volumes of transactions or otherwise may require significant 
expenditures and may increase the probability that we will suffer system interruptions and failures. We also depend substantially on our New York office where a majority of 
our employees, administration and technology resources are located, for the continued operation of our business. Any significant disruption to that office could have a material 
adverse effect on us.

Improper disclosure of personal data could result in liability and harm our reputation. 

We and our service providers store and process personal client information. It is possible that the security controls, training and other processes with respect to personal 
data may not prevent the improper disclosure of client information. Such disclosure could harm our reputation as well and subject us to liability, resulting in increased costs or 
loss of revenue.  

Employee misconduct could expose us to significant legal liability and reputational harm. 

We are vulnerable to reputational harm because we operate in an industry in which personal relationships, integrity and the confidence of our clients are of critical 
importance. Our employees may engage in misconduct that could subject us to regulatory sanctions and to suffer serious reputational harm (as a consequence of the negative 
perception resulting from such activities), which could adversely affect our financial position, client relationships and ability to attract new clients. 
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Our business often requires that we deal with confidential information. If our employees were to improperly use or disclose this information, even if inadvertently, we 
could be subject to legal action and suffer serious harm to our reputation, financial position and current and future business relationships. It is not always possible to deter 
employee misconduct, and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this activity may not always be effective. In addition, the SEC has increased its scrutiny of the use of 
non-public information obtained from corporate insiders by professional investors. Misconduct by our employees, or even unsubstantiated allegations of misconduct, could 
result in an adverse effect on our reputation and our business.  

Failure to properly address conflicts of interest could harm our reputation, business and results of operations. 

As we expand the scope of our business and our client base, we must continue to monitor and address any conflicts between our interests and those of our clients. The 
SEC and other regulators have increased their scrutiny of potential conflicts of interest, and we have implemented procedures and controls that we believe are reasonably 
designed to address these issues. However, appropriately dealing with conflicts of interest is complex, and if we fail, or appear to fail, to deal appropriately with conflicts of 
interest, we could face reputational damage, litigation or regulatory proceedings or penalties, any of which may adversely affect our results of operations. 

The investment management industry faces substantial litigation risks that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of 
operations or cause significant reputational harm to us. 

We depend on our network of relationships and on our reputation in order to attract and retain client assets. Our investment decisions could result in substantial losses to 
our clients. If our clients suffer significant losses or are otherwise dissatisfied with our services, we could be subject to legal liabilities or actions alleging negligent misconduct, 
breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract, unjust enrichment and/or fraud. These risks are often difficult to assess or quantify and their existence and magnitude often remain 
unknown for substantial periods of time, even after an action has been commenced. We may incur significant legal expenses in defending against litigation commenced by a 
client or regulatory authority. Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or 
results of operations or cause significant reputational harm to us. 

The investment management industry is intensely competitive. 

The investment management industry is intensely competitive, and our ability to compete effectively could materially impact our results of operations.  Competitiveness 
is based on various factors, including investment performance, investment management fee rates, continuity of investment professionals and client relationships, the quality of 
services provided to clients, reputation, continuity of selling arrangements with intermediaries and differentiated products. Several additional factors, including the following, 
increase our competitive risks: 

•a number of our competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing, name recognition and other resources and more personnel than we do; 

•potential competitors have a relatively low cost of entering the investment management industry; 

•the recent trend toward consolidation in the investment management industry and the securities business in general, has served to increase the size and strength of a 
number of our competitors; 

•some investors may prefer to invest with a non-publicly traded investment manager due to the perception that a publicly traded asset manager may prioritize the 
manager’s own growth to the detriment of client investment performance; 

•some competitors may have different investment styles or invest in alternative asset classes that the markets may perceive as more attractive than our investment 
strategies; 

•other industry participants, hedge funds and alternative asset managers may seek to recruit our investment professionals; and 

•some competitors charge lower fees for their investment services than we do. 
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Reductions in business sourced through third-party distribution channels, or their poor reviews of us or our products, could materially reduce our revenue and ability to 
attract new clients. 

Accounts sourced through consultant-led searches have been key to our future growth. We also have accessed the high-net-worth segment of the investing community 
through relationships with well-respected wealth advisers who use our investment strategies in investment programs they construct for their clients. As of December 31, 2021 
we had approximately $5.1 billion in assets under management from third party distribution channels, which constituted approximately 16% of our total assets under 
management. Our failure to successfully maintain these third-party distribution channels could materially and adversely affect our business. In addition, poor reviews or 
evaluations by any of these parties, whether of a particular product or of us, could result in client withdrawals and impact our ability to attract new assets through such 
intermediaries. 

A change of control could result in termination of our sub-investment advisory and investment advisory agreements. 

Pursuant to the Advisers Act, each of our investment advisory agreements for the separate accounts we manage may not be assigned without the consent of the client. In 
addition, under the Investment Company Act, each of the investment advisory agreements with SEC registered mutual funds that we sub-advise automatically terminates in the 
event of its assignment. A sale of a controlling block of our voting securities and certain other transactions would be deemed an “assignment” pursuant to the Advisers Act and 
the Investment Company Act. Such an assignment may be deemed to occur in the event that the holders of the Class B units of Silvercrest L.P. exchange enough of their Class 
B units for shares of our Class A common stock and dispose of such shares of Class A common stock such that they no longer own a controlling interest in us, even if no other 
person or group acquires a controlling interest. If such a deemed assignment occurs, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain the necessary consents from our 
clients and, unless the necessary approvals and consents are obtained, the deemed assignment could adversely affect our ability to continue managing client accounts, resulting 
in the loss of assets under management and a corresponding loss of revenue. 

If our techniques for managing risk are ineffective, we may be exposed to material unanticipated losses. 

In order to manage the significant risks inherent in our business, we must maintain effective policies, procedures and systems that enable us to identify, monitor and 
control our exposure to operational, legal and reputational risks. Our risk management methods may prove to be ineffective due to their design, implementation or insufficient 
scope, or as a result of the lack of adequate, accurate or timely information or otherwise. If our risk management efforts are ineffective, we could suffer losses that could have a 
material adverse effect on our financial condition or operating results. Additionally, we could be subject to litigation, particularly from our clients, and sanctions or fines from 
regulators or self-regulatory organizations. Our techniques for managing risks in client portfolios may not fully mitigate the risk exposure in all economic or market 
environments, or against all types of risk, including risks that we might fail to identify or anticipate. 

Our reliance on prime brokers, custodians, administrators and other agents subjects us to certain risks relating to their execution of transactions and their solvency, and 
the failure by or insolvency of, any such person could adversely affect our business and financial performance. 

Our business generally depends on the services of prime brokers, custodians, administrators and other agents to carry out securities transactions. For example, in the 
event of the insolvency of a prime broker and/or custodian, our funds might not be able to recover equivalent assets in full as they will rank among the prime broker’s and 
custodian’s unsecured creditors in relation to assets, which the prime broker or a custodian borrows, lends or otherwise uses. In addition, our funds’ cash held with a prime 
broker or a custodian will not be segregated from the prime broker’s or custodian’s own cash, and our funds will therefore rank as unsecured creditors in relation thereto. 

If we incur indebtedness or issue senior equity securities, we will be exposed to additional risks, including the typical risks associated with leverage. 

The amount of leverage that we employ will depend on our board of directors’ assessment of market and other factors at the time of any proposed borrowing. We may 
also use leverage to make certain investments. There is no assurance that a leveraging strategy will be successful. Leverage involves risks and special considerations that 
include the following: 

•there is a likelihood of greater volatility of net asset value of our business and market price of our common stock than a comparable business without leverage; 

•we will be exposed to increased risk of loss if we incur debt or issue senior equity securities to finance acquisitions or investments because a decrease in the value of our 
investments would have a greater negative impact on our returns, and therefore the value of our Class A common stock than if we did not use leverage; 
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•it is likely that such debt or equity securities will be governed by instruments containing covenants restricting our operating flexibility. These covenants may impose 
asset overage or investment composition requirements that are more stringent than those of our business plan and could require our business to liquidate investments at an 
inopportune time; 

•if we are required to pledge a substantial portion of our assets in order to obtain debt financing, it may limit our ability to enter into subsequent financings at attractive 
terms; 

•we, and indirectly our investors, will bear the cost of leverage, including issuance and servicing costs; and 

•any preferred, convertible or exchangeable securities that we issue may have rights, preferences and privileges more favorable than those of our common stock. 

In addition, the credit facility entered into in June 2013, as explained below, by all of the subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. and guaranteed by Silvercrest L.P. contains 
financial and other restrictive covenants, including restrictions on distributions, incurrence of additional indebtedness, mergers and certain other dispositions of our business and 
sale of assets. 

Any requirement that we sell assets at a loss to redeem or pay interest on any leverage or for other reasons would reduce our equity value and also make it difficult for 
our net asset value to recover. Our board of directors, in its best judgment, nevertheless may determine to use leverage if it expects that the benefits to our common stockholders 
of maintaining the leveraged position will outweigh the risks. General interest rate fluctuations may have a substantial negative impact on our investments and investment 
opportunities. In addition, an increase in interest rates would make it more expensive for us to use debt to finance these investments. 

The interest rates under our credit agreement may be impacted by the phase-out of the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

LIBOR is the basic rate of interest used in lending between banks on the London interbank market and is widely used as a reference for setting the interest rates on loans 
globally. We use LIBOR as a reference rate to calculate interest under certain borrowings under our credit facility. In 2017, the United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authority, 
which regulates LIBOR, announced that it intends to phase out LIBOR by the end of 2021. The U.S. Federal Reserve, in conjunction with the Alternative Reference Rates 
Committee, a steering committee comprised of large U.S. financial institutions, identified the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) as the preferred alternative reference 
rate to U.S. dollar LIBOR and recommended a paced transition plan that involves the creation of a reference rate based on SOFR by the end of 2021. SOFR is a more generic 
measure than LIBOR and considers the cost of borrowing cash overnight, collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities. Given the inherent differences between LIBOR and SOFR 
or any other alternative benchmark rate that may be established, there are many uncertainties regarding a transition from LIBOR. Our credit facility contains a fallback 
provision providing for alternative rate calculations in the event LIBOR is unavailable, prior to any LIBOR rate transition. As a result, our level of interest payments we incur 
may change and the new rates we incur may not be as favorable to us as those in effect prior to any LIBOR phase-out.

Future financings could adversely affect us and our common stockholders by diluting existing stockholders or by placing restrictions on our ability to run our business, 
including making distributions to unitholders. 

The subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. entered into a credit facility in June 2013, which was amended in July 2019, pursuant to which the subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. 
will be able to borrow up to $25.5 million in principal amount from time to time for working capital needs and other purposes. Although we believe that available borrowings 
under our credit facility and future cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet our working capital requirements for normal operations pursuant to our business plan, 
these sources of capital may not fully fund our growth strategy in the immediate future. If we decide to pursue future acquisitions, we may draw down proceeds from our 
existing credit facilities and then raise additional capital through the incurrence of long-term or short-term indebtedness or the issuance of additional equity securities in private 
or public transactions. This could result in dilution of existing common stockholders’ equity positions, increased interest expense and decreased net income. In addition, 
significant capital requirements associated with such investments may impair our ability to make distributions to our Class A common stockholders. 
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Newly enacted laws or regulations and future changes in the taxation of businesses may impact our effective tax rate or may adversely affect our business, financial 
condition and operating results.

Newly enacted laws or regulations, and future changes in the taxation of businesses, may impact our effective tax rate or may adversely affect our business, financial 
condition and operating results.  For example, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, enacted on December 22, 2017, reduced the corporate income tax rate to 21%, further limited the 
deductibility of business interest expense, and restricted the use of net operating loss carryforwards arising in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2018. We cannot 
predict how changes in the laws or regulations, other guidance issued pursuant to such changes, or conforming or non-conforming state tax rules might affect us or our business.  
In addition, there can be no assurance that tax laws, including the U.S. corporate income tax rate, would not undergo significant changes in the near future.

The market price and trading volume of our Class A common stock may be volatile, which could result in rapid and substantial losses for our stockholders. 

The market price of our Class A common stock may be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations. Moreover, the trading volume of our Class A common 
stock may fluctuate and cause significant price variations to occur. If the market price of our Class A common stock declines significantly, you may be unable to sell your 
shares of Class A common stock at or above the price at which you purchased it, if at all. The market price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate or decline significantly 
in the future. Some of the factors that could negatively affect the price of our Class A common stock, or result in fluctuations in the price or trading volume of our Class A 
common stock, include: 

•variations in our quarterly or annual operating results; 

•failure to meet the market’s earnings expectations; 

•publication of research reports about us or the investment management industry, or the failure of securities analysts to continue to cover our Class A common stock; 

•the public’s reactions to our press releases, other public announcements and filings with the SEC; 

•departures of any of our portfolio managers or members of our senior management team or additions or departures of other key personnel; 

•adverse market reaction to any indebtedness we may incur or securities we may issue in the future; 

•market and industry perception of our success, or lack thereof, in pursuing our growth strategies; 

•actions by stockholders; 

•strategic actions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions or restructurings; 

•changes in market valuations of similar companies; 

•changes in our capital structure; 

•actual or anticipated poor performance in one or more of the investment strategies we offer; 

•changes or proposed changes in laws or regulations, or differing interpretations thereof, affecting our business, or enforcement of these laws and regulations, or 
announcements relating to these matters; 

•changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles; 

•adverse publicity about the investment management industry generally or as a result of specific events; 

•sales of shares of our Class A common stock by us or members of our management team; 

•litigation and governmental investigations; 

•the expiration of contractual lockup agreements; and 

•changes in general market, economic and political conditions in the United States and global economies or financial markets, including those resulting from natural 
disasters, terrorist attacks, acts of war, and responses to such. 
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Future issuances and sales of our Class A common stock in the public market could lower our stock price, and any additional capital raised by us through the sale of equity 
or convertible securities may dilute your ownership in us. 

The market price of our Class A common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our Class A common stock available for sale, or the 
perception that such sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also may make it more difficult for us to raise additional capital by selling 
equity securities in the future, at a time and price that we deem appropriate. 

We have 9,869,101 shares of our Class A common stock outstanding as of February 25, 2022. The shares of Class A common stock that will be issuable upon exchange 
of Class B units held by our principals may only be sold in the manner and at the times described in our exchange agreement with our principals. For so long as a principal 
remains employed by us, during any 12-month period, each principal and his permitted transferees (e.g., family trusts) may collectively exchange vested Class B units that 
equal 20% of the Class B units such persons collectively held at the beginning of such 12-month period, subject to certain exceptions described under the second amended and 
restated limited partnership agreement of Silvercrest L.P. Upon a termination of employment other than due to retirement or for cause, all Class B units held by a principal, 
other than those Class B units forfeited under certain circumstances, will be exchanged automatically for shares of Class A common stock. The shares of Class A common 
stock received upon exchange for Class B units held by our principals may be sold (i) at any time and in any manner by retired employees and employees or estates of 
employees terminated due to death or disability, (ii) for any principal whose employment is terminated by us without cause, in an amount equal to 50% of the total shares of 
Class A common stock held by the principal at the time of termination of employment less any amounts sold for taxes in each 12-month period following the 18-month 
anniversary of the date of termination of employment, and (iii) for any principal who voluntarily resigns his employment, in an amount equal to one-third of the total shares of 
Class A common stock held by the principal at the time of termination of employment less any amounts sold for taxes in each 12-month period following the 18-month 
anniversary of the date of resignation of employment subject to manner of sale restrictions.  The estate of our former Chief Executive Officer may sell portions or all of its Class 
A common shares in Silvercrest in order to diversify its portfolio. 

As of December 31, 2021, we have reserved for issuance 192,689 shares of our Class A common stock pursuant to, upon the exercise of options or other equity awards 
granted under, or upon exchange of Class B units granted under, our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. We may increase the number of shares registered for this purpose from time to 
time. Once we register these additional shares, they will be able to be sold in the public market upon issuance. 

We cannot predict the size of future issuances of our Class A common stock or the effect, if any, that future issuances and sales of shares of our Class A common stock 
may have on the market price of our Class A common stock. Sales or distributions of substantial amounts of our Class A common stock (including shares issued in connection 
with an acquisition), or the perception that such sales could occur, may cause the market price of our Class A common stock to decline. 

Stockholders may experience dilution in the future.

Stockholders will experience further dilution upon issuance of restricted Class B units or restricted shares of our Class A common stock, or upon the grant of options or 
equity awards to purchase Class B units or shares of our Class A common stock, in each case under our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan.

The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources and distract our management, which could make it difficult to manage our business, particularly 
since we are no longer an “emerging growth company.” 

As a public company, we are required to comply with various regulatory and reporting requirements, including those required by the SEC. Complying with these 
reporting and other regulatory requirements is time-consuming and results in increased costs to us and could have a negative effect on our business, results of operations and 
financial condition. As a public company, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and requirements of Sarbanes Oxley. These requirements may place 
a strain on our systems and resources. The Exchange Act requires that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and financial condition. Sarbanes 
Oxley requires that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. To maintain and improve the effectiveness of our 
disclosure controls and procedures, we need to commit significant resources, hire additional staff and provide additional management oversight. We have implemented 
additional procedures and processes for the purpose of addressing the standards and requirements applicable to public companies.  Sustaining our growth also will require us to 
commit additional management, operational and financial resources to identify new professionals to join our company and to maintain appropriate operational and financial 
systems to adequately support our expansion. In addition, as a public company, we have enhanced our investor relations, legal and corporate communications functions. All of 
these activities and additional efforts may increase our costs, strain our resources and divert management’s attention from other business concerns, which could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 
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For so long as we remained an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act, we were able to take advantage of certain temporary exemptions from various 
reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies, including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of 
Section 404 of Sarbanes Oxley (and rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder, which we refer to as Section 404) and reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive 
compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from holding a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation . Since we are no longer an 
emerging growth company, we expect to incur additional expenses and devote increased management effort toward ensuring compliance with those requirements applicable to 
companies that are not emerging growth companies. Even though we no longer qualify as an emerging growth company, we currently do, and may continue to, qualify as a 
“smaller reporting company” which allows us to take advantage of many of the same exemptions from disclosure requirements. However, we cannot be certain we will continue 
to so qualify or predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive 
as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile. 

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price and trading volume could 
decline. 

The trading market for our Class A common stock depends in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business. If one 
or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our stock or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our stock price would likely decline. If one or 
more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our stock could decrease, which could cause our stock price and trading 
volume to decline. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a negative impact on our revenue levels, which we expect to continue into 2022.

Our revenue is highly correlated to securities markets, and we expect that our assets under management and revenue levels will be negatively impacted, on an 
incremental basis, by the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on securities markets. While the COVID-19 pandemic did not materially affect the Company’s financial results and 
business operations in the Company’s first fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2020, economic and health conditions in the United States and across most of the globe have changed 
rapidly since the end of the first quarter, which has led to increased volatility and uncertainty in securities markets in the United States and across the globe. As a result, the 
COVID-19 pandemic affected our operations in the second quarter ended June 30, 2020 through the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2021, and may continue to do so 
indefinitely thereafter.  While demand for the Company’s services continues given the current capital markets and overall economic environment, such demand may not 
continue and demand may decrease from historical levels depending on the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, the length of time it takes for normal economic 
and operating conditions to resume, additional governmental actions that may be taken and/or extensions of time for restrictions that have been imposed to date, and numerous 
other uncertainties.  Such events may result in business disruption, reduced earnings and operations, any of which could materially affect our business, financial condition, and 
results of operations.  

The transmission of COVID-19 and efforts to contain its spread have resulted in border closings and other travel restrictions and significant disruptions to business 
operations, supply chains and customer activity, including event cancellations and restrictions, service cancellations and wide-spread quarantines. These impacts and the 
uncertainty around the future impact of COVID-19, including the extent and duration of the impact on economies around the world, have caused significant volatility and 
declines in the global financial markets, which are expected to continue to result in business disruptions, reduced earnings and operations, which could materially affect our 
business, financial conditions and results of operations.

The Company cannot predict the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its clients, vendors, and other business partners.

The COVID-19 pandemic is affecting the Company’s clients, vendors, and other business partners, but the Company is not able to assess the full extent of the current 
impact nor predict the ultimate consequences that will result therefrom. We are working to obtain information about and maintain communications with our clients, vendors and 
business partners to coordinate efforts related to business continuity which may mitigate some, but not all, of the adverse effects resulting from the pandemic. If the Company’s 
clients, vendors and business partners are impacted by the pandemic for an extended period of time, the Company’s earnings and operations may be negatively impacted as well.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties. 

Our corporate headquarters are located at 1330 Avenue of the Americas, 38th Floor, New York, New York 10019, where we occupy approximately 41,000 square feet 
of space under a lease, the extended terms of which expire on September 30, 2028. We also lease space for our other seven offices. We believe our current facilities are 
adequate for our current needs and that suitable additional space will be available as and when needed. 
 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings. 

We are, and will continue to be, subject to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business.  Currently, there are no material legal proceedings pending or 
threatened against us. 
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PART II 
 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Our Class A common stock has been listed on The Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “SAMG” since June 27, 2013. Our Class B common stock is not listed on 
The Nasdaq Global Market and there is no established trading market for such shares. 

The following table presents information with respect to purchases of our Class A common stock made during the quarter ended December 31, 2021.
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Period

  
 
 
 
 

Total Number of 
Shares Purchased

   
 
 
 
 
 
Average Price Paid Per 

Share

   
 
 

Total Number of Shares 
Purchased as Part of 
Publicly Announced 
Plans or Programs

  Maximum Number (or 
Approximate Dollar 
Value) of Shares that 

May Yet Be Purchased 
under the Plan or 

Program

 

October 1 - December 31  5,886  $ 15.97   33,083  $ 14,487,749  
Total  5,886  $ 15.97   33,083  $ 14,487,749  

  

Holders 

As of February 25, 2022, there were five holders of record of our Class A common stock and 58 holders of record of our Class B common stock. A substantially greater 
number of holders of our Class A common stock are held in “street name” and held of record by banks, brokers and other financial institutions. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information 
 

        (c)  
        Number of  
  (a)      securities remaining  
  Number of      available for future  
  securities to be   (b)   issuance  
  issued   Weighted-average   under equity  
  upon exercise of   exercise price of   compensation plans  
  outstanding   outstanding   (excluding  
  options, warrants   options, warrants   securities reflected  
Plan Category  and rights   and rights   in column (a))  
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders   445,462   $ 13.16    192,689  
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders   —    —    —  
Total   445,462   $ 13.16    192,689  

 
A total of 1,670,960 shares of Class A common stock were registered, 966,510 restricted stock units were granted in August 2015, 14,373 restricted stock units were 

granted in May 2016, 105,398 non-qualified stock options were granted in October 2018, 60,742 non-qualified stock options were granted in May 2019, 34,388 restricted stock 
units were granted in May 2019, 8,242 restricted stock units were granted in March 2020, 86,764 non-qualified stock options were granted in May 2020, 49,116 restricted stock 
units were granted in May 2020, 21,598 restricted stock units were granted in January 2021, 129,314 restricted stock units were granted in May 2021, 1,827 restricted stock 
units were granted in August 2021 and  192,689 remain reserved for issuance under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2021. 

Performance Graph

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined in Item 10 of Regulation S-K, the Company is not required to provide this information.
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Item 6. [Reserved]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements relating to present or future trends or factors that are subject to risks and uncertainties. These risks include, but are not 
limited to: specific and overall impacts of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic on our financial condition and results of operations; our ability to achieve our business 
objectives; our ability to successfully achieve the anticipated results of strategic transactions, including the integration of the operations of acquired assets and businesses; the 
retention and development of clients and other business relationships; disruptions or delays in our business operations, including without limitation disruptions or delays arising 
from political unrest, war, labor strikes, natural disasters, public health crises such as the coronavirus pandemic, and other events and circumstances beyond our control; our 
ability to control costs; general economic conditions; fluctuation in operating results; changes in the securities markets; our ability to maintain compliance with the terms of our 
credit facility; the availability, integration and effective operation of information systems and other technology, and the potential interruption of such systems or technology; 
risks related to data security of privacy breaches; and other risks detailed from time to time in our filings with the SEC. Our future financial performance could differ materially 
from the expectations of management contained herein. Additionally, many of these risks and uncertainties are currently elevated by and may or will continue to be elevated by 
the COVID-19 pandemic. It is not possible to predict or identify all such risks, but may become material in the future. We undertake no obligation to release revisions to these 
forward-looking statements after the date of this report.

Overview 

We are a full-service wealth management firm focused on providing financial advisory and related family office services to ultra-high net worth individuals and 
institutional investors. In addition to a wide range of investment capabilities, we offer a full suite of complementary and customized family office services for families seeking a 
comprehensive oversight of their financial affairs. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2021, our assets under management increased 16.2% from $27.8 billion to 
$32.3 billion.  On July 1, 2019, we acquired $1.7 billion of assets under management in connection with the acquisition of Cortina Asset Management LLC (“Cortina” and 
“Cortina Acquisition”).        

The business includes the management of funds of funds, and other investment funds, collectively referred to as the “Silvercrest Funds”.  Silvercrest L.P. has issued 
restricted stock units exercisable for 170,854. Class B units which entitle the holders thereof to receive distributions from Silvercrest L.P. to the same extent as if the underlying 
Class B units were outstanding.  Net profits and net losses of Silvercrest L.P. will be allocated, and distributions from Silvercrest L.P. will be made, to its current partners pro 
rata in accordance with their respective partnership units (and assuming the Class B units underlying all restricted stock units are outstanding). 

The historical results of operations discussed in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations include those of 
Silvercrest L.P. and its subsidiaries. As the general partner of Silvercrest L.P., we control its business and affairs and, therefore, consolidate its financial position and results 
with ours. The interests of the limited partners’ collective 32.9% partnership interest in Silvercrest L.P. as of December 31, 2021 are reflected in non-controlling interests in our 
consolidated financial statements. 

This Item 7 generally discusses 2021 and 2020 items and year-to-year comparisons between 2021 and 2020.  Discussions of 2019 items and year-to-year comparisons 
between 2020 and 2019 that are not included in this Form 10-K can be found in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in 
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 filed with the SEC on March 4, 2021.

COVID-19 Pandemic

The emergence of the coronavirus (COVID-19) around the world, and particularly in the United States, presents significant risks to us, not all of which we are able to 
fully evaluate or foresee at the current time. While the COVID-19 pandemic did not materially affect our financial results and business operations in the first fiscal quarter 
ended March 31, 2020, economic and health conditions in the United States and across most of the globe changed rapidly since the end of the first quarter and into the second 
fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2020.  Demand for our services continues despite the current capital markets and overall economic environment. Such current demand may not 
continue and/or demand may decrease from historical levels depending on the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, the length of time it takes for normal economic 
and operating conditions to resume, additional governmental actions that may be taken and/or extensions of time for restrictions that have been imposed to date, and numerous 
other uncertainties.

The COVID-19 pandemic affected our operations in each of the six quarters during the period April 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021 and may continue to do so 
indefinitely thereafter. All of these factors may have far reaching impacts on our business, operations, and financial results and conditions, directly and indirectly, including 
without limitation impacts on the health of our 
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management and employees, client behavior, and on the overall economy. The scope and nature of these impacts, most of which are beyond our control, continue to evolve, and 
the outcomes of these impacts are uncertain.

Our revenue is highly correlated to securities markets.  As a result, we expect that our assets under management and revenue levels will be negatively impacted, on an 
incremental basis, by the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on securities markets.  The decrease in assets under management for the three months ended March 31, 2020 had an 
impact on our revenue for the second quarter ended June 30, 2020 because most of our revenue is billed in advance based on the value of assets under management on the last 
day of the preceding calendar quarter.  We continue to fully operate with our management and employees working remotely and we have had business continuity plans in place 
which we were able to seamlessly activate upon actions taken by various governmental authorities suggesting that businesses recommend that their employees work from home 
as a result of the pandemic.     

Due to the above circumstances and as described generally in this Form 10-K, management cannot predict the full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the 
Company’s earnings and operations nor to economic conditions generally. The ultimate extent of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company is highly uncertain 
and will depend on future developments, and such effects could exist for an extended period of time even after the pandemic might end.

Key Performance Indicators 

When we review our performance, we focus on the indicators described below: 
 

  
 
 For the Years Ended December 31,   

(in thousands except as indicated)
 
 2021   

 
 2020     2019   

Revenue
 
 $ 131,603   

 
 $ 107,983      $ 102,152    

Income before other income (expense), net
 
 $ 30,521   

 
 $ 22,281      $ 18,873    

Net income
 
 $ 24,946   

 
 $ 17,478      $ 15,412    

Net income margin   19.0 %   16.2 %   15.1 %

Net income attributable to Silvercrest
 
 $ 14,693   

 
 $ 9,960      $ 8,646    

Adjusted EBITDA (1)
 
 $ 43,441   

 
 $ 30,296      $ 28,592    

Adjusted EBITDA margin (2)
 
   33.0 %

 
   28.1 %     28.0 % 

Assets under management at period end (billions)
 
 $ 32.3    

 
 $ 27.8      $ 25.1    

Average assets under management (billions) (3)
 
 $ 30.1    

 
 $ 26.5      $ 22.1    

 
(1)EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure of earnings, represents net income before provision for income taxes, interest income, interest expense, depreciation and amortization. We define Adjusted EBITDA as 
EBITDA without giving effect to items, including but not limited to professional fees associated with acquisitions or financing transactions, gains on extinguishment of debt or other obligations related to 
acquisitions, losses on disposals or abandonment of assets and leaseholds, severance and other similar expenses, but including partner incentive allocations, prior to our initial public offering, as an expense. We 
use this non-GAAP financial measure to assess the strength of our business. These adjustments and the non-GAAP financial measures that are derived from them provide supplemental information to analyze 
our business from period to period. Investors should consider these non-GAAP financial measures in addition to, and not as a substitute for financial measures in accordance with GAAP.   See “Supplemental 
Non-GAAP Financial Information” for a reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures.

(2)Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-GAAP measure of earnings, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by total revenue. 

(3)We have computed average assets under management by averaging assets under management at the beginning of the applicable period and assets under management at the end of the applicable period. 

Revenue 

We generate revenue from management and advisory fees, performance fees and family office services fees. Our management and advisory fees are generated by 
managing assets on behalf of separate accounts and acting as investment adviser for various investment funds. Our performance fees relate to assets managed in external 
investment strategies in which we have a revenue sharing arrangement and in funds in which we have no partnership interest. Our management and advisory fees and family 
office services fees income is recognized through the course of the period in which these services are provided. Income from performance fees is recorded at the conclusion of 
the contractual performance period when all contingencies are resolved. In certain arrangements, we are only entitled to receive performance fees and allocations when the 
return on assets under management exceeds certain benchmark returns or other performance targets. 
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The discretionary investment management agreements for our separately managed accounts do not have a specified term. Rather, each agreement may be terminated by 
either party at any time, unless otherwise agreed with the client, upon written notice of termination to the other party. The investment management agreements for our private 
funds are generally in effect from year to year, and may be terminated at the end of any year (or, in certain cases, on the anniversary of execution of the agreement) (i) by us 
upon 30 or 90 days’ prior written notice and (ii) after receiving the affirmative vote of a specified percentage of the investors in the private funds that are not affiliated with us, 
by the private fund on 60 or 90 days’ prior written notice. The investment management agreements for our private funds may also generally be terminated effective immediately 
by either party where the non-terminating party (i) commits a material breach of the terms subject, in certain cases, to a cure period, (ii) is found to have committed fraud, gross 
negligence or willful misconduct or (iii) becomes bankrupt, becomes insolvent or dissolves. Each of our investment management agreements contains customary 
indemnification obligations from us to our clients. The tables below set forth the amount of assets under management, the percentage of management and advisory fees 
revenues, the amount of revenue recognized, and the average assets under management for discretionary managed accounts and for private funds for each period presented. 

Discretionary Managed Accounts 
 

  
 
 As of and for the Year Ended December 31,   

(in billions)
 
 2021   

 
 2020   

 
 2019   

AUM concentrated in Discretionary Managed Accounts
 
 $ 24.6    

 
 $ 20.2    

 
 $ 18.3    

Average AUM For Discretionary Managed Accounts
 
 $ 22.4    

 
 $ 19.3    

 
 $ 16.0    

Discretionary Managed Accounts Revenue (in millions)
 
 $ 122.3    

 
 $ 99.1    

 
 $ 92.9    

Percentage of management and advisory fees revenue
 
   96 % 

 
   96 % 

 
   95 % 

 
Private Funds 
 

  
 
 As of and for the Year Ended December 31,   

(in billions)
 
 2021   

 
 2020     2019   

AUM concentrated in Private Funds
 
 $ 0.5    

 
 $ 0.4      $ 0.5    

Average AUM For Private Funds
 
 $ 0.5    

 
 $ 0.5      $ 0.5    

Private Funds Revenue (in millions)
 
 $ 4.7    

 
 $ 4.6      $ 5.1    

Percentage of management and advisory fees revenue
 
   4 % 

 
   4 %     5 % 

 
Our management and advisory fees are primarily driven by the level of our assets under management. Our assets under management increase or decrease based on the 

net inflows or outflows of funds into our various investment strategies and the investment performance of our clients’ accounts. In order to increase our assets under 
management and expand our business, we must develop and market investment strategies that suit the investment needs of our target clients and provide attractive returns over 
the long term. Our ability to continue to attract clients will depend on a variety of factors including, among others: 

•our ability to educate our target clients about our classic value investment strategies and provide them with exceptional client service; 

•the relative investment performance of our investment strategies, as compared to competing products and market indices; 

•competitive conditions in the investment management and broader financial services sectors; 

•investor sentiment and confidence; and 

•our decision to close strategies when we deem it to be in the best interests of our clients. 

The majority of management and advisory fees that we earn on separately-managed accounts are based on the value of assets under management on the last day of each 
calendar quarter. Most of our management and advisory fees are billed quarterly in advance on the first day of each calendar quarter. Our basic annual fee schedule for 
management of clients’ assets in separately managed accounts is: (i) for managed equity or balanced portfolios, 1% of the first $10 million and 0.60% on the balance, (ii) for 
managed fixed income only portfolios, 0.40% on the first $10 million and 0.30% on the balance, (iii) for the municipal value strategy, 0.65%, (iv) for Cortina’s equity 
portfolios, 1% on the first $25 million, 0.90% on the next $50 million and 0.80% on the balance and (v) for outsourced chief investment officer portfolios, 0.40% on the first 
$50 million, 0.32% on the next $50 million and 0.24% on the balance. Our fee for monitoring non-discretionary assets can range from 0.05% to 0.01%, but can also be 
incorporated into an agreed-upon fixed family office service fee. The majority of our client relationships pay a blended fee rate because they are invested in multiple strategies. 
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Management fees earned on investment funds that we advise are calculated primarily based on the net assets of the funds. Some funds calculate investment fees based 
on the net assets of the funds as of the last business day of each calendar quarter, whereas other funds calculate investment fees based on the value of net assets on the first 
business day of the month. Depending on the investment fund, fees are paid either quarterly in advance or quarterly in arrears. For our private funds, the fees range from 0.25% 
to 1.5% annually. Certain management fees earned on investment funds for which we perform risk management and due diligence services are based on flat fee agreements 
customized for each engagement. 

Average annual management fee is calculated by dividing our actual revenue earned over a period by our average assets under management during the same period 
(which is calculated by averaging quarter-end assets under management for the applicable period). Our average management fee was 0.44%, 0.41% and 0.46% for the years 
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Changes in our total average management fee rates are typically the result of changes in the mix of our assets under 
management and increased concentration in our equities strategies whose fee rates are higher than those of other investment strategies. Advisory fees are also adjusted for any 
cash flows into or out of a portfolio, where the cash flow represents greater than 10% of the previous quarter-end market value of the portfolio. These cash flow-related 
adjustments were insignificant for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019. Silvercrest L.P. has authority to take fees directly from external custodian accounts of 
its separately managed accounts. 

Our management and advisory fees may fluctuate based on a number of factors, including the following: 

•changes in assets under management due to appreciation or depreciation of our investment portfolios, and the levels of the contribution and withdrawal of assets by new 
and existing clients; 

•allocation of assets under management among our investment strategies, which have different fee schedules; 

•allocation of assets under management between separately managed accounts and advised funds, for which we generally earn lower overall advisory fees; and 

•the level of our performance with respect to accounts and funds on which we are paid incentive fees. 

Our family office services capabilities enable us to provide comprehensive and integrated services to our clients. Our dedicated group of tax and financial planning 
professionals provide financial planning, tax planning and preparation, partnership accounting and fund administration, and consolidated wealth reporting, among other 
services. Family office services income fluctuates based on both the number of clients for whom we perform these services and the level of agreed-upon fees, most of which are 
flat fees. Therefore, non-discretionary assets under management, which are associated with family office services, do not typically serve as the basis for the amount of family 
office services revenue that is recognized. 

Expenses 

Our expenses consist primarily of compensation and benefits expenses, as well as general and administrative expense including rent, professional services fees, data-
related costs and sub-advisory fees. These expenses may fluctuate due to a number of factors, including the following: 

•variations in the level of total compensation expense due to, among other things, bonuses, awards of equity to our employees and partners of Silvercrest L.P., changes in 
our employee count and mix, and competitive factors; and 

•the level of management fees from funds that utilize sub-advisors will affect the amount of sub-advisory fees. 

Compensation and Benefits Expense 

Our largest expense is compensation and benefits, which includes the salaries, bonuses, equity-based compensation and related benefits and payroll costs attributable to 
our principals and employees. Our compensation methodology is intended to meet the following objectives: (i) support our overall business strategy; (ii) attract, retain and 
motivate top-tier professionals within the investment management industry; and (iii) align our employees’ interests with those of our equity owners. We have experienced, and 
expect to continue to experience, a general rise in compensation and benefits expense commensurate with growth in headcount and with the need to maintain competitive 
compensation levels. 
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The components of our compensation and benefits expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 
 

  
 
 For the Year Ended December 31,   

(in thousands)
 
 2021   

 
 2020   

 
 2019   

Cash compensation and benefits (1)
 
 $ 71,138

 
 

 
 $ 61,720

 
 

 
 $ 57,766

 
 

Non-cash equity-based compensation expense
 
   1,426    

   659
 
 

 
   2,272

 
 

Total compensation expense
 
 $ 72,564

 
 

 
 $ 62,379

 
 

 
 $ 60,038

 
 

 
(1)For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, $34,781, $27,467 and $27,229 of partner incentive payments were included in cash compensation and benefits expense, respectively.

During 2021, 2020 and 2019, Silvercrest L.P. granted restricted stock units (“RSU”) to existing Class B unit holders.  During 2021, 2020 and 2019, Silvercrest L.P. 
granted non-qualified options (“NQO”) to an existing Class B unit holder.  Information regarding restricted stock units can be found in Note 16. “Equity Based Compensation” 
in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” in “— Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this filing.

General and Administrative Expenses 

General and administrative expenses include occupancy-related costs, professional and outside services fees, office expenses, depreciation and amortization, sub-
advisory fees and the costs associated with operating and maintaining our research, trading and portfolio accounting systems. Our costs associated with operating and 
maintaining our research, trading and portfolio accounting systems and professional services expenses generally increase or decrease in relative proportion to the number of 
employees retained by us and the overall size and scale of our business operations. Sub-advisory fees will fluctuate based on the level of management fees from funds that 
utilize sub-advisors. 

Other Income 

Other income is derived primarily from investment income arising from our investments in various private investment funds that were established as part of our 
investment strategies. We expect the investment components of other income, in the aggregate, to fluctuate based on market conditions and the success of our investment 
strategies. Performance fees earned from those investment funds in which we have a partnership interest have been earned over the past few years as a result of the achievement 
of various high water marks depending on the investment fund. These performance fees are recorded based on the equity method of accounting. The majority of our 
performance fees over the past few years have been earned from our fixed income-related funds. 

Non-Controlling Interests 

We are the general partner of Silvercrest L.P. and control its business and affairs and, therefore, consolidate its financial results with ours. In light of the limited 
partners’ interests in Silvercrest L.P., we reflect their partnership interests as non-controlling interests in our consolidated financial statements. 

Provision for Income Tax 

We are subject to taxes applicable to C-corporations. Our effective tax rate, and the absolute dollar amount of our tax expense, will be offset by the benefits of the tax 
receivable agreement entered into with our Class B stockholders. 

Acquisitions 

On April 12, 2019, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Cortina Asset Management, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability 
company (“Cortina”), and certain interest holders of Cortina (the “Principals”) to acquire, directly or through a designated affiliate, substantially all of the assets of Cortina 
relating to Cortina’s business of providing investment management, investment advisory, and related services.

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, we agreed to pay to Cortina an aggregate maximum amount of $44.9 million, 80% of which 
was agreed to be paid in cash at closing  by us, and 20% of which was agreed to be paid by us in the form of issuance and delivery to certain Principals at closing of Class B 
Units in Silvercrest L.P., in each case subject to certain adjustments as described in the Purchase Agreement. In addition, the Purchase Agreement provides for up to an 
additional $26.2 million to be paid 80% in cash with certain Principals receiving the remaining 20% in the form of Class B Units of Silvercrest L.P. in potential earn-out 
payments over the next four years.
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On July 1, 2019, the acquisition was completed pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.  At closing, the Company paid to Cortina an aggregate principal amount of $33.6 
million in cash, and Silvercrest L.P. paid an additional $9.0 million in the form of issuance and delivery to certain Principals of 662,713 Class B Units in Silvercrest L.P.  Of the 
$33.6 million paid in cash, $35.1 million represented consideration, partially offset by net closing credits due to the Company for reimbursable expenses from Cortina. 

In addition, the Purchase Agreement provides for up to an additional $26.2 million to be paid 80% in cash with certain Principals of Cortina receiving the remaining 
20% in the form of Class B Units of Silvercrest L.P. in potential earn-out payments over the next four years.

The foregoing description of the Purchase Agreement is only a summary, does not purport to be complete, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of 
the Purchase Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit 2.1 to the Form 8-K filed by Silvercrest on April 15, 2019.

On December 13, 2018, we executed an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Neosho Asset Purchase Agreement”) by and among the Company, Silvercrest L.P. (“SLP”), 
Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC (“SAMG LLC”) and Neosho Capital LLC (“Neosho” or the “Seller”), and Christopher K. Richey, Alphonse I. Chan, Robert K. Choi 
and Vincent G. Pandes, each such individual a principal of Neosho, to acquire certain assets of Neosho.  The transaction contemplated by the Neosho Asset Purchase Agreement 
closed on January 15, 2019 and is referred to herein as the “Neosho Acquisition”.

Information regarding the Cortina and Neosho Acquisitions can be found in Note 3. “Acquisitions” in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” in “— Item 8. 
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this filing.
 

Operating Results 

Revenue 

Our revenues for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 are set forth below: 
 

  For the Years Ended December 31,  

(in thousands)
 
 2021   

 
 2020   

 
 

2021 vs. 2020 
($)   

 
 2021 vs. 2020 (%)   

Management and advisory fees
 
 $ 126,976

 
  $ 103,775   $ 23,201

 
   22.4 %

Performance fees and allocations   86    —
 
   86    100.0 %

Family office services   4,541    4,208    333    7.9 %
Total revenue  $ 131,603   $ 107,983   $ 23,620    21.9 %

 
  For the Years Ended December 31,  

(in thousands)
 
 2020   

 
 2019   

 
 2020 vs. 2019 ($)   

 
 2020 vs. 2019 (%)   

Management and advisory fees
 
 $ 103,775

 
  $ 97,970   $ 5,805

 
   5.9 %

Performance fees and allocations   —    25
 
   (25 )   -100.0 %

Family office services   4,208    4,157    51    1.2 %
Total revenue  $ 107,983   $ 102,152   $ 5,831    5.7 %
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The growth in our assets under management from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2021 is described below: 

 
   

 
Assets Under Management   

(in billions)
 
 Discretionary     

Non-
Discretionary     Total

  

As of January 1, 2019  
 

$ 14.2  
 

  $ 4.8  
 

  $ 19.0  (1) 

                          

Gross client inflows  
 

  10.4       0.6       11.0    

Gross client outflows  
 

  (8.7 )     (0.4 )     (9.1 ) 

Net client flows     1.7       0.2       1.9   
                          

Market appreciation  
 

  2.9       1.3      
 

4.2   

As of December 31, 2019  
 

$ 18.8  
 

  $ 6.3  
 

  $ 25.1  (1) 

                          

Gross client inflows  
 

  3.8       0.4       4.2    

Gross client outflows  
 

  (3.5 )     (0.3 )     (3.8 ) 

Net client flows     0.3       0.1       0.4   
                          

Market appreciation  
 

  1.5       0.8      
 

2.3   

As of December 31, 2020  
 

$ 20.6  
 

  $ 7.2  
 

  $ 27.8  (1) 

                          

Gross client inflows  
 

  5.7       0.5       6.2   

Gross client outflows  
 

  (5.5 )     (0.5 )     (6.0 ) 

Net client flows     0.2       —       0.2   
                          

Market appreciation  
 

  4.3       —      
 

4.3   

As of December 31, 2021  
 

$ 25.1  
 

  $ 7.2  
 

  $ 32.3  (1)

 
(1)Less than 5% of assets under management generate performance fees. 
 
PROPRIETARY EQUITY PERFORMANCE  ANNUALIZED PERFORMANCE  
AS OF 12/31/2021  INCEPTION    1-YEAR    3-YEAR    5-YEAR    7-YEAR    INCEPTION  
                         
Large Cap Value Composite  4/1/02    31.7    23.3    16.8    14.2    10.4  
Russell 1000 Value Index      25.2    17.6    11.2      9.7      8.2  
                         

Small Cap Value Composite  4/1/02    25.8    19.1      9.9    10.7    11.2  
Russell 2000 Value Index      28.3    18.0      9.1      9.5      8.8  
                         

Smid Cap Value Composite  10/1/05    29.0    19.2    11.4    12.1    10.8  
Russell 2500 Value Index      27.8    18.3      9.9      9.6      8.6  
                         

Multi Cap Value Composite  7/1/02    32.2    22.2    14.4    12.9    10.8  
Russell 3000 Value Index      25.4    17.6    11.0      9.7      8.8  
                         

Equity Income Composite  12/1/03    28.4    16.5    12.6    11.9    12.1  
Russell 3000 Value Index      25.4    17.6    11.0      9.7      9.0  
                         

Focused Value Composite  9/1/04    26.4    17.3    11.5    11.5    11.2  
Russell 3000 Value Index      25.4    17.6    11.0      9.7      8.8  
                        

Small Cap Opportunity Composite  7/1/04    16.9    22.1    14.6    13.7    12.2  
Russell 2000 Index      14.8    20.0    12.0    10.8      9.4  
                        

Small Cap Growth Composite  7/1/04    20.5    31.4    22.5    18.2    13.1  
Russell 2000 Growth Index        2.8    21.2    14.5    11.7    10.0  
                        

Smid Cap Growth Composite  1/1/06    13.4    38.7    26.9    19.6    14.0  
Russell 2500 Growth Index        5.0    25.1    17.7    13.8    11.4  
 
1Returns are based upon a time weighted rate of return of various fully discretionary equity portfolios with similar investment objectives, strategies and policies and other relevant criteria managed by 
Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC (“SAMG LLC”), a subsidiary of Silvercrest. Performance results are gross of fees and net of commission charges. An investor’s actual return will be reduced by the 
advisory fees and any other expenses it may incur in the management of the investment advisory account. SAMG LLC’s standard advisory fees are described in Part 2 of its Form ADV. Actual fees and 
expenses will vary depending on a variety of factors, including the size of a particular account. Returns greater than one year are shown as annualized compounded returns and include gains 
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and accrued income and reinvestment of distributions. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This report contains no recommendations to buy or sell securities or a solicitation of an offer to buy or 
sell securities or investment services or adopt any investment position. This report is not intended to constitute investment advice and is based upon conditions in place during the period noted. Market and 
economic views are subject to change without notice and may be untimely when presented here. Readers are advised not to infer or assume that any securities, sectors or markets described were or will be 
profitable. SAMG LLC is an independent investment advisory and financial services firm created to meet the investment and administrative needs of individuals with substantial assets and select institutional 
investors. SAMG LLC claims compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®).

2The market indices used to compare to the performance of our strategies are as follows:

The Russell 1000 Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures the 1000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000. The Russell 1000 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged 
index that includes those Russell 1000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower expected growth values.

The Russell 2000 Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures the 2000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000. The Russell 2000 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged 
index that includes those Russell 2000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower expected growth values.  The Russell 2000 Growth Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that 
includes those Russell 2000 Index companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth. 

The Russell 2500 Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures the 2500 smallest companies in the Russell 3000. The Russell 2500 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, 
unmanaged index that includes those Russell 2000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower expected growth values.  The Russell 2500 Growth Index is a capitalization-weighted, 
unmanaged index that includes those Russell 2500 Index companies with higher price-to-book ratios and higher forecasted growth.

The Russell 3000 Value Index is a capitalization-weighted, unmanaged index that measures those Russell 3000 Index companies with lower price-to-book ratios and lower forecasted growth.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Our total revenue increased by $23.6 million, or 21.9%, to $131.6 million for year ended December 31, 2021, from $108.0 million for year ended December 31, 2020. 
This increase was driven by net client inflows and market appreciation in discretionary assets under management. 

Assets under management increased by $4.5 billion, or 16.2%, to $32.3 billion at December 31, 2021 from $27.8 billion at December 31, 2020.  Our increase in assets 
under management for the year ended December 31, 2021 was attributable to an increase in discretionary assets under management of $4.5 billion.  Non-discretionary assets 
under management remained flat year over year. The increase in our discretionary assets under management was driven by market appreciation and net client inflows.  With 
respect to our discretionary assets under management, equity assets increased by 18.1% during the year ended December 31, 2021 and fixed income assets increased by 6.6% 
during the same period. With respect to our discretionary assets under management, most of our increase came from our REIT, energy infrastructure, multi cap value and large 
cap value strategies with composite returns of 38.6%, 36.9%, 32.9% and 31.5%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2021.  Compared to the year ended December 
31, 2020, there was an increase of $2.0 billion of client inflows, an increase of $2.0 billion in market appreciation and an increase of $2.2 billion in client outflows. Our market 
appreciation during the year ended December 31, 2021 constituted a 13.3% rate of increase in our total assets under management compared to December 31, 2020, as compared 
to our market appreciation during the year ended December 31, 2020 which constituted a 8.3% rate of increase in our total assets under management compared to December 31, 
2019.  Sub-advised fund management revenue decreased by $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 as compared to the prior year.  Proprietary fund management 
revenue increased by $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 as compared to the prior year as a result of market appreciation.  As of December 31, 2021, the 
composition of our assets under management was 78% in discretionary assets, which includes both separately managed accounts and proprietary and sub-advised funds, and 
22% in non-discretionary assets which represent assets on which we provide portfolio reporting but do not have investment discretion.

Family office services revenue increased by $0.3 million, or 7.9% to $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, from $4.2 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2020.  

Performance fee revenue increased from $0 for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. These performance fees are 
primarily related to external investment strategies in which we have a revenue sharing arrangement. 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Our total revenue increased by $5.8 million, or 5.7%, to $108.0 million for year ended December 31, 2020, from $102.2 million for year ended December 31, 2019. 
This increase was driven by net client inflows and market appreciation in discretionary assets under management. 
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Assets under management increased by $2.7 billion, or 10.8%, to $27.8 billion at December 31, 2020 from $25.1 billion at December 31, 2019.  Our increase in assets 
under management for the year ended December 31, 2020 was attributable to an increase in discretionary assets under management of $1.8 billion and an increase of $0.9 
billion in non-discretionary assets under management. The increase in our discretionary assets under management was driven by market appreciation and net client inflows.  
With respect to our discretionary assets under management, equity assets increased by 9.0% during the year ended December 31, 2020 and fixed income assets increased by 
4.3% during the same period. With respect to our discretionary assets under management, most of our increase came from our Smid growth, small cap growth, core 
international, and small cap opportunity strategies with composite returns of 76.0%, 53.2%, 39.6% and 22.8%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2020.  Compared 
to the year ended December 31, 2019, there was a decrease of $6.8 billion of client inflows, a decrease of $1.9 billion in market appreciation and a decrease of $5.3 billion in 
client outflows. Our market appreciation during the year ended December 31, 2020 constituted a 8.3% rate of increase in our total assets under management compared to 
December 31, 2019, as compared to our market appreciation during the year ended December 31, 2019 which constituted a 16.7% rate of increase in our total assets under 
management compared to December 31, 2018.  Sub-advised fund management revenue increased by $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 as compared to the 
prior year.  Proprietary fund management revenue decreased by $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 as compared to the prior year as a result of client 
redemptions and market performance.  As of December 31, 2020, the composition of our assets under management was 74% in discretionary assets, which includes both 
separately managed accounts and proprietary and sub-advised funds, and 26% in non-discretionary assets which represent assets on which we provide portfolio reporting but do 
not have investment discretion.

Family office services revenue remained flat at $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.  

Performance fee revenue decreased from $25 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2019 to $0 for the year ended December 31, 2020. These performance fees are 
primarily related to external investment strategies in which we have a revenue sharing arrangement. 

The following table represents a further breakdown of our assets under management for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019:
 

  
 
 For the Years Ended December 31,   

(in billions)
 
 2021     2020     2019   

Total AUM as of January 1,
 
 $ 27.8

 
   $ 25.1

 
   $ 19.0  

Discretionary AUM:

 
 

  
 
 
 

    
 
 
 

    
  

Total Discretionary AUM as of January 1,   20.6    18.8    14.2  

New client accounts/assets
 
   0.5       0.6      2.4   (1)

Closed accounts
 
   (0.4 )     (0.2 )      (0.4 ) (2)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow
 
   0.1      (0.1 )     (0.3 ) (3)

Non-discretionary to Discretionary AUM
 
   —       —       —   (4)

Market appreciation
 
   4.3      1.5     

 
 2.9  

Change to Discretionary AUM
 
   4.5

 
    1.8

 
    4.6  

Total Discretionary AUM at December 31,
 
   25.1       20.6       18.8  

Change to Non-Discretionary AUM
 
   —      0.9       1.5   (5)

Total AUM as of December 31,
 
 $ 32.3     $ 27.8     $ 25.1  

 
(1)Represents new account flows from both new and existing client relationships

(2)Represents closed accounts of existing client relationships and those that terminated

(3)Represents periodic cash flows related to existing accounts

(4)Represents client assets that converted to Discretionary AUM from Non-Discretionary AUM

(5)Represents the net change to Non-Discretionary AUM
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Expenses 

Our expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 are set forth below: 
  

  For the Years Ended December 31,  

(in thousands)
 

2021  
 

2020   
2021 vs. 2020 

($)  
 2021 vs. 2020 (%)

 
Compensation and benefits (1)  $ 72,564   $ 62,379   $ 10,185    16.3 %
General and administrative   28,518    23,323    5,195    22.3 %

Total expenses
 

$ 101,082  
 

$
85,702

  $
15,380

 
  

17.9 %
  

  For the Years Ended December 31,  

(in thousands)
 

2020  
 

2019   
2020 vs. 2019 

($)  
 2020 vs. 2019 (%)

  
Compensation and benefits (1)  $ 62,379   $ 60,038   $ 2,341    3.9 %

General and administrative
 

 23,232  
 

 23,241    
82    

0.4 %
Total expenses  $ 85,702   $ 83,279   $ 2,423    2.9 %

 
(1)For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, $34,781 and $27,467, respectively, of partner incentive payments was included in compensation and benefits expense.

Our expenses are driven primarily by our compensation costs. The table included in “—Expenses—Compensation and Benefits Expense” describes the components of 
our compensation expense for the three years ended December 31, 2021. Other expenses, such as rent, professional service fees, data-related costs, and sub-advisory fees 
incurred are included in our general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Total expenses increased by $15.4 million, or 17.9%, to $101.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $85.7 million for the year ended December 31, 
2020. This increase was attributable to an increase in compensation and benefits expense of $10.2 million and an increase in general and administrative expenses of $5.2 
million. 

Compensation and benefits expense increased by $10.2 million, or 16.3%, to $72.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $62.4 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in the accrual for bonuses of $7.8 million, an increase in salaries expense of $1.6 million primarily as 
a result of merit-based increases and newly-hired staff and an increase in equity based compensation expense of $0.8 million due to an increase in the number of unvested 
restricted stock units and unvested non-qualified stock options outstanding. 

General and administrative expenses increased by $5.2 million, or 22.3%, to $28.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $23.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2020. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in the fair value of contingent consideration related to the Cortina Acquisition of $4.6 million, 
professional fees of $0.1 million, portfolio and systems expenses of $0.4 million, sub-advisory and referrals fees of $0.1 million, insurance costs of $0.1 million, marketing and 
advertising costs of $0.1 million, administrative costs of $0.1 million and charitable donations of $0.1 million.  These increases were partially offset by decreases in the fair 
value of contingent consideration related to the Neosho Acquisition of $0.3 million and occupancy and related costs of $0.1 million.  Information regarding acquisitions can be 
found in Note 3. “Acquisitions” in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” in “— Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this filing.  

Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Total expenses increased by $2.4 million, or 2.9%, to $85.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 from $83.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. 
This increase was attributable to an increase in compensation and benefits expense of $2.3 million and an increase in general and administrative expenses of $0.1 million. 

Compensation and benefits expense increased by $2.3 million, or 3.9%, to $62.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 from $60.0 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2019. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in the accrual for bonuses of $1.5 million, an increase in salaries expense of $1.8 million primarily as 
a result of merit-based increases and newly-hired staff, including the addition of Cortina staff, and an increase in benefits costs of $0.6 million, partially offset by a decrease in 
equity based compensation expense of $1.6 million due to a decrease in the number of unvested restricted stock units and unvested non-qualified stock options outstanding. 
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General and administrative expenses increased by $0.1 million, or 0.4%, to $23.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 from $23.2 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2019. The increase was primarily attributable to increases in the fair value of contingent consideration related to the Cortina Acquisition of $1.1 million, 
depreciation and amortization expense of $0.8 million related mainly to the amortization of intangible assets related to the Cortina Acquisition and to the renovation of our 
office space in New York City, occupancy and related expenses of $0.4 million related to the increased costs of cleaning due to the coronavirus pandemic, portfolio and systems 
expenses of $0.4 million, insurance costs of $0.1 million, the fair value of contingent consideration related to the Neosho Acquisition of $0.2 million and the fair value of 
contingent consideration related to the Cappiccille Acquisition of $0.2 million.  These increases were partially offset by decreases in the fair value of contingent consideration 
related to the Jamison Acquisition of $0.1 million, travel and entertainment expenses of $0.9 million as a result of the coronavirus pandemic, professional fees of $1.3 million, 
office expense of $0.1 million as a result of the coronavirus pandemic, printing costs of $0.1 million, charitable donations of $0.1 million, telephone related expenses of $0.1 
million and storage and moving expenses of $0.4 million.  Information regarding acquisitions can be found in Note 3. “Acquisitions” in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements” in “— Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this filing.  

 

Other Income (Expense), Net 
 

 For the Years Ended December 31,  

(in thousands)
 
 2021   

 
 2020

  
 2021 vs. 2020 ($)

  
2021 vs. 2020 (%)  

Other income (expense), net
 
 $ 190    

 
 $ 243

    
 $ (53

)   
 -21.8 %

Interest income
 
   7   

 
   13

  
   (6

)  
  -46.2 % 

Interest expense
 
   (383 ) 

 
   (563

)  
   180

  
   32.0 % 

Equity income from investments
 
 

 
 1,534    

   898
  

   636
    70.8 %

Total other income (expense), net
 
 $ 1,348    

 
 $ 591

  
 $ 757

   
 128.1 %

 
 For the Years Ended December 31,  

(in thousands)
 
 2020   

 
 2019

  
 2020 vs. 2019 ($)

  
2020 vs. 2019 (%)  

Other income (expense), net
 
 $ 243     $ 255

    
 $ (12

)   
 -4.7 % 

Interest income
 
   13      169

  
   (156

)  
  -92.3 % 

Interest expense
 
   (563 )    (481

)  
   (82

)  
   17.0 % 

Equity income from investments
 
 

 
 898      1,774

  
   (876

)    -49.4 %

Total other income (expense), net
 
 $ 591     $ 1,717

  
 $ (1,126

)   
 -65.6 %
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Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020

Other income (expense), net increased by $0.8 million, or 128.1% to $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from $0.6 million for the year ended December 
31, 2020. There was a $0.1 million adjustment to the fair value of our tax receivable agreement liability as of December 31, 2021.  The adjustment in fair value was a result of a 
reduction in the future effective corporate tax rates at the federal level and in New York City as a result of law changes.  Equity income from investments increased by $0.6 
million in 2021 as compared with the same period in the prior year as a result of increased performance fee allocations.  Interest expense decreased for the year ended December 
31, 2021 as compared to the prior year as a result of interest owed on borrowings under the credit facility.  Interest income decreased as a result of lower balances on notes 
receivable as a result of scheduled repayments. 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019

Other income (expense), net decreased by $1.1 million, or 65.6% to $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 from $1.7 million for the year ended December 
31, 2019. There was a $0.2 million adjustment to the fair value of our tax receivable agreement liability as of December 31, 2020.  The adjustment in fair value was a result of a 
reduction in the future effective corporate tax rates at the federal level and in New York City as a result of law changes.  Equity income from investments decreased by $0.9 
million in 2020 as compared with the same period in the prior year as a result of decreased performance fee allocations.  Interest expense increased for the year ended December 
31, 2020 as compared to the prior year as a result of interest owed on borrowings under the credit facility.  Interest income decreased as a result of lower balances on notes 
receivable as a result of scheduled repayments.  

Provision for Income Taxes 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020 

The provision for income taxes was $6.9 million and $5.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Our provision for income taxes as a 
percentage of income before provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was 21.7% and 23.6%, respectively. 

Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019 

The provision for income taxes was $5.4 million and $5.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.  Our provision for income taxes as a 
percentage of income before provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 23.6% and 25.1%, respectively. 
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Supplemental Non-GAAP Financial Information 

To provide investors with additional insight, promote transparency and allow for a more comprehensive understanding of the information used by management in its 
financial and operational decision-making, we supplement our consolidated financial statements presented on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles, or GAAP, with Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA margin, Adjusted Net Income, and Adjusted Earnings Per Share, which are non-GAAP financial measures of 
earnings. 

•EBITDA represents net income before provision for income taxes, interest income, interest expense, depreciation and amortization. 

•We define Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA without giving effect to the Delaware franchise tax, professional fees associated with acquisitions or financing transactions, 
gains on extinguishment of debt or other obligations related to acquisitions, impairment charges and losses on disposals or abandonment of assets and leaseholds, client 
reimbursements and fund redemption costs, severance and other similar expenses, but including partner incentive allocations, prior to our initial public offering, as an 
expense.  We feel that it is important to management and investors to supplement our consolidated financial statements presented on a GAAP basis with Adjusted 
EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure of earnings, as this measure provides a perspective of recurring earnings of the Company, taking into account earnings 
attributable to both Class A and Class B shareholders.    

•Adjusted EBITDA Margin is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by total revenue.  We feel that it is important to management and investors to supplement our 
consolidated financial statements presented on a GAAP basis with Adjusted EBITDA Margin, a non-GAAP financial measure of earnings, as this measure provides a 
perspective of recurring profitability of the Company, taking into account profitability attributable to both Class A and Class B shareholders. 

•Adjusted Net Income represents recurring net income without giving effect to professional fees associated with acquisitions or financing transactions, losses on 
forgiveness of notes receivable from our principals, gains on extinguishment of debt or other obligations related to acquisitions, impairment charges and losses on 
disposals or abandonment of assets and leaseholds, client reimbursements and fund redemption costs, severance and other similar expenses, but including partner 
incentive allocations, prior to our initial public offering, as an expense. Furthermore, Adjusted Net Income includes income tax expense assuming a blended corporate 
rate of 26%.  We feel that it is important to management and investors to supplement our consolidated financial statements presented on a GAAP basis with Adjusted Net 
Income, a non-GAAP financial measure of earnings, as this measure provides a perspective of recurring income of the Company, taking into account income attributable 
to both Class A and Class B shareholders. 

•Adjusted Earnings Per Share represents Adjusted Net Income divided by the actual Class A and Class B shares outstanding as of the end of the reporting period for basic 
Adjusted Earnings Per Share, and to the extent dilutive, we add unvested deferred equity units and performance units to the total shares outstanding to compute diluted 
Adjusted Earnings Per Share. As a result of our structure, which includes a non-controlling interest, we feel that it is important to management and investors to 
supplement our consolidated financial statements presented on a GAAP basis with Adjusted Earnings Per Share, a non-GAAP financial measure of earnings, as this 
measure provides a perspective of recurring earnings per share of the Company as a whole as opposed to being limited to our Class A common stock. 

These adjustments, and the non-GAAP financial measures that are derived from them, provide supplemental information to analyze our operations between periods and 
over time. Investors should consider our non-GAAP financial measures in addition to, and not as a substitute for, financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP. 
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The following tables contain reconciliations of net income to Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings Per Share (amounts in thousands except 
per share amounts).

Adjusted EBITDA 
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2021   2020   2019  
Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measure:             
Net income  $ 24,946   $ 17,478   $ 15,412  
GAAP Provision for income taxes   6,923    5,394    5,178  
Delaware Franchise Tax   200    200    200  
Interest expense   383    563    481  
Interest income   (7 )   (13 )   (169 )
Depreciation and amortization   3,923    3,968    3,191  
Equity-based compensation   1,126    659    2,272  
Other adjustments (A)   5,947    2,047    2,027  
Adjusted EBITDA  $ 43,441   $ 30,296   $ 28,592  
Adjusted EBITDA Margin   33.0 %   28.1 %   28.0 %
Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings Per Share             
Reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measure:             
Net income  $ 24,946   $ 17,478   $ 15,412  
GAAP Provision for income taxes   6,923    5,394    5,178  
Delaware Franchise Tax   200    200    200  
Other adjustments (A)   5,947    2,047    2,027  
Adjusted earnings before provision for income taxes   38,016    25,119    22,817  
Adjusted provision for income taxes:             
Adjusted provision for income taxes (26% assumed tax rate)   (9,884 )   (6,531 )   (5,932 )
             

Adjusted net income  $ 28,132   $ 18,588   $ 16,885  
             

GAAP net income per share (B):             
Basic and diluted  $ 1.52   $ 1.05   $ 0.98  
Adjusted earnings per share/unit (B):             
Basic  $ 1.95   $ 1.29   $ 1.18  
Diluted  $ 1.89   $ 1.28   $ 1.17  
Shares/units outstanding:             
Basic Class A shares outstanding   9,869    9,651    9,330  
Basic Class B shares/units outstanding   4,594    4,722    5,031  
Total basic shares/units outstanding   14,463    14,373    14,361  

Diluted Class A shares outstanding (C)   9,891    9,659    9,332  
Diluted Class B shares/units outstanding (D)   5,017    4,883    5,066  
Total diluted shares/units outstanding   14,908    14,542    14,398  

 
 

(A) Other adjustments consist of the following:
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2021   2020   2019  
Acquisition costs (a)  $ 363   $ 350   $ 1,371  
Severance   10    —    13  
Non-acquisition expansion costs (b)   —    —    97  
Other (c)   5,574    1,697    546  
Total other adjustments  $ 5,947   $ 2,047   $ 2,027  

 
(a)In 2021, represents equity-based compensation of $300 related to restricted stock unit grants issued to two associates hired as part of the Cortina Acquisition in conjunction with their 
admission to Silvercrest L.P., insurance costs of $45 and professional fees of $18 related to the Cortina Acquisition.  In 2020, represents legal and other professional fees of $90, insurance 
costs of $45 related to the acquisition of Cortina, and costs 
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related to the integration of Cortina’s operations of $215.  In 2019, represents legal fees of $156 related to the Neosho Acquisition and legal and other professional fees of $1,182 and insurance 
costs of $34 related to the acquisition of Cortina.     

(b)In 2021, 2020 and 2019, represents $0, $0 and $97, respectively, of accrued earnout related to our Richmond, VA office expansion.      

(c)In 2021, represents a fair value adjustment to the Cortina contingent purchase price consideration of $5,670, an ASC 842 rent adjustment of $192 related to the amortization of property 
lease incentives and expenses related to the Coronavirus pandemic of $191, partially offset by a fair value adjustment to the Neosho contingent purchase price consideration of ($365) and an 
adjustment to the fair value of our tax receivable agreement of ($114).  In 2020, represents expenses of $22 related to office renovations, an ASC 842 rent adjustment of $192 related to the 
amortization of property lease incentives, professional fees related to a new audit requirement of $13, a fair value adjustment to the Cappiccille contingent purchase price consideration of 
$126, a fair value adjustment to the Cortina contingent purchase price consideration of $1,100, a fair value adjustment to the Jamison contingent purchase price consideration of $70 a fair 
value adjustment to the Neosho contingent purchase price consideration of ($75), an adjustment to the fair value of our tax receivable agreement of ($186) and expenses related to the 
Coronavirus pandemic of $435.  In 2019, represents expenses of $443 related to office renovations and an ASC 842 rent adjustment of $192 related to the amortization of property lease 
incentives, a fair value adjustment to the Jamison contingent purchase price consideration of $214, a fair value adjustment to the Cortina contingent purchase price consideration of $200 and 
professional fees related to the relocation of network equipment of $5.  This was partially offset by an adjustment to the fair value of our tax receivable agreement of ($200), a fair value 
adjustment to the Neosho contingent purchase price consideration of ($283) and a fair value adjustment to the Cappiccille contingent purchase price consideration of ($25).     

 
(B) GAAP net income per share is strictly attributable to Class A shareholders.  Adjusted earnings per share takes into account earnings attributable to both Class A and Class B shareholders.  
(C) Includes 21,704 and 8,242 unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
(D) Includes 170,854 and 74,907 unvested restricted stock units and 252,904 and 86,764 non-qualified stock options at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Historically, the working capital needs of our business have primarily been met through cash generated by our operations. We expect that our cash and liquidity 
requirements in the next twelve months will be met primarily through cash generated by our operations.  The challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact on 
our business and cash flows are evolving rapidly and cannot be predicted at this time. Consequently, we will continue to evaluate our liquidity and financial position on an 
ongoing basis. 

On June 24, 2013, the subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. entered into a $15.0 million credit facility with City National Bank. The subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. are the 
borrowers under such facility and Silvercrest L.P. guarantees the obligations of its subsidiaries under the credit facility. The credit facility is secured by certain assets of 
Silvercrest L.P. and its subsidiaries. The credit facility consists of a $7.5 million delayed draw term loan that matures on June 24, 2025 and a $7.5 million revolving credit 
facility that was scheduled to mature on June 21, 2019.  On July 1, 2019, the credit facility was amended to increase the term loan by $18.0 million to $25.5 million, extend the 
draw date on the term loan facility to July 1, 2024, extend the maturity date of the term loan to July 1, 2026 and increase the revolving credit facility by $2.5 million to $10.0 
million.  On June 17, 2021, the revolving credit facility was further amended to extend the maturity date to June 18, 2022.  The loan bears interest at either (a) the higher of the 
prime rate plus a margin of 0.25 percentage points and 2.5% or (b) the LIBOR rate plus 2.75 percentage points, at the borrowers’ option.  Borrowings under the term loan on or 
prior to June 30, 2021 are payable in 20 equal quarterly installments.  Borrowings under the term loan after June 30, 2021 are be payable in equal quarterly installments through 
the maturity date. The credit facility contains restrictions on, among other things, (i) incurrence of additional debt, (ii) creating liens on certain assets, (iii) making certain 
investments, (iv) consolidating, merging or otherwise disposing of substantially all of our assets, (v) the sale of certain assets, and (vi) entering into transactions with affiliates. 
In addition, the credit facility contains certain financial covenants including a test on discretionary assets under management, maximum debt to EBITDA and a fixed charge 
coverage ratio. The credit facility contains customary events of default, including the occurrence of a change in control which includes a person or group of persons acting 
together acquiring more than 30% of the total voting securities of Silvercrest. Any undrawn amounts under this facility would be available to fund future acquisitions or for 
working capital purposes, if needed.  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, we had $9.0 million and $12.6 million outstanding under the term loan.  We were in compliance with 
the covenants under the credit facility as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

Our ongoing sources of cash will primarily consist of management fees and family office services fees, which are principally collected quarterly. We will primarily use 
cash flow from operations to pay compensation and related expenses, general and administrative expenses, income taxes, debt service, capital expenditures, distributions to 
Class B unit holders and dividends on shares of our Class A common stock. 

Seasonality typically affects cash flow since the first quarter of each year, includes as a source of cash, the prior year’s annual performance fee payments, if any, from 
our various funds and external investment strategies and, as a use of cash, the prior fiscal year’s incentive compensation. We believe that we have sufficient cash from our 
operations to fund our operations and commitments for the next twelve months. 
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The following table sets forth certain key financial data relating to our liquidity and capital resources as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019. 
  

  
 
 Years Ended December 31,

 
 

(in thousands)
 
 2021   

 
 2020

 
 

 
 2019

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents
 
 $ 85,744

 
 

 
 $ 62,498

 
 

 
 $ 52,832

 
 

Accounts receivable
 
 $ 8,850

 
 

 
 $ 8,341

 
 

 
 $ 8,958

 
 

Due from Silvercrest Funds
 
 $ 428

 
 

 
 $ 1,018

 
 

 
 $ 1,697

 
 

We anticipate that distributions to the principals of Silvercrest L.P. will continue to be a material use of our cash resources and will vary in amount and timing based on 
our operating results and dividend policy. We pay and intend to continue paying quarterly cash dividends to holders of our Class A common stock. We are a holding company 
and have no material assets other than our ownership of interests in Silvercrest L.P. As a result, we will depend upon distributions from Silvercrest L.P. to pay any dividends to 
our Class A stockholders. We expect to cause Silvercrest L.P. to make distributions to us in an amount sufficient to cover dividends, if any, declared by us. Our dividend policy 
has certain risks and limitations, particularly with respect to liquidity. Although we expect to pay dividends according to our dividend policy, we may not pay dividends 
according to our policy, or at all, if, among other things, we do not have the cash necessary to pay our intended dividends or our subsidiaries are prevented from making a 
distribution to us under the terms of our current credit facility or any future financing. To the extent we do not have cash on hand sufficient to pay dividends, we may decide not 
to pay dividends. By paying cash dividends rather than investing that cash in our future growth, we risk slowing the pace of our growth, or not having a sufficient amount of 
cash to fund our operations or unanticipated capital expenditures, should the need arise. 

Our purchase of Class B units in Silvercrest L.P. that occurred concurrently with the consummation of our initial public offering, and the future exchanges of Class B 
units of Silvercrest L.P., are expected to result in increases in our share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of Silvercrest L.P. at the time of our acquisition and 
these future exchanges, which will increase the tax depreciation and amortization deductions that otherwise would not have been available to us. These increases in tax basis 
and tax depreciation and amortization deductions are expected to reduce the amount of tax that we would otherwise be required to pay in the future. We entered into a tax 
receivable agreement with the current principals of Silvercrest L.P. and any future employee-holders of Class B units pursuant to which we agreed to pay them 85% of the 
amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that we actually realize as a result of these increases in tax basis and certain other tax benefits related 
to entering into the tax receivable agreement, including tax benefits attributable to payments thereunder. The timing of these payments is currently unknown. The payments to be 
made pursuant to the tax receivable agreement will be a liability of Silvercrest and not Silvercrest L.P., and thus this liability has been recorded as an “other liability” on our 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition. For purposes of the tax receivable agreement, cash savings in income tax will be computed by comparing our actual income tax 
liability to the amount of such taxes that we would have been required to pay had there been no increase in our share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of 
Silvercrest L.P. 

The actual increase in tax basis, as well as the amount and timing of any payments under the tax receivable agreement, will vary depending upon a number of factors, 
including the timing of exchanges, the price of shares of our Class A common stock at the time of the exchange, the extent to which such exchanges are taxable, the amount and 
timing of our income and the tax rates then applicable. Nevertheless, we expect that as a result of the size of the increases in the tax basis of our tangible and intangible assets, 
the payments that we may make under the tax receivable agreement likely will be substantial. Assuming no material changes in the relevant tax law and that we earn sufficient 
taxable income to realize the full tax benefit of the increased depreciation and amortization of our assets, we expect that future payments to the selling principals of Silvercrest 
L.P. in respect of our purchase of Class B units from them will aggregate approximately $9.2 million. Future payments to current principals of Silvercrest L.P. and future 
holders of Class B units in respect of subsequent exchanges would be in addition to these amounts and are expected to be substantial. We intend to fund required payments 
pursuant to the tax receivable agreement from the distributions received from Silvercrest L.P. 
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Cash Flows 

The following table sets forth our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019. Operating activities consist of net income subject to adjustments 
for changes in operating assets and liabilities, depreciation, and equity-based compensation expense. Investing activities consist primarily of acquiring and selling property and 
equipment, distributions received from investments in investment funds, and cash paid as part of business acquisitions. Financing activities consist primarily of contributions 
from partners, distributions to partners, the issuance and payments on partner notes, other financings, and earnout payments related to business acquisitions. 
  

  
 
 Years Ended December 31,   

(in thousands)
 
 2021   

 
 2020   

 
 2019   

Net cash provided by operating activities
 
 $ 44,278    

 
 $ 26,846    

 
 $ 18,775

 
 

Net cash used in investing activities
 
   (908 ) 

 
   (626 ) 

 
   (39,380 ) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
 
   (20,124 )  

   (16,554 ) 
 
   4,154   

Net change in cash
 
 $ 23,246    

 
 $ 9,666    

 
 $ (16,451 )  

Operating Activities 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020

Operating activities provided $44.3 million and $26.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. This difference is primarily the result of 
increases in net income of $11.0 million,  non-cash lease expense of $1.6 million, depreciation and amortization expense of $0.9 million primarily as a result of the Cortina 
Acquisition and the completion of renovations to our offices, equity-based compensation expense of $1.0 million, accounts payable and accrued expenses of $6.8 million, 
primarily due to a change in the fair value of contingent consideration related to the Cortina Acquisition and accrued compensation of $17.6 million.  These increases were 
partially offset by an increase in equity income from investments of $1.5 million due to higher performance fee allocations, a change in the TRA liability of $0.1 million, and 
decreases in accounts receivable of $0.1 million due to timing of payments received from clients, deferred tax expense of $0.8 million, distributions received from investment 
funds of $0.9 million and operating lease liabilities of $1.2 million.

Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019

Operating activities provided $26.8 million and $18.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. This difference is primarily the result of 
increases in net income of $2.1 million, distributions received from investment funds of $0.3 million, non-cash lease expense of $3.4 million, depreciation and amortization 
expense of $0.8 million primarily as a result of the Cortina Acquisition and the completion of renovations to our offices, deferred tax expense of $0.7 million, accounts payable 
and accrued expenses of $0.5 million, primarily due to a change in the fair value of contingent consideration related to the Cortina Acquisition and accrued compensation of 
$0.8 million.  These increases were partially offset by decreases in equity income from investments of $0.9 million due to lower performance fee allocations, accounts 
receivable of $4.9 million due to timing of payments received from clients, equity-based compensation expense of $1.6 million, operating lease liabilities of $3.7 million. 

Investing Activities 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020 

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, investing activities used $0.9 million and $0.6 million, respectively.  The primary use of cash during 2021 was for the 
acquisition of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements. The primary use of cash during 2020 was for the acquisition of furniture, equipment and leasehold 
improvements mostly related to the renovation of our office space in New York City.      
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Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019 

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, investing activities used $0.6 million and $39.4 million, respectively.  The primary use of cash during 2020 was for 
the acquisition of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements mostly related to the renovation of our office space in New York City.  The primary use of cash during 2019 
was for cash paid at closing of the Neosho and Cortina Acquisitions and for the acquisition of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements mostly related to the renovation 
of our office space in New York City. 

Financing Activities 

Year Ended December 31, 2021 versus Year Ended December 31, 2020 

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, financing activities used $20.1 million and $16.6 million, respectively. Dividends of $6.4 million and $6.1 million 
were paid during 2021 and 2020, respectively, to Class A shareholders.  Payments received from partners on notes receivable was $0.2 million in 2021 and $0.3 million in 2020.  
Distributions to partners of Silvercrest L.P. of $6.7 million and $6.3 million were paid during 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Repayment of borrowings under the credit facility 
was $3.6 million in both 2021 and 2020.  Payments of contingent purchase price consideration totaled $3.0 million and $0.7 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively.         

Year Ended December 31, 2020 versus Year Ended December 31, 2019 

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, financing activities used $16.6 million and provided $4.2 million, respectively. Borrowings under the credit facility 
were $18.0 million in 2019.  Dividends of $6.1 million and $5.3 million were paid during each of 2020 and 2019, respectively, to Class A shareholders.  Payments received 
from partners on notes receivable of $0.3 million in 2020 and 2019.  Distributions to partners of Silvercrest L.P. of $6.3 million and $7.7 million were paid during 2020 and 
2019, respectively.  Repayment of borrowings under the credit facility were $3.6 million and $1.8 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively.  Payments of contingent purchase 
price consideration totaled $0.7 million and $0.4 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively.   

We anticipate that distributions to principals of Silvercrest L.P. will continue to be a material use of our cash resources, and will vary in amount and timing based on our 
operating results and dividend policy. 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, $9.0 million and $12.6 was outstanding under our term loan with City National Bank.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no borrowings outstanding on our revolving credit facility with City National Bank.   

Contractual Obligations 

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined in Item 10 of Regulation S-K, the Company is not required to provide this information. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We did not have any significant off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2021 or December 31, 2020. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and other income 
reported in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed 
to be reasonable under current circumstances, our results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
available from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions made by management include the fair value of acquired 
assets and liabilities, impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, revenue recognition, equity based compensation, accounting for income taxes, and other matters that affect 
the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Accounting policies are an integral part of our consolidated financial statements. An understanding of these 
accounting policies is essential when reviewing our reported results of operations and our financial condition. Management believes that the critical accounting policies and 
estimates discussed below involve additional management judgment due to the sensitivity of the methods and assumptions used.
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Business Combinations 

We account for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The acquisition method of accounting requires that purchase price, including the fair 
value of contingent consideration, of the acquisition be allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed using the estimated fair values determined by management as of 
the acquisition date. 

We measure the fair value of contingent consideration at each reporting period using a probability-adjusted discounted cash flow method based on significant inputs not 
observable in the market and any change in the fair value from either the passage of time or events occurring after the acquisition date, is recorded in earnings. In relation to our 
acquisitions of Milbank and Jamison, the fair value of the contingent consideration was based on discounted cash flow models using projected EBITDA for each earnout period. 
The discount rate applied to the projected EBITDA was determined based on our weighted average cost of capital and considered that the overall risk associated with the 
payments was similar to the overall risks of our business as there is no target, floor or cap associated with the contingent payments.  In relation to the Neosho acquisition, the fair 
value of the contingent consideration was based on discounted cash flow models using projected revenue from each earnout period.  The discount rate applied to the projected 
revenue was determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Company and took into account that the overall risk associated with the payments was similar to 
the overall risks of the Company as there is no target, floor of cap associated with the contingent payments.  In relation to the Cortina Acquisition, the income approach was 
used to determine the fair value o the contingent consideration by estimating a range of likely outcomes and payouts given these outcomes.  The potential payouts were 
estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation and discounted back to their present values using a risk-free discount rate adjusted to account for the Company’s credit or 
counterparty risk to arrive at the present value of the contingent consideration payments.  The discount rate for the contingent consideration payment was based on the revenue 
cost of capital for Cortina’s revenue.  

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, including intangibles, and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. The 
Company generally uses valuation specialists to perform appraisals and assist in the determination of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. These 
valuations require management to make estimates and assumptions that are critical in determining the fair values of the assets and liabilities. During the measurement period, the 
Company may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Any adjustments to provisional amounts that are identified during the measurement period are 
recorded in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period, any subsequent adjustments are recorded to 
earnings.

Goodwill 

Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for impairment at least annually, on October 1st of every year, or whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment 
may have occurred. 

We account for Goodwill under Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) No. 350, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other,” which provides an entity the option to first 
perform a qualitative assessment of whether a reporting unit’s fair value is more likely than not less than its carrying value, including goodwill. In performing its qualitative 
assessment, an entity considers the extent to which adverse events or circumstances identified, such as changes in economic conditions, industry and market conditions or entity 
specific events, could affect the comparison of the reporting unit’s fair value with its carrying amount. If an entity concludes that the fair value of a reporting unit is more likely 
than not less than its carrying amount, the entity is required to perform the currently prescribed two-step goodwill impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and, 
accordingly, measure the amount, if any, of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that reporting unit. We utilized this option when performing our annual impairment 
assessment in 2021, 2020 and 2019, and concluded that our single reporting unit’s fair value was more likely than not greater than its carrying value, including goodwill.

Revenue Recognition 

Investment advisory fees are typically billed quarterly in advance at the beginning of the quarter or in arrears after the end of the quarter, based on a contractual 
percentage of the assets managed. Family office services fees are also typically billed quarterly in advance at the beginning of the quarter or in arrears after the end of the 
quarter based on a contractual percentage of the assets managed or upon a contractually agreed-upon flat fee arrangement. Revenue is recognized on a ratable basis over the 
period in which services are performed. 

We account for performance-based revenue in accordance with ASC 606-10-32, Accounting for Management Fees Based on a Formula, by recognizing performance 
fees and allocations as revenue only when it is certain that the fee income is earned and payable pursuant to the relevant agreements. In certain arrangements, we are only 
entitled to receive performance fees and allocations when the return on assets under management exceeds certain benchmark returns or other performance targets. We record 
performance fees and allocations as a component of revenue once the performance fee has crystallized. As a result, there is no estimate or variability in the consideration when 
revenue is recorded. 
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Because the majority of our revenues are earned based on assets under management that have been determined using fair value methods and since market 
appreciation/depreciation has a significant impact on our revenue, we have presented our assets under management using the GAAP framework for measuring fair value. That 
framework provides a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs based on company assumptions (Level 3). A 
financial instrument’s categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the instrument’s fair value measurement. The 
three levels within the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 

•Level 1—includes quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments at the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in Level 1 
include unrestricted securities, including equities listed in active markets. 

•Level 2—includes inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the instruments, including quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices 
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the instruments. The type of financial 
instruments in this category include less liquid and restricted securities listed in active markets, securities traded in other than active markets, government and agency 
securities, and managed funds whose net asset value is based on observable inputs. 

•Level 3—includes one or more significant unobservable inputs. Financial instruments that are included in this category include assets under management primarily 
comprised of investments in privately held entities, limited partnerships, and other instruments where the fair value is based on unobservable inputs. 

The table below summarizes the approximate amount of assets under management for the periods indicated for which fair value is measured based on Level 1, Level 2 
and Level 3 inputs. 
  

     Level 1      Level 2   
 
 Level 3   

 
 Total   

     (in billions)   

December 31, 2021 AUM    $ 25.3       $ 5.4
 
 

 
 $ 1.6

 
 

 
 $ 32.3

 
 

December 31, 2020 AUM    $ 20.5       $ 4.7
 
 

 
 $ 2.6

 
 

 
 $ 27.8

 
 

 
As substantially all our assets under management are valued by independent pricing services based upon observable market prices or inputs, we believe market risk is 

the most significant risk underlying valuation of our assets under management, as discussed under the heading “Risk Factors” in this annual report. 

The average value of our assets under management for the year ended December 31, 2021 was approximately $30.1 billion. Assuming a 10% increase or decrease in 
our average assets under management and the change being proportionately distributed over all our products, the value would increase or decrease by approximately $3.0 billion 
for the year ended December 31, 2021, which would cause an annualized increase or decrease in revenues of approximately $13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 
2021, at a weighted average fee rate for the year ended December 31, 2020 of 0.44%. 

The average value of our assets under management for the year ended December 31, 2020 was approximately $26.5 billion. Assuming a 10% increase or decrease in 
our average assets under management and the change being proportionately distributed over all our products, the value would increase or decrease by approximately $2.7 billion 
for the year ended December 31, 2020, which would cause an annualized increase or decrease in revenues of approximately $10.8 million for the year ended December 31, 
2020, at a weighted average fee rate for the year ended December 31, 2020 of 0.41%. 

Equity-Based Compensation 

Restricted Stock Units and Stock Options

On November 2, 2012, our board of directors adopted the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. 

Information regarding restricted stock units and stock options can be found in Note 16. “Equity Based Compensation” in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements” in “— Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this filing.

Tax Receivable Agreement

In connection with our initial public offering and reorganization of Silvercrest L.P. that was completed on June 23, 2013, we entered into a tax receivable agreement 
with the partners of Silvercrest L.P. that requires it to pay them 85% of the amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that it actually realizes (or 
is deemed to realize in the case of an early 
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termination payment by it, or a change in control) as a result of the increases in tax basis and certain other tax benefits related to entering into the tax receivable agreement, 
including tax benefits attributable to payments under the tax receivable agreement or attributable to exchanges of shares of Class B common stock for shares of Class A common 
stock. The payments to be made pursuant to the tax receivable agreement are a liability of Silvercrest and not Silvercrest L.P. 
 

The actual amount and timing of any payments under these agreements will vary depending upon a number of factors, including the timing of sales or exchanges by the 
holders of limited partnership units, the price of the Class A common stock at the time of such sales or exchanges, whether such sales or exchanges are taxable, the amount and 
timing of the taxable income Silvercrest generates in the future and the tax rate then applicable and the portion of Silvercrest’s payments under the tax receivable agreement 
constituting imputed interest or depreciable basis or amortizable basis.

Income Taxes 

Silvercrest L.P., our operating company, is not subject to federal and state income taxes, since all income, gains and losses are passed through to its partners. Our 
operating company is subject to New York City Unincorporated Business Tax. We, including our affiliated incorporated entities, are subject to federal and state corporate 
income tax, which requires an asset and liability approach to the financial accounting and reporting of income taxes. With respect to our incorporated entities, the annual tax rate 
is based on the income, statutory tax rates and tax planning opportunities available in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Tax laws are complex and subject to 
different interpretations by the taxpayer and respective governmental taxing authorities. Judgment is required in determining the tax expense and in evaluating tax positions. The 
tax effects of an uncertain tax position (“UTP”) taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns are recognized only if it is “more likely-than-not” to be sustained on 
examination by the taxing authorities, based on its technical merits as of the reporting date. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are 
measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We recognize estimated interest and penalties related to 
UTPs in income tax expense. 

We recognize the benefit of a UTP in the period when it is effectively settled. Previously recognized tax positions are derecognized in the first period in which it is no 
longer more likely than not that the tax position would be sustained upon examination. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

Information regarding recent accounting developments and their impact on Silvercrest can be found in Note 2. “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the 
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” in “— Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this filing.
 

Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures Regarding Market Risk 

Our exposure to market risk is directly related to our role as investment adviser for the separate accounts we manage and the funds for which we act as sub-investment 
adviser. Most of our revenue for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was derived from advisory fees, which are typically based on the market value of assets 
under management. Accordingly, a decline in the prices of securities would cause our revenue and income to decline due to a decrease in the value of the assets we manage. In 
addition, such a decline could cause our clients to withdraw their funds in favor of investments offering higher returns or lower risk, which would cause our revenue and income 
to decline further. Due to the nature of our business, we believe that we do not face any material risk from inflation. Please see our discussion of market risks in “—Critical 
Accounting Policies and Estimates—Revenue Recognition” which is part of Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations.” 
 
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statements” which appears on page F-1 of this report. 
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term 
is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) at December 31, 2021. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at December 31, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2021 that have materially 
affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.  We have not experienced any material impact to our internal controls over 
financial reporting despite the fact that most of our employees are working remotely due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  We are continually monitoring and assessing the 
COVID-19 pandemic situation on our internal controls to minimize the impact on their design and operating effectiveness.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Company management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the 
Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, or 
persons performing similar functions, and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and 
includes those policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our 
assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. There 
are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility that misstatements may not be prevented or detected. 
Accordingly, even effective internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Furthermore, the 
effectiveness of internal controls can change with circumstances. Company management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the 
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on the 2013 version of the Internal Control - Integrated Framework set forth by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013). Based on that assessment, management concluded 
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2021.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has audited and issued a report on our internal controls over financial reporting, which is 
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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PART III. 
 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Information required by this item will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed within 120 days 
of the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 (“2021 Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information required by this item will be included in the 2022 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 

Information required by this item will be included in the 2022 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Information required by this item will be included in the 2022 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

Information required by this item will be included in the 2022 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. 
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PART IV. 

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. 

(a)The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K: 

(1)Financial Statements 

(i)Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 

(ii)Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 

(iii)Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019

(iv)Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019

(v)Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(2)Financial Statement Schedules 

There are no Financial Statement Schedules filed as part of this Annual Report on 10-K, as the required information is not applicable. 

(b)Exhibit Index: 
 
Exhibit
Number

 
Description

   3.1*  Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 19, 2013).

   
   3.2*  Bylaws of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 

April 19, 2013).
   
   4.1*  Specimen Stock Certificate for Shares of Class A Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on 

Form S-1 filed April 19, 2013). 
   
   4.2*  Exchange Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 19, 2013). 
   
   4.3*  Resale and Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed May 22, 

2013).
   
   4.4*+  2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 19, 2013).
   
   4.5*  Description of Capital Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 5, 2019).
   
   4.6*  Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2020, among Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC, Silvercrest Investors LLC, 

Silvercrest Investors II LLC and Silvercrest Financial Services, Inc., as borrowers, City National Bank, a national banking association, and acknowledged 
by Silvercrest L.P., as guarantor, initially filed as exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19, 2020 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2020).

   
  10.1*  Form of Second Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Silvercrest L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's 

Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 19, 2013).
   
  10.2*  Tax Receivable Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 19, 2013).
   
  10.3*+  Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed 

April 19, 2013).
   
  10.5*  Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed June 25, 2013).
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  10.6*  First Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2016).
   
  10.7*+  Form of 2012 Equity Incentive Plan Class B Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Form 

10-Q filed on August 6, 2015).
   
  10.8*  First Amendment to Lease, dated December 23, 2015, by and between RXR 1330 Owner LLC and Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC (incorporated 

by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 10, 2016). 
   
  10.9*  Third Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2017).
   
  10.10*  Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on August 1, 2018).
   
  10.11*  Employment agreement with Richard R. Hough III dated September 18, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed 

September 24, 2018).
   
  10.12*  Form of Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed September 24, 2018).
   
  10.13*  Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2019).
   
  10.14*  Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Form 8-K filed July 2, 2019).
   
  10.15*  Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed June 19, 2020). 
   
  10.16*  Amendment to Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement among Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. and Brian D. Dunn, dated July 28, 2020 

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2020). 
   
  10.17*  Employment agreement with J. Allen Gray dated July 29, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 

2020). 
   
  10.18*  Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed June 17, 2021).
   
  21.1**  List of Subsidiaries
   
  23.1**  Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP 
   
  24.1**  Power of Attorney (included in the Form 10-K under "Signatures").
   
  31.1**  Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   
  31.2**  Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   
  32.1***  Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 

of 2002.
   
  32.2***  Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 

2002.
   
101.INS**  Inline XBRL Instance Document
   
101.SCH**  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
   
101.CAL**  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
   
101.LAB**  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
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101.PRE**  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
   
101.DEF**  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
   
104**  Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
 
* Previously filed
** Filed herewith 
*** Furnished herewith
+ Constitutes a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
 
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary. 

None.
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the city of New York, state of New York on March 2, 2022. 
  

SILVERCREST ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP INC.
 

By:   /s/ Richard R. Hough III
    Richard R. Hough III
    Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
 

By:   /s/ Scott A. Gerard
    Scott A. Gerard
    Chief Financial Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Richard R. Hough III and Scott A. Gerard his 
true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power to act separately and full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any 
and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and 
all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and 
perform each and every act in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be 
done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the 
capacities indicated on the 2nd day of March, 2022: 
  
Signature  Title  Date
     

/s/ Richard R. Hough III      
Richard R. Hough III  (Principal Executive Officer), Chairman and Director  March 2, 2022
     

/s/ Scott A. Gerard      
Scott A. Gerard  (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)  March 2, 2022
     

/s/ Albert S. Messina      
Albert S. Messina  Managing Director, Portfolio Manager and Director  

March 2, 2022
     

/s/ Richard J. Burns     
Richard J. Burns  Director  March 2, 2022
     

/s/ Brian D. Dunn     
Brian D. Dunn  Director  March 2, 2022
     

/s/ Darla M. Romfo     
Darla M. Romfo  Director  March 2, 2022
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.: 
 
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2021, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our 
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal 
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be 
communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, 
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are 
not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Cortina Contingent Consideration — Refer to Notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company completed the acquisition of Cortina Asset Management, LLC (“Cortina”) on July 1, 2019 for cash consideration of $33.577 million and $8.592 in Class B Units 
of Silvercrest L.P. In addition, the purchase agreement provides for up to $26.209 million of potential earn out payments (“contingent consideration”) over the next four years. 

The Company recognized the estimated contingent consideration for Cortina at fair value on the acquisition date in the amount of $13.8 million and at year end in the amount of 
$16.3 million, using the income approach. 

The fair value of earnout payments are based on revenue growth, however the payoffs are nonlinear and path-dependent. Accordingly, the Monte Carlo Simulation model is 
used. Furthermore, the significant inputs used in establishing the fair value include revenue growth rate, discount rate, and volatility rate. These are unobservable and reflect the 
Company’s own judgements about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the liability. 

Therefore, the valuation of the Cortina contingent consideration is considered complex and requires significant management judgment.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
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Our audit procedures related to the Cortina contingent consideration included the following:

1.We tested the effectiveness of controls over the Cortina contingent consideration, including controls over the valuation methodology for estimating the fair value and 
revenue forecasts.

2.We tested management’s methodology for establishing the fair value at year end related to the Cortina contingent consideration. 

3.With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we validated the reasonableness of the unobservable inputs, and other key judgments made by management. We also 
assessed the appropriateness of the Monte Carlo simulation by utilizing the assistance of the fair value specialists in order to validate the discount rate and the volatility 
rate used within the simulation. We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s assumptions through independent analysis and comparison to external sources.

4.With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we assessed the mathematical accuracy of the overall Monte Carlo simulation by footing, cross-footing, and 
recalculating the contingent liability based on the relevant terms of the earn out.

5.We evaluated management’s ability to accurately forecast future revenues through independent analysis including a comparison of actual results to management’s 
historical forecasts.

6.We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s revenue forecasts by comparing the forecasts to:

•Historical revenues

•Internal communications to management and the Board of Directors

•Forecasted information included in Company press releases, analyst and industry reports for the Company and certain of its peer companies

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

New York, New York 
March 2, 2022
 
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2006.
 
 

F-3



  
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.:

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2021, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our 
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, of the Company and our report dated March 2, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with 
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the 
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to 
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

New York, New York  
March 2, 2022
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Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition 
(In thousands, except share data) 

  

  
 
 

December 31,
2021   

 
 

December 31,
2020   

Assets
 
       

 
       

Cash and cash equivalents
 
 $ 85,744

 
 

 
 $ 62,498

 
 

Investments
 
   1,588

 
 

 
   914

 
 

Receivables, net
 
   8,850

 
 

 
   8,341

 
 

Due from Silvercrest Funds
 
   428

 
 

 
   1,018

 
 

Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements, net
 
   5,257

 
 

 
   5,523

 
 

Goodwill
 
   63,675

 
 

 
   63,675

 
 

Operating lease assets   26,130    30,068  
Finance lease assets   247    254  

Intangible assets, net
 
   23,924

 
 

 
   26,553

 
 

Deferred tax asset—tax receivable agreement
 
   10,797

 
 

 
   11,397   

Prepaid expenses and other assets
 
   2,678

 
 

 
   3,563

 
 

Total assets
 
 $ 229,318

 
 

 
 $ 213,804

 
 

Liabilities and Equity
 
      

 
      

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
 
 $ 19,820

 
 

 
 $ 18,040

 
 

Accrued compensation
 
   41,707

 
 

 
   33,849

 
 

Borrowings under credit facility
 
   9,025

 
 

 
   12,600

 
 

Operating lease liabilities   32,371    36,127  
Finance lease liabilities   253    259  

Deferred tax and other liabilities
 
   9,334

 
 

 
   9,530

 
 

Total liabilities
 
   112,510  

 
   110,405

 
 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 10)
 
      

 
      

Equity
 
      

 
      

Preferred Stock, par value $0.01, 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding
 
   —   

 
   —   

Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01, 50,000,000 shares authorized; 9,902,184 and 9,869,101 issued and outstanding, respectively, 
as of December 31, 2021; 9,650,692 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020

 
   99

 
 

 
   96   

Class B Common Stock, par value $0.01, 25,000,000 shares authorized; 4,593,687 and 4,721,646 issued and outstanding as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively

 
   45

 
 

 
   46   

Additional Paid-In Capital
 
   52,936

 
 

 
   51,039   

Treasury stock, at cost, 33,083 and 0 shares as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively   (512 )   —  

Retained earnings
 
   27,782

 
 

 
   19,498   

Total Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.’s equity
 
   80,350

 
 

 
   70,679   

Non-controlling interests
 
   36,458

 
 

 
   32,720   

Total equity
 
   116,808

 
 

 
   103,399   

Total liabilities and equity
 
 $ 229,318

 
 

 
 $ 213,804

 
 

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(In thousands, except share and per share data) 

  
  

 
 For the year ended December 31,   

  
 
 2021     2020     2019   

Revenue
 
                       

Management and advisory fees
 
 $ 126,976      $ 103,775      $ 97,970

 
 

Performance fees and allocations
 
   86        —        25

 
 

Family office services
 
   4,541        4,208        4,157

 
 

Total revenue
 
   131,603        107,983        102,152

 
 

Expenses
 
                    

Compensation and benefits
 
   72,564        62,379        60,038

 
 

General and administrative
 
   28,518        23,323        23,241

 
 

Total expenses
 
   101,082        85,702        83,279

 
 

Income before other income (expense), net
 
   30,521        22,281        18,873

 
 

Other income (expense), net
 
                    

Other income (expense), net
 
   190        243        255   

Interest income
 
   7        13        169

 
 

Interest expense
 
   (383 )     (563 )     (481 ) 

Equity income from investments
 
   1,534        898        1,774

 
 

Total other income (expense), net
 
   1,348        591        1,717

 
 

Income before provision for income taxes
 
   31,869        22,872        20,590

 
 

Provision for income taxes
 
   (6,923 )     (5,394 )     (5,178 ) 

Net income
 
   24,946       17,478       15,412

 
 

  
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests

 
   (10,253 )     (7,518 )     (6,766 ) 

Net income attributable to Silvercrest
 
 $ 14,693      $ 9,960     $ 8,646   

  
Net income per share:

 
                    

Basic
 
 $ 1.52      $ 1.05      $ 0.98

 
 

Diluted
 
 $ 1.52      $ 1.05      $ 0.98

 
 

  
Weighted average shares outstanding:

 
                    

Basic
 
    9,673,597       9,503,197        8,797,118

 
 

Diluted
 
    9,690,309       9,510,720        8,799,643

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 
(In thousands) 

 

  

Class A 
Common 

Stock 
Shares   

Class A 
Common 

Stock 
Amount   

Class B 
Common 

Stock 
Shares   

Class B 
Common 

Stock 
Amount   

Additional 
Paid-In 
Capital   

Treasury 
Stock

Shares  

  
Treasury 

Stock
Amount  

Retained 
Earnings   

Total
Silvercrest Asset 

Management 
Group Inc.’s 

Equity  

Non- 
controlling 

Interest   
Total 
Equity   

January 1, 2019  8,518  $ 85   4,934  $ 48  $ 43,584  —  $ —  $ 12,330  $ 56,047  $ 26,352  $ 82,399  
Distributions to partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (7,698 )  (7,698 )
Issuance of Class B shares  —   —   665   7   —  —   —   —   7   8,965   8,972  
Equity-based compensation  2   —   242   2   23  —   —   —   25   2,247   2,272  
Repayment of notes receivable from partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   291   291  
Net Income  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   8,646   8,646   6,766   15,412  
Deferred tax, net of amounts payable under tax 
receivable agreement  —   —   —   —   1,500  —   —   —   1,500   —   1,500  
Accrued interest on notes receivable from 
partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (13 )  (13 )
Share Conversion  810   8   (810 )  (8 )  4,139  —   —   —   4,139   (4,139 )  —  
Dividends paid on Class A common stock - 
$0.60 per share  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   (5,328 )  (5,328 )  —   (5,328 )
December 31, 2019  9,330  $ 85   5,031  $ 49  $ 49,246  —  $ —  $ 15,328  $ 65,036  $ 32,771  $ 97,807  
Distributions to partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (6,297 )  (6,297 )
Equity-based compensation  3   —   9   —   106  —   —   —   106   585   691  
Repayment of notes receivable from partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   300   300  
Net Income  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   9,960   9,960   7,518   17,478  
Deferred tax, net of amounts payable under tax 
receivable agreement  —   —   —   —   (462 ) —   —   —   (462 )  —   (462 )
Accrued interest on notes receivable from 
partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (8 )  (8 )
Share Conversion  318   3   (318 )  (3 )  2,149  —   —   —   2,149   (2,149 )  —  
Dividends paid on Class A common stock - 
$0.64 per share  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   (6,110 )  (6,110 )  —   (6,110 )
December 31, 2020  9,651  $ 96   4,722  $ 46  $ 51,039  —  $ —  $ 19,498  $ 70,679  $ 32,720  $ 103,399  
Distributions to partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (6,680 )  (6,680 )
Issuance of Class B shares  —   —   102   1   —  —   —   —   1   1,173   1,174  
Issuance of notes receivable from partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (475 )  (475 )
Equity-based compensation  —   1   21   —   211  —   —   —   212   1,214   1,426  
Repayment of notes receivable from partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   228   228  
Net Income  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   14,693   14,693   10,253   24,946  
Deferred tax, net of amounts payable under tax 
receivable agreement  —   —   —   —   

(283
) —   —   —   

(283
)  —   

(283
)

Accrued interest on notes receivable from 
partners  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   —   —   (6 )  (6 )
Share Conversion  251   2   (251 )  (2 )  1,969  —   —   —   1,969   (1,969 )  —  
Purchase of shares of Class A common stock of 
Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.  (33 )  —   —   —   —  33   (512 )  —   (512 )  —   (512 )
Dividends paid on Class A common stock - 
$0.66 per share  —   —   —   —   —  —   —   (6,409 )  (6,409 )  —   (6,409 )
December 31, 2021  9,869  $ 99   4,594  $ 45  $ 52,936  33  $ (512 ) $ 27,782  $ 80,350  $ 36,458  $ 116,808  

 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(In thousands) 
  

  For the year ended December 31,  
  2021   2020   2019  

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
 
       

 
               

Net income
 
 $ 24,946  

 
 $ 17,478    $ 15,412    

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
 
     

 
            

Equity-based compensation
 
   1,426  

 
   659      2,272   

Depreciation and amortization
 
   3,923  

 
   3,968      3,191   

Deferred income taxes
 
   901  

 
   2,229      1,575   

Tax receivable agreement fair value adjustment   (114 )   (186 )   (200 )

Non-cash interest on notes receivable from partners
 
   (6 )

 
   (8 )     (13 ) 

Non-cash lease expense   3,938    3,417    —  

Distributions received from investment funds
 
   861  

 
   1,765      1,486   

Equity income from investments
 
   (1,534 )

 
   (898 )     (1,774 ) 

Cash flows due to changes in operating assets and liabilities:
 
     

 
            

Receivables and due from Silvercrest Funds
 
   81  

 
   1,296      (3,647 ) 

Prepaid expenses and other assets
 
   116  

 
   (815 )     (823 ) 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
 
   5,616  

 
   63      514   

Accrued compensation
 
   7,858  

 
   1,597      782   

Operating lease liabilities   (3,756 )   (3,721 )   —  

Other liabilities
 
   (3 )

 
   2      —   

Interest payable on notes payable
 
 

 
 25   

   —      —   

Net cash provided by operating activities
 
 

 
 44,278   

   26,846      18,775   

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
 
     

 
            

Acquisition of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements
 
 $ (908 )

 
 $ (626 )   $ (3,812 ) 

Acquisition of Neosho Capital, LLC   —    —    (399 )

Acquisition of Cortina Asset Management, LLC
 
   —  

 
   —      (35,169 ) 

Net cash used in investing activities
 
 

 
 (908 )  

   (626 )     (39,380 ) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
 
     

 
            

Earn-outs paid related to acquisitions
 
 $ (3,045 )

 
 $ (741 )   $ (425 )  

Borrowings under credit facility   —    —    18,000  

Repayments of notes payable
 
   (3,600 )

 
   (3,600 )     (1,800 ) 

Principal payments on financing leases
 
   (118 )

 
   (111 )     (107 ) 

Operating lease liabilities   —    —    1,221  

Distributions to partners
 
   (6,680 )

 
   (6,297 )     (7,698 ) 

Dividends paid on Class A common stock   (6,397 )   (6,105 )   (5,328 )
Purchase of shares of Class A common stock of Silvercrest Asset Management
     Group Inc.   (512 )   —    —  

Payments from partners on notes receivable
 
   228  

 
   300      291   

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
 
   (20,124 )  

   (16,554 )     4,154   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
 
   23,246  

 
   9,666      (16,451 ) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
 
   62,498  

 
   52,832      69,283    

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
 
 $ 85,744  

 
 $ 62,498    $ 52,832    

 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(continued) 
(In thousands) 

  
  For the year ended December 31,  
  2021   2020   2019  

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information  
 

  
  

   
 

  
  

   
 

  
  

  

Net cash paid during the period for:  
 

  
  

   
 

  
  

   
 

  
  

  

Income taxes  
 

$
4,848

 
 

 
 

$
3,129

   
 

$
4,274

 
 

Interest  
 

  
315

   
 

  
523

   
 

  
439

 
 

             
Supplemental Disclosures of Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities  

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
  

Notes receivable from new partners issued for capital contributions to Silvercrest L.P.  
 

 
$ 475

 
 

 
 

 
$ —

   
 

 
$ —

 
 

Earnout accrual for acquisition of Neosho Capital, LLC  
 

  
—

   
 

  
—

   
 

  
1,403

 
 

Issuance of Class B units of Silvercrest L. P. in conjunction with the acquisition  of Neosho 
  

25
   

—
   

 
  

20
 

Earnout accrual for acquisition of Cortina Asset Management, LLC
  

—

   

—

   
 

  

14,000

 

Issuance of Class B units of Silvercrest L. P. in conjunction with the acquisition of Cortina 
  

674
   

—
   

 
  

8,945
 

Issuance of Class B shares of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. in conjunction with the acquisition 
of Cortina, par value $0.01 

  
—

   
—

   
 

  
7

 

Recognition of deferred tax assets as a result of share conversions   566    883    1,057  
Assets acquired under capital leases   137    78    115  

Operating lease assets (ASC 842 adoption)
  

—
   

—
   

 
  

33,485
 

Finance lease assets (ASC 842 adoption)   —    —    198  

Operating lease liabilities (ASC 842 adoption)
  

—
   

—
   

 
  

39,848
 

Finance lease liabilities (ASC 842 adoption)
  

—
   

—
   

 
  

196
 

Accrued dividends   12    5    —  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
As of and for the Years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 

(Dollars in thousands, except per share or per unit amounts) 

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS 

Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. (“Silvercrest”), together with its consolidated subsidiary, Silvercrest L.P., a limited partnership, (collectively the “Company”), was 
formed as a Delaware corporation on July 11, 2011. Silvercrest is a holding company that was formed in order to carry on the business of Silvercrest L.P., the managing 
member of our operating subsidiary, and its subsidiaries.  Effective on June 26, 2013, Silvercrest became the sole general partner of Silvercrest L.P. and its only material asset 
is the general partner interest in Silvercrest L.P., represented by 9,869,101 Class A units or approximately 67.1% of the outstanding interests of Silvercrest L.P.  Silvercrest 
controls all of the businesses and affairs of Silvercrest L.P. and, through Silvercrest L.P. and its subsidiaries, continues to conduct the business previously conducted by these 
entities prior to the reorganization.  

Silvercrest L.P., together with its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively “SLP”), provides investment management and family office services to individuals and families and 
their trusts, and to endowments, foundations and other institutional investors primarily located in the United States of America. The business includes the management of 
funds of funds and other investment funds, collectively referred to as the “Silvercrest Funds”. 

Silvercrest L.P. was formed on December 10, 2008 and commenced operations on January 1, 2009. 

On March 11, 2004, Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC (“SAMG LLC”) acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of James C. Edwards Asset Management, Inc. 
(“JCE”) and subsequently changed JCE’s name to Silvercrest Financial Services, Inc. (“SFS”). On December 31, 2004, SLP acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of the 
LongChamp Group, Inc. (now SAM Alternative Solutions, Inc.) (“LGI”). Effective March 31, 2005, SLP entered into an Asset Contribution Agreement with and acquired all 
of the assets, properties, rights and certain liabilities of Heritage Financial Management, LLC (“HFM”). Effective October 3, 2008, SLP acquired 100% of the outstanding 
limited liability company interests of Marathon Capital Group, LLC (“MCG”) through a limited liability company interest purchase agreement dated September 22, 2008. On 
November 1, 2011, SLP acquired certain assets of Milbank Winthrop & Co. (“Milbank”). On April 1, 2012, SLP acquired 100% of the outstanding limited liability company 
interests of MW Commodity Advisors, LLC (“Commodity Advisors”). On March 28, 2013, SLP acquired certain assets of Ten-Sixty Asset Management, LLC (“Ten-Sixty”). 
On June 30, 2015, SLP acquired certain assets of Jamison, Eaton & Wood, Inc. (“Jamison”).  On January 11, 2016, SLP acquired certain assets of Cappiccille & Company, 
LLC (“Cappiccille”).  On January 1, 2019, SLP acquired certain assets of Neosho Capital LLC (“Neosho”).  On July 1, 2019, SLP acquired substantially all assets of Cortina 
Asset Management (“Cortina”).  See Notes 3, 7 and 8 for additional information related to the acquisition, goodwill and intangible assets arising from these acquisitions. 

Tax Receivable Agreement 

In connection with Silvercrest’s initial public offering (the “IPO”) and reorganization of SLP that was completed on June 23, 2013, Silvercrest entered into a tax receivable 
agreement (the “TRA”) with the partners of SLP that requires it to pay them 85% of the amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that it 
actually realizes (or is deemed to realize in the case of an early termination payment by it, or a change in control) as a result of the increases in tax basis and certain other tax 
benefits related to entering into the TRA, including tax benefits attributable to payments under the TRA or attributable to exchanges of shares of Class B common stock for 
shares of Class A common stock. The payments to be made pursuant to the tax receivable agreement are a liability of Silvercrest and not Silvercrest L.P.  As of December 31, 
2021 this liability is estimated to be $9,224 and is included in deferred tax and other liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.  Silvercrest expects to 
benefit from the remaining 15% of cash savings realized, if any. 

The TRA was effective upon the consummation of the IPO and will continue until all such tax benefits have been utilized or expired, unless Silvercrest exercises its right to 
terminate the TRA for an amount based on an agreed upon value of the payments remaining to be made under the agreement. The TRA will automatically terminate with 
respect to Silvercrest’s obligations to a partner if a partner (i) is terminated for cause, (ii) breaches his or her non-solicitation covenants with Silvercrest or any of its 
subsidiaries or (iii) voluntarily resigns or retires and competes with Silvercrest or any of its subsidiaries in the 12-month period following resignation of employment or 
retirement, and no further payments will be made to such partner under the TRA. 
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For purposes of the TRA, cash savings in income tax will be computed by comparing Silvercrest’s actual income tax liability to the amount of such taxes that it would have 
been required to pay had there been no increase in its share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of SLP. 

Estimating the amount of payments that Silvercrest may be required to make under the TRA is imprecise by nature, because the actual increase in its share of the tax basis, as 
well as the amount and timing of any payments under the TRA, will vary depending upon a number of factors, including:  

•the timing of exchanges of Silvercrest’s Class B units for shares of Silvercrest’s Class A common stock—for instance, the increase in any tax deductions will vary 
depending on the fair market value, which may fluctuate over time, of the depreciable and amortizable assets of SLP at the time of the exchanges; 

•the price of Silvercrest’s Class A common stock at the time of exchanges of Silvercrest’s Class B units—the increase in Silvercrest’s share of the basis in the assets of 
SLP, as well as the increase in any tax deductions, will be related to the price of Silvercrest’s Class A common stock at the time of these exchanges; 

•the extent to which these exchanges are taxable—if an exchange is not taxable for any reason (for instance, if a principal who holds Class B units exchanges units in 
order to make a charitable contribution), increased deductions will not be available; 

•the tax rates in effect at the time Silvercrest utilizes the increased amortization and depreciation deductions; and 

•the amount and timing of Silvercrest’s income—Silvercrest will be required to pay 85% of the tax savings, as and when realized, if any. If Silvercrest does not have 
taxable income, it generally will not be required to make payments under the TRA for that taxable year because no tax savings will have been actually realized. 

For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the valuation adjustment to the TRA related to the underlying deferred tax assets was $114, $186 and $200, 
respectively, and is included in Other income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In addition, the TRA provides that, upon certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business combinations or other changes of control, Silvercrest’s (or its successors’) 
obligations with respect to exchanged or acquired Class B units (whether exchanged or acquired before or after such transaction) would be based on certain assumptions, 
including that Silvercrest would have sufficient taxable income to fully utilize the deductions arising from the increased tax deductions and tax basis and other benefits related 
to entering into the TRA. 

Decisions made by the continuing partners of SLP in the course of running Silvercrest’s business, such as with respect to mergers, asset sales, other forms of business 
combinations or other changes in control, may influence the timing and amount of payments that are received by an exchanging or selling principal under the TRA. For 
example, the earlier disposition of assets following an exchange or acquisition transaction will generally accelerate payments under the TRA and increase the present value of 
such payments, and the disposition of assets before an exchange or acquisition transaction will increase an existing owner’s tax liability without giving rise to any rights of a 
principal to receive payments under the TRA. 

Were the IRS to successfully challenge the tax basis increases described above, Silvercrest would not be reimbursed for any payments previously made under the TRA. As a 
result, in certain circumstances, Silvercrest could make payments under the TRA in excess of its actual cash savings in income tax.   For the years ended December 31, 2021, 
2020 and 2019, Silvercrest made TRA payments totaling $669, $610 and $583, respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation 

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Silvercrest and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, SLP, SAMG LLC, SFS, MCG, Silvercrest 
Investors LLC, Silvercrest Investors II LLC and Silvercrest Investors III LLC as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019.  All intercompany 
transactions and balances have been eliminated. 

The Company evaluates for consolidation those entities it controls through a majority voting interest or otherwise, including those Silvercrest Funds over which the general 
partner or equivalent is presumed to have control, e.g. by virtue of the limited partners not being able to remove the general partner. The initial step in the Company’s 
determination of whether a fund for which SLP is the general partner is required to be consolidated is assessing whether the fund is a variable interest entity or a voting 
interest entity.

SLP then considers whether the fund is a voting interest entity (“VoIE”) in which the unaffiliated limited partners have substantive “kick-out” rights that provide the ability 
to dissolve (liquidate) the limited partnership or otherwise remove the general partner without cause. SLP considers the “kick-out” rights to be substantive if the general 
partner for the fund can be removed by the vote of a simple majority of the unaffiliated limited partners and there are no significant barriers to the unaffiliated limited 
partners’ ability to exercise these rights in that among other things, (1) there are no conditions or timing limits on when the rights can be exercised, (2) there are no financial 
or operational barriers associated with replacing the general partner, (3) there are a number of qualified replacement investment advisors that would accept appointment at 
the same fee level, (4) each fund’s documents provide for the ability to call and conduct a vote, and (5) the information necessary to exercise the kick-out rights and related 
vote are available from the fund and its administrator.

If the fund is a variable interest entity, SLP then determines whether it has a variable interest in the fund, and if so, whether SLP is the primary beneficiary.  In determining 
whether SLP is the primary beneficiary, SLP evaluates its control rights as well as economic interests in the entity held either directly or indirectly by SLP. The 
consolidation analysis can generally be performed qualitatively; however, if it is not readily apparent that SLP is not the primary beneficiary, a quantitative analysis may 
also be performed. Amendments to the governing documents of the respective Silvercrest Funds could affect an entity’s status as a VIE or the determination of the primary 
beneficiary. At each reporting date, SLP assesses whether it is the primary beneficiary and will consolidate or deconsolidate accordingly.    

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, each fund is deemed to be a VoIE and neither SLP nor Silvercrest 
consolidated any of the Silvercrest Funds.

Non-controlling interest 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Silvercrest holds approximately 67.5% and 66.8%, respectively, of the economic interests in SLP. Silvercrest is the sole general partner 
of SLP and, therefore, controls the management of SLP. As a result, Silvercrest consolidates the financial position and the results of operations of SLP and its subsidiaries, 
and records a non-controlling interest, as a separate component of equity on its Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition for the remaining economic interests in SLP. 
The non-controlling interest in the income or loss of SLP is included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as a reduction or addition to net income derived from SLP. 

Segment Reporting 

The Company views its operations as comprising one operating segment, the investment management industry. Each of the Company’s acquired businesses have similar 
economic characteristics and have been fully integrated upon acquisition. Furthermore, our chief operating decision maker, which is the Company’s Chief Executive 
Officer, monitors and reviews financial information at a consolidated level for assessing operating results and the allocation of resources. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and other income 
reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates and assumptions made 
by management include the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities, determination of equity-based compensation, accounting for income taxes, determination of the 
useful lives of long-lived assets and other matters that affect the Consolidated Financial Statements and related disclosures. 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all highly liquid securities with original maturities of 90 days or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Equity Method Investments 

The Company accounts for investment activities related to entities over which the Company exercises significant influence but do not meet the requirements for 
consolidation, using the equity method of accounting, whereby the Company records its share of the underlying income or losses of these entities. Intercompany profit 
arising from transactions with affiliates is eliminated to the extent of its beneficial interest. Equity in losses of equity method investments is not recognized after the carrying 
value of an investment, including advances and loans, has been reduced to zero, unless guarantees or other funding obligations exist. 

The Company evaluates its equity method investments for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of such investments 
may not be recoverable. The difference between the carrying value of the equity method investment and its estimated fair value is recognized as an impairment when the 
loss in value is deemed other than temporary. The Company’s equity method investments approximate their fair value at December 31, 2021 and 2020. The fair value of the 
equity method investments is estimated based on the Company’s share of the fair value of the net assets of the equity method investee. No impairment charges related to 
equity method investments were recorded during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 . 

Receivables and Due from Silvercrest Funds 

Receivables consist primarily of amounts for management and advisory fees, performance fees and allocations and family office service fees due from clients, and are stated 
as net realizable value. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful receivables based on estimates of expected losses and specific identification of uncollectible 
accounts. The Company charges actual losses to the allowance when incurred. 

Furniture, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements 

Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements consist primarily of furniture, fixtures and equipment, computer hardware and software and leasehold improvements and 
are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated 
useful lives, which for leasehold improvements is the lesser of the lease term or the life of the asset, generally 10 years, and 3 to 7 years for other fixed assets. 

Business Combinations 

The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The acquisition method of accounting requires that purchase price, including 
the fair value of contingent consideration, of the acquisition be allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed using the fair values determined by management as of 
the acquisition date. The method for determining relative fair value varied depending on the type of asset or liability and involved management making significant estimates 
related to assumptions such as future growth rates used to produce financial projections and the selection of unobservable inputs and other assumptions. The inputs used in 
establishing the fair value are in most cases unobservable and reflect the Company's own judgments about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Contingent consideration is recorded as part of the purchase price when such contingent consideration is not based on continuing 
employment of the selling shareholders. Contingent consideration that is related to continuing employment is recorded as compensation expense. Payments made for 
contingent consideration recorded as part of an acquisition’s purchase price are reflected as financing activities in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. 

The Company remeasures the fair value of contingent consideration at each reporting period using a probability-adjusted discounted cash flow method based on significant 
inputs not observable in the market and any change in the fair value from either the passage of time or events occurring after the acquisition date, is recorded in earnings. 
Contingent consideration payments that exceed the acquisition date fair value of the contingent consideration are reflected as an operating activity in the Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows. 
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The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, including intangibles, and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. The Company 
generally uses valuation specialists to perform appraisals and assist in the determination of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. These valuations 
require management to make estimates and assumptions that are critical in determining the fair values of the assets and liabilities. During the measurement period, the 
Company may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Any adjustments to provisional amounts that are identified during the measurement period 
are recorded in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period, any subsequent adjustments are 
recorded to earnings.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill consists of the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is evaluated for 
impairment at least annually, on October 1st of each year, or whenever events or circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. 

The Company accounts for goodwill under Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) No. 350, “Intangibles - Goodwill and Other,” which provides an entity the option to 
first perform a qualitative assessment of whether a reporting unit’s fair value is more likely than not less than its carrying value, including goodwill. In performing its 
qualitative assessment, an entity considers the extent to which adverse events or circumstances identified, such as changes in economic conditions, industry and market 
conditions or entity specific events, could affect the comparison of the reporting unit’s fair value with its carrying amount. If an entity concludes that the fair value of a 
reporting unit is more likely than not less than its carrying amount, the entity is required to perform the currently prescribed two-step goodwill impairment test to identify 
potential goodwill impairment and, accordingly, measure the amount, if any, of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that reporting unit. The Company utilized this 
option when performing its annual impairment assessment in 2021, 2020 and 2019, and concluded that its single reporting unit’s fair value was more likely than not greater 
than its carrying value, including goodwill.

The Company has one reporting unit at December 31, 2021 and 2020. No goodwill impairment charges were recorded during the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 
2019. 

Intangible assets of the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net carrying amount of the asset may not be 
recoverable. In connection with such review, the Company also re-evaluates the periods of amortization for these assets. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is 
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be 
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value. 

Identifiable finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 20 years. The method of amortization is based on the pattern over 
which the economic benefits, generally expected undiscounted cash flows, of the intangible asset are consumed. Intangible assets for which no pattern can be reliably 
determined are amortized using the straight-line method. Intangible assets consist primarily of the contractual right to future management, advisory and performance fees 
from customer contracts or relationships. 

Long-lived Assets 

Long-lived assets of the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net carrying amount of the asset may not be 
recoverable. In connection with such review, the Company also re-evaluates the periods of depreciation and amortization for these assets. Recoverability of assets to be held 
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are 
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value. 

Treasury Stock

On July 29, 2021, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to $15,000,000 
of the Company’s outstanding Class A common stock (the “Repurchase Program”). Repurchases under the Repurchase Program may be made using either cash on hand, 
borrowings under the Company’s existing credit facilities or other sources, or (a) one or more 10b5-1 share trading plans, to be established with one or more banks or 
brokers (the “Trading Plans”), (b) pursuant to accelerated share repurchase programs with one or more investment banks or other financial intermediaries (the “ASR 
Programs”), or (c) through repurchases to be made outside of the Trading Plans or ASR Programs but in compliance with all applicable requirements under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), including the safe harbor provided by Exchange Act Rule 10b-18, and consummated during an open trading 
window under the Company’s 
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insider trading policy. The program may be amended, suspended, or discontinued at any time and does not commit the Company to repurchase any shares of Common 
Stock.

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had purchased 33,083 shares of Class A common stock for an aggregate price of approximately $512.

Treasury stock is accounted for under the cost method and is included as a deduction from equity in the Company’s Equity section of the Consolidated Statement of 
Financial Condition. Upon any subsequent retirement or resale, the treasury stock account is reduced by the cost of such stock.

Partner Distributions 

Partner incentive allocations, which are determined by the general partner, can be formula-based or discretionary. Partner incentive allocations are treated as compensation 
expense and recognized in the period in which they are earned. In the event there is insufficient distributable cash flow to make incentive distributions, the general partner in 
its sole and absolute discretion may determine not to make any distributions called for under the partnership agreement. The remaining net income or loss after partner 
incentive allocations is generally allocated to unit holders based on their pro rata ownership. 

Redeemable Partnership Units 

If a principal of SLP is terminated for cause, SLP has the right to redeem all of the vested Class B units collectively held by the principal and his or her permitted transferees 
for a purchase price equal to the lesser of (i) the aggregate capital account balance in SLP of the principal and his or her permitted transferees or (ii) the purchase price paid 
by the terminated principal to first acquire the Class B units. 

SLP also makes distributions to its partners of various nature including incentive payments, profit distributions and tax distributions.  The profit distributions and tax 
distributions are accounted for as equity transactions. 

Class A Common Stock 

The Company’s Class A stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s stockholders. Also, Class A 
stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if declared by the Company’s board of directors, out of funds legally available therefor, subject to any statutory or 
contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends and to any restrictions on the payment of dividends imposed by the terms of any outstanding preferred stock. Dividends 
consisting of shares of Class A common stock may be paid only as follows: (i) shares of Class A common stock may be paid only to holders of shares of Class A common 
stock and (ii) shares will be paid proportionately with respect to each outstanding share of the Company’s Class A common stock. Upon the Company’s liquidation, 
dissolution or winding-up, or the sale of all, or substantially all, of the Company’s assets, after payment in full of all amounts required to be paid to creditors and to holders 
of preferred stock having a liquidation preference, if any, the Class A stockholders will be entitled to share ratably in the Company’s remaining assets available for 
distribution to Class A stockholders. Class B units of SLP held by principals will be exchangeable for shares of the Company’s Class A common stock, on a one-for-one 
basis, subject to customary adjustments for share splits, dividends and reclassifications. 

Class B Common Stock 

Shares of the Company’s Class B common stock are issuable only in connection with the issuance of Class B units of SLP. When a vested or unvested Class B unit is issued 
by SLP, the Company will issue the holder one share of its Class B common stock in exchange for the payment of its par value. Each share of the Company’s Class B 
common stock will be redeemed for its par value and cancelled by the Company if the holder of the corresponding Class B unit exchanges or forfeits its Class B unit 
pursuant to the terms of the Second Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of SLP and the terms of the Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. 2012 
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2012 Equity Incentive Plan”). The Company’s Class B stockholders will be entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters 
submitted to a vote of the Company’s stockholders. The Company’s Class B stockholders will not participate in any dividends declared by the Company’s board of directors. 
Upon the Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, or the sale of all, or substantially all, of its assets, Class B stockholders only will be entitled to receive the par 
value of the Company’s Class B common stock. 
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Revenue Recognition 

The Company generates revenue from management and advisory fees, performance fees and allocations, and family office services fees. Management and advisory fees and 
performance fees and allocations are generated by managing assets on behalf of separate accounts and acting as investment adviser for various investment funds. 
Performance fees and allocations also relate to assets managed in external investment strategies in which the Company has a revenue sharing arrangement and in funds in 
which the Company has no partnership interest. Management and advisory fees and family office services fees income is recognized through the course of the period in 
which these services are provided. Income from performance fees and allocations is recorded at the conclusion of the contractual performance period when all contingencies 
are resolved. In certain arrangements, the Company is only entitled to receive performance fees and allocations when the return on assets under management exceeds certain 
benchmark returns or other performance targets.

The discretionary investment management agreements for the Company’s separately managed accounts do not have a specified term. Rather, each agreement may be 
terminated by either party at any time, unless otherwise agreed with the client, upon written notice of termination to the other party. The investment management agreements 
for the Company’s private funds are generally in effect from year to year, and may be terminated at the end of any year (or, in certain cases, on the anniversary of execution 
of the agreement) (i) by the Company upon 30 or 90 days’ prior written notice and (ii) after receiving the affirmative vote of a simple majority of the investors in the private 
fund that are not affiliated with the Company, by the private fund on 60 or 90 days’ prior written notice. The investment management agreements for the private funds may 
also generally be terminated effective immediately by either party where the non-terminating party (i) commits a material breach of the terms subject, in certain cases, to a 
cure period, (ii) is found to have committed fraud, gross negligence or willful misconduct or (iii) terminates, becomes bankrupt, becomes insolvent or dissolves. Each of the 
Company’s investment management agreements contains customary indemnification obligations from the Company to their clients.

The management and advisory fees are primarily driven by the level of the Company’s assets under management. The assets under management increase or decrease based 
on the net inflows or outflows of funds into the Company’s various investment strategies and the investment performance of their clients’ accounts. In order to increase the 
Company’s assets under management and expand their business, the Company must develop and market investment strategies that suit the investment needs of their target 
clients and provide attractive returns over the long term. The Company’s ability to continue to attract clients will depend on a variety of factors including, among others:

•the ability to educate the Company’s target clients about the Company’s classic value investment strategies and provide them with exceptional client service;

•the relative investment performance of the Company’s investment strategies, as compared to competing products and market indices;

•competitive conditions in the investment management and broader financial services sectors;

•investor sentiment and confidence; and

•The decision to close strategies when the Company deems it to be in the best interests of their clients.

The majority of management and advisory fees that the Company earns on separately-managed accounts are based on the value of assets under management on the last day 
of each calendar quarter. Most of the management and advisory fees are billed quarterly in advance on the first day of each calendar quarter. The Company’s basic annual 
fee schedule for management of clients’ assets in separately managed accounts is generally: (i) for managed equity or balanced portfolios, 1% of the first $10 million and 
0.60% on the balance, (ii) for managed fixed income only portfolios, 0.40% on the first $10 million and 0.30% on the balance, (iii) for the municipal value strategy, 0.65%, 
(iv) for Cortina equity portfolios, 1.0% on the first $25 million, 0.90% on the next $25 million and 0.80% on the balance and (v) for outsourced chief investment officer 
portfolios, 0.40% on the first $50 million, 0.32% on the next $50 million and 0.24% on the balance. The Company’s fee for monitoring non-discretionary assets can range 
from 0.05% to 0.01%, but can also be incorporated into an agreed-upon fixed family office service fee. The majority of the Company’s client relationships pay a blended fee 
rate since they are invested in multiple strategies.

Management fees earned on investment funds that the Company advises are calculated primarily based on the net assets of the funds. Some funds calculate investment fees 
based on the net assets of the funds as of the last business day of each calendar quarter, whereas other funds calculate investment fees based on the value of net assets on the 
first business day of the month. Depending on the investment fund, fees are paid either quarterly in advance or quarterly in arrears. For the Company’s private funds, the fees 
range from 0.25% to 1.5% annually. Certain management fees earned on investment funds for which the Company performs risk management and due diligence services are 
based on flat fee agreements customized for each engagement.
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The Company’s management and advisory fees may fluctuate based on a number of factors, including the following:

•changes in assets under management due to appreciation or depreciation of their investment portfolios, and the levels of the contribution and withdrawal of assets by 
new and existing clients;

•allocation of assets under management among their investment strategies, which have different fee schedules;

•allocation of assets under management between separately managed accounts and advised funds, for which the Company generally earn lower overall management 
and advisory fees; and

•the level of their performance with respect to accounts and funds on which the Company is paid incentive fees.

The Company’s performance fees and allocations may fluctuate based on performance with respect to accounts and funds on which the Company is paid incentive fees and 
allocations.

The Company’s family office services capabilities enable us to provide comprehensive and integrated services to their clients. The Company’s dedicated group of tax and 
financial planning professionals provide financial planning, tax planning and preparation, partnership accounting and fund administration and consolidated wealth reporting 
among other services. Family office services income fluctuates based on both the number of clients for whom the Company performs these services and the level of agreed-
upon fees, most of which are flat fees. Therefore, non-discretionary assets under management, which are associated with family office services, do not typically serve as the 
basis for the amount of family office services revenue that is recognized. Family office services fees are also typically billed quarterly in advance at the beginning of the 
quarter or in arrears after the end of the quarter based on a contractual percentage of the assets managed or upon a contractually agreed-upon flat fee arrangement. Revenue 
is recognized on a ratable basis over the period in which services are performed. 

The Company accounts for performance-based revenue in accordance with ASC 606 by recognizing performance fees and allocations as revenue only when it is certain that 
the fee income is earned and payable pursuant to the relevant agreements. In certain arrangements, the Company is only entitled to receive performance fees and allocations 
when the return on assets under management exceeds certain benchmark returns or other performance targets. The Company records performance fees and allocations as a 
component of revenue once the performance fee which is recognized at a point in time upon crystallization of the performance fee. As a result, there is no estimate or 
variability in the consideration when revenue is recorded.

Equity-Based Compensation 

Equity-based compensation costs relating to the issuance of share-based awards to employees are based on the fair value of the award at the date of grant, which is expensed 
ratably over the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures. The forfeiture assumption is ultimately adjusted to the actual forfeiture rate. Therefore, changes in the 
forfeiture assumptions may affect the timing of the total amount of expense recognized over the vesting period. The service period is the period over which the employee 
performs the related services, which is normally the same as the vesting period. Equity-based awards that do not require future service are expensed immediately. Equity-
based awards that have the potential to be settled in cash at the election of the employee are classified as liabilities (“Liability Awards”) and are adjusted to fair value at the 
end of each reporting period. 

Leases 

The Company accounts for leases under ASU No. 2016-02, “Topic 842, Leases” (“ASC 842”), which requires lessees to recognize leases on-balance sheet and disclose key 
information about leasing arrangements. ASC 842 established a right-of-use model (“ROU”) that requires a lessee to recognize a ROU asset and lease liability on the 
balance sheet for all leases with a term longer than 12 months. Leases are classified as finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern and classification of 
expense recognition in the consolidated statement of operations.

Income Taxes 

Silvercrest and SFS are subject to federal and state corporate income tax, which requires an asset and liability approach to the financial accounting and reporting of income 
taxes. SLP is not subject to federal and state income taxes, since all income, gains and losses are passed through to its partners. SLP is, however, subject to New York City 
unincorporated business tax. With respect to the Company’s incorporated entities, the annual tax rate is based on the income, statutory tax rates and tax planning 
opportunities available in the various jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Tax laws are complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and 
respective governmental taxing authorities. Judgment is required in determining the tax expense and in evaluating tax positions. The tax effects of any uncertain tax position 
(“UTP”) taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns are recognized only if it is “more likely-than-not” to be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, 
based on its technical merits as of the reporting date. The tax 

F-17



  

benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of 
being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes estimated accrued interest and penalties related to UTPs in income tax expense. 

The Company recognizes the benefit of a UTP in the period when it is effectively settled. Previously recognized tax positions are derecognized in the first period in which it 
is no longer more likely than not that the tax position would be sustained upon examination.  

Recent Accounting Developments

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Accounting for Credit Losses” which amends the Board’s guidance on the impairment of financial instruments. The ASU 
adds to U.S. GAAP an impairment model (known as the current expected credit loss (CECL) model) that is based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. Under the 
new guidance, an entity recognizes as an allowance its estimate of expected credit losses, which the FASB believes will result in more timely recognition of such losses. 
This amendment became effective for the Company on January 1, 2020. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, “Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That is a Service 
Contract.” The ASU provides guidance for entities to evaluate the accounting for fees paid by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement which includes a software 
license. ASU 2018-15 became effective for the Company on January 1, 2020.  The adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on the Company’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, “Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting” which applies to all entities, subject to 
meeting certain criteria, that have contracts, hedging relationships, and other transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued 
because of reference rate reform. This ASU is effective for all public entities beginning March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022.  The Company expects the adoption of 
this guidance will not have a material effect on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
3. ACQUISITIONS 

Cortina:

On April 12, 2019, SAMG LLC and SLP entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Cortina Asset Management, LLC, a Wisconsin limited 
liability company (“Cortina”), and certain interest holders of Cortina (together, the “Principals of Cortina”) to acquire, directly or through a designated affiliate, substantially 
all of the assets of Cortina relating to Cortina’s business of providing investment management, investment advisory, and related services (the “Cortina Acquisition”).

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, SAMG LLC agreed to pay to Cortina an aggregate maximum amount of $44,937, 80% of which was 
agreed to be paid in cash at closing by SAMG LLC, and 20% of which was agreed to be paid by SLP in the form of issuance and delivery to certain Principals at closing of 
Class B Units in SLP, in each case subject to certain adjustments as described in the Purchase Agreement.

On July 1, 2019, the acquisition was completed pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.  At closing, SAMG LLC paid to Cortina an aggregate principal amount of $33,577 in 
cash, and SLP paid an additional $8,952, in the form of issuance and delivery to certain Principals of 662,713 Class B Units in SLP.  The $33,577 paid in cash represented 
$35,072 in consideration, partially offset by net closing credits due to SAMG LLC for reimbursable expenses from Cortina. 

In addition, the Purchase Agreement provides for up to an additional $26,209 to be paid 80% in cash with certain Principals receiving the remaining 20% in the form of Class 
B Units of SLP in potential earn-out payments over the next four years.  SAMG LLC determined that the preliminary fair value of contingent consideration pursuant to the 
terms of the Purchase Agreement whereby the sellers of Cortina are potentially entitled to two retention payments and one growth payment contingent upon the achievement 
of various revenue targets is $13,800.  The estimated fair value of contingent consideration is recognized at the date of acquisition, and adjusted for changes in facts and 
circumstances until the ultimate resolution of the contingency.  Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are reflected as a component of general and 
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.  The income approach was used to determine the fair value of these payments, by estimating a range of 
likely expected outcomes and payouts given these outcomes.  The potential payouts were estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation and discounted back to their present 
values using a risk-free discount rate adjusted to account for SAMG LLC’s credit or counterparty risk to arrive at the present value of the contingent consideration payments.  
The discount rate for the contingent consideration payments was based on the revenue cost of capital for Cortina’s revenue.   
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The first retention payment, due if revenue for the 12-month period from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 is greater than or equal to 95% of the acquired revenue of $13,027 
which represents Cortina’s annual revenue run-rate as of closing (“Acquired Revenue”), is equal to $3,370.  If revenue for the period is equal to 75% or less of the Acquired 
Revenue, there is no first retention payment, and if revenue for the period is between 75% and 95%, the first retention payment will be determined using linear interpolation 
between $0 and $3,370.  Cortina’s revenue for the 12-month period from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 exceeded 95% of the acquired revenue of $13,027, therefore, a first 
retention payment of $3,370 was due as of June 30, 2021.  The first retention payment was paid on July 30, 2021 in the form of $2,696 in cash and $674 in equity.

The second retention payment is based on revenue for the 12-month period from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, with a revenue threshold between 85% and 105% of Acquired 
Revenue and a maximum retention payment of $5,617.  If revenue for the period is equal to 85% or less of the Acquired Revenue, there is no second retention payment, and if 
revenue for the period is between 85% and 105%, the second retention payment will be determined using linear interpolation between $0 and $5,617.

The growth payment is based on revenue for the 12-month period from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, with a revenue threshold between 95% and 140% of Acquired Revenue 
and a maximum payment of $17,222.  If revenue for the period is equal to 95% or less of the Acquired Revenue, there is no growth payment, and if revenue for the period is 
between 95% and 140%, the growth payment will be determined using linear interpolation between $0 and $17,222.

Fair value adjustments to contingent purchase price consideration of $5,670, $1,100 and $200 were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the years then ended.  SAMG LLC has a liability of 
$16,300 and $15,100 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, for contingent consideration related to earnout payments to be made in conjunction with the Cortina 
Acquisition, which is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

In connection with their receipt of the equity consideration, the Principals of Cortina became subject to the rights and obligations set forth in the limited partnership agreement 
of SLP and are entitled to distributions consistent with SLP’s distribution policy.  In addition, the Principals of Cortina became parties to the Exchange Agreement, which 
governs the exchange of Class B Units for Class A common stock of the Company, the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement, which provides the Principals of Cortina 
with liquidity with respect to shares of Class A common stock of the Company received in exchange for Class B Units, and the TRA of the Company, which entitles the 
Principals of Cortina to share in a portion of the tax benefit received by the Company upon the exchange of Class B Units for Class A common stock of the Company.

The Purchase Agreement includes customary representations, warranties and covenants.

The strategic acquisition of Cortina, a long-standing innovative and high-caliber growth equity asset management firm, establishes a growth equity capability for the 
Company.  Furthermore, the Company gains investment professionals that have significant experience and knowledge of the industry and establishes a presence in the 
Midwest.

Cortina revenue and income before provision for income taxes for the twelve months ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 that are included in the Consolidated Statement of 
Operations are $14,739 and $5,569, and $11,642 and $3,016, respectively.

During 2021 and 2020, the Company incurred $18 and $90, respectively, in costs related to the Cortina Acquisition, and has included these in general, administrative and 
other in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
 

Cash paid on date of acquisition $ 17,072 
Term loan with City National Bank drawdown  18,000
Units issued  8,952
Contingent consideration  13,800
Total purchase consideration $ 57,824

The Company accounted for the acquisition under the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated to the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values. The method for determining relative fair value varied depending on the type of asset or liability and 
involved management making significant estimates related to assumptions such as future growth rates used to produce financial projections for Cortina and the selection of 
unobservable inputs and other assumptions. The inputs used in establishing the fair value are in most cases unobservable and reflect 
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the Company's own judgments about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.  

The following table summarizes the amounts preliminarily allocated to acquired assets and assumed liabilities.  The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair 
values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was allocated to goodwill and intangible assets.
 

Total fair value of tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed $ —
Goodwill  36,324
Customer relationships (15 years)  21,500
Total purchase consideration $ 57,824

The purchase price allocations as presented above were finalized as of December 31, 2019. 

The Company believes the recorded goodwill is supported by the anticipated revenues and expected synergies of integrating the operations of Cortina into the Company.  Most 
of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The pro forma information below represents consolidated results of operations as if the acquisition of Cortina occurred on January 1, 2019. The pro forma information has 
been included for comparative purposes and is not indicative of results of operations of the Company had the acquisitions occurred as of January 1, 2019, nor is it 
necessarily indicative of future results.
 

  
Pro Forma
Year Ended

December 31, 2019

 

Revenue $ 108,345  
Net Income $ 15,990  

 
Neosho:

On December 13, 2018, the Company executed an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”) by and among the Company, SLP, SAMG LLC (the 
“Buyer”) and Neosho Capital LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Neosho” or the “Seller”), and Christopher K. Richey, Alphonse I. Chan, Robert K. Choi and 
Vincent G. Pandes, each such individual a principal of Neosho (together, the “Principals of Neosho”), to acquire certain assets of Neosho.  The transaction contemplated by the 
Asset Purchase Agreement closed on January 15, 2019 and is referred to herein as the “Neosho Acquisition”.

Pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, SAMG LLC acquired substantially all of the business and assets of the Seller, a provider of investment management 
and advisory services, including goodwill and the benefit of the amortization of goodwill related to such assets. In consideration of the purchased assets and goodwill, SAMG 
LLC paid to the Seller and the Principal an aggregate purchase price consisting of (1) a cash payment of $399 (net of cash acquired) and (2) Class B units of SLP issued to the 
Principals of Neosho with a value equal to $20 and an equal number of shares of Class B common stock of the Company, having voting rights but no economic interest. The 
Company determined that the acquisition-date fair value of the contingent consideration was $1,686, based on the likelihood that the financial and performance targets 
described in the Asset Purchase Agreement will be achieved.  SAMG LLC made a payment of $300 to the Principals of Neosho on the first anniversary of the closing date.  
SAMG LLC will make earnout payments to the Principals of Neosho as soon as practicable following December 31, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023, in an amount equal to the 
greater of (i) $100 and (ii) the product obtained by multiplying (x) 50% by (y) the revenue of Neosho as of such payment date less the revenue of Neosho as of the 
immediately preceding payment date for the prior year.  Earnout payments will be paid 75% in cash and 25% in equity.  The estimated fair value of contingent consideration is 
recognized at the date of acquisition, and adjusted for changes in facts and circumstances until the ultimate resolution of the contingency. Changes in the fair value of 
contingent consideration are reflected as a component of general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair value of the contingent 
consideration was based on discounted cash flow models using projected revenue for each earnout period. The discount rate applied to the projected revenue was determined 
based on the weighted average cost of capital for the Company and took into account that the overall risk associated with the payments was similar to the overall risks of the 
Company as there is no target, floor or cap associated with the contingent payments.  

Fair value adjustments to contingent purchase price consideration of ($365), ($75) and ($283) were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, and are included in general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated 
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Statement of Operations for the years then ended.  The Company has a liability of $563 and $1,028 for contingent consideration related to earnout payments to be made in 
conjunction with the Neosho Acquisition, which is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company made contingent purchase price payments to Neosho of $100 and $300, 
respectively.

Cappiccille:

On December 15, 2015, the Company executed an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”) by and among the Company, SLP, SAMG LLC (the 
“Buyer”) and Cappiccille & Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Cappiccille” or the “Seller”), and Michael Cappiccille (the “Principal”), to acquire certain 
assets of Cappiccille.  The transaction contemplated by the Asset Purchase Agreement closed on January 11, 2016 and is referred to herein as the “Cappiccille Acquisition”.

Pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, SAMG LLC acquired (i) substantially all of the business and assets of the Seller, a provider of tax services, including 
goodwill and the benefit of the amortization of goodwill related to such assets, and (ii) the personal goodwill of the Principal. In consideration of the purchased assets and 
goodwill, SAMG LLC paid to the Seller and the Principal an aggregate purchase price consisting of a cash payment of $148. The Company determined that the acquisition-
date fair value of the contingent consideration was $354, based on the likelihood that the financial and performance targets described in the Asset Purchase Agreement will be 
achieved.  SAMG LLC will make earnout payments to the Principal as soon as practicable following December 31, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, and during 2020, in an amount 
equal to 19% of the revenue attributable to the business and assets of Cappiccille, based on revenue gained or lost post-transaction during the twelve months ended on the 
applicable determination date, except that the earnout payment for 2016 shall be equal to 19% of the revenue attributable to the Cappiccille for the period between the closing 
date of the Cappiccille Acquisition and December 31, 2016 and the earnout payment for 2020 shall be equal to 19% of the revenue attributable to the Cappiccille Acquisition 
for the period between January 1, 2020 and the fifth anniversary of the closing date of the Cappiccille Acquisition.  The estimated fair value of contingent consideration is 
recognized at the date of acquisition, and adjusted for changes in facts and circumstances until the ultimate resolution of the contingency. Changes in the fair value of 
contingent consideration are reflected as a component of general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The fair value of the contingent 
consideration was based on discounted cash flow models using projected revenue for each earnout period. The discount rate applied to the projected revenue was determined 
based on the weighted average cost of capital for the Company and took into account that the overall risk associated with the payments was similar to the overall risks of the 
Company as there is no target, floor or cap associated the contingent payments.

Fair value adjustments to contingent purchase price consideration of $0, $126 and ($25) were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, 
and are included in general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year then ended. The Company has a liability of $0 and $114 for 
contingent consideration related to Cappiccille included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, respectively.  During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company made contingent purchase price payments to Cappiccille of $114 and $113, 
respectively.  

Jamison:

On March 30, 2015, the Company executed an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”), by and among the Company, SLP, SAMG LLC (the “Buyer”) 
and Jamison Eaton & Wood, Inc., a New Jersey corporation (“Jamison” or the “Seller”), and Keith Wood, Ernest Cruikshank, III, William F. Gadsden and Frederick E. 
Thalmann, Jr., each such individual a principal of Jamison (together, the “Principals of Jamison”), to acquire certain assets of Jamison.  The transaction contemplated by the 
Asset Purchase Agreement closed on June 30, 2015 and is referred to herein as the “Jamison Acquisition”.
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Pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement, SAMG LLC acquired (i) substantially all of the business and assets of the Seller, an investment adviser, including 
goodwill and the benefit of the amortization of goodwill related to such assets and (ii) the personal goodwill of the Principals of Jamison. In consideration of the purchased 
assets and goodwill, SAMG LLC paid to the Seller and the Principals of Jamison an aggregate purchase price consisting of (1) cash payments in the aggregate amount of 
$3,550 (the “Closing Cash Payment”), (2) a promissory note issued to the Seller in the principal amount of $394, with an interest rate of 5% per annum (the “Seller Note”), (3) 
promissory notes in varying amounts issued to each of the Principals of Jamison for an aggregated total amount of $1,771, each with an interest rate of 5% per annum 
(together, the “Principals of Jamison Notes”) and (4) Class B units of SLP (the “Class B Units”) issued to the Principals of Jamison with a value equal to $3,562 and an equal 
number of shares of Class B common stock of the Company, having voting rights but no economic interest (together, the “Equity Consideration”). The Company determined 
that the acquisition-date fair value of the contingent consideration was $1,429, based on the likelihood that the financial and performance targets described in the Asset 
Purchase Agreement will be achieved.  SAMG LLC will make earnout payments to the Principals of Jamison as soon as practicable following December 31, 2015, 2016, 
2017, 2018, 2019 and during 2020, in an amount equal to 20% of the EBITDA attributable to the business and assets of Jamison (the “Jamison Business”), based on revenue 
gained or lost post-transaction during the twelve months ended on the applicable determination date, except that the earnout payment for 2015 shall be equal to 20% of the 
EBITDA attributable to the Jamison Business for the period between the closing date of the Jamison Acquisition and December 31, 2015 and the earnout payment for 2020 
shall be equal to 20% of the EBITDA attributable to the Jamison Business for the period between January 1, 2020 and the fifth anniversary of the closing date of the Jamison 
Acquisition.  The estimated fair value of contingent consideration is recognized at the date of acquisition, and adjusted for changes in facts and circumstances until the 
ultimate resolution of the contingency. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are reflected as a component of general and administrative expenses in the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations. The fair value of the contingent consideration was based on discounted cash flow models using projected EBITDA for each earnout 
period. The discount rate applied to the to the projected EBITDA was determined based on the weighted average cost of capital for the Company and took into account that 
the overall risk associated with the payments was similar to the overall risks of the Company as there is no target, floor or cap associated the contingent payments.  

In connection with their receipt of the Equity Consideration, the Principals of Jamison became subject to the rights and obligations set forth in the limited partnership 
agreement of SLP and are entitled to distributions consistent with SLP’s distribution policy.  In addition, the Principals of Jamison became parties to the Exchange Agreement, 
which governs the exchange of Class B Units for Class A common stock of the Company, the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement, which provides the Principals of 
Jamison with liquidity with respect to shares of Class A common stock of the Company received in exchange for Class B Units, and the TRA of the Company, which entitles 
the Principals of Jamison to share in a portion of the tax benefit received by the Company upon the exchange of Class B Units for Class A common stock of the Company.

The Asset Purchase Agreement includes customary representations, warranties and covenants.

The strategic acquisition of Jamison, a long-standing and highly regarded investment boutique, strengthens the Company’s presence in the greater New York market and the 
Company obtains investment managers that have significant experience and knowledge of the industry.  Jamison’s clients will gain access to the Company’s complete 
investment management, wealth planning and reporting capabilities, including proprietary value equity and fixed income disciplines and alternative investment advisory 
services.

The Company believes the recorded goodwill is supported by the anticipated revenues and expected synergies of integrating the operations of Jamison into the Company.  The 
goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Fair value adjustments to contingent purchase price consideration of $0, $70 and $214 were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, 
and are included in general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for each of the years then ended. The Company has a liability of $0 and 
$160 for contingent consideration related to Jamison included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition as of December 
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company made contingent purchase price payments to Jamison of $160 and $328, 
respectively.
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4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Investments include $1,588 and $914 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, representing the Company’s equity method investments in affiliated investment funds 
which have been established and managed by the Company and its affiliates. The Company’s financial interest in these funds can range up to 2%. Despite the Company’s 
insignificant financial interest, the Company exercises significant influence over these funds as the Company typically serves as the general partner, managing member or 
equivalent for these funds. During 2007, the Silvercrest Funds granted rights to the unaffiliated investors in each respective fund to provide that a simple majority of the fund’s 
unaffiliated investors will have the right, without cause, to remove the general partner or equivalent of that fund or to accelerate the liquidation date of that fund in accordance 
with certain procedures. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company determined that none of the Silvercrest Funds were required to be consolidated. The Company’s 
involvement with these entities began on the dates that they were formed, which range from July 2003 to July 2014. 

Fair Value Measurements 

GAAP establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework which prioritizes and ranks the level of market price observability used in measuring investments at fair value. Market 
price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of investment, the characteristics specific to the investment and the state of the marketplace including 
the existence and transparency of transactions between market participants. Investments with readily available active quoted prices or for which fair value can be measured 
from actively quoted prices in an orderly market generally will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair 
value. 

•Level I: Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date. The type of investments in Level I include listed equities and 
listed derivatives. 

•Level II: Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is 
determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies. Investments which are generally included in Level II include corporate bonds and loans, less 
liquid and restricted equity securities, certain over-the counter derivatives, and certain fund of hedge funds investments in which the Company has the ability to redeem 
its investment at net asset value at, or within three months of, the reporting date. 

•Level III: Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and includes situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the investment. The inputs into the 
determination of fair value require significant management judgment or estimation. 

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the determination of which category within the 
fair value hierarchy is appropriate for any given investment is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company’s assessment 
of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the investment. 

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company did not have any financial assets or liabilities that are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis, with the exception of the 
contingent consideration related to the acquisition earnouts.

Contingent Consideration

For business acquisitions, the Company recognizes the fair value of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets, and estimated contingent consideration at the acquisition 
date as part of purchase price. This fair value measurement is based on unobservable (Level 3) inputs.

The following table represents changes in the fair value of estimated contingent consideration for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2021: 
 

Balance at January 1, 2020  $ 15,921  
Additions to estimated contingent consideration   —  
Payments of contingent consideration   (741 )
Non-cash changes in fair value of estimated contingent consideration   1,222  
Balance at December 31, 2020   16,402  
Additions to estimated contingent consideration   —  
Payments of contingent consideration   (3,744 )
Non-cash changes in fair value of estimated contingent consideration   5,305  
Balance at December 31, 2021  $ 17,963  
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Estimated contingent consideration is included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.  Payments of contingent 
consideration are included in earn-outs paid related to acquisitions completed on or after January 1, 2009 in financing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

In determining fair value of the estimated contingent consideration, the acquired business’ future performance is estimated using financial projections for the acquired 
business. These financial projections, as well as alternative scenarios of financial performance, are measured against the performance targets specified in each respective 
acquisition agreement. In addition, discount rates are established based on the cost of debt and the cost of equity. The Company uses the Monte Carlo Simulation Model to 
determine the fair value of the Company’s estimated contingent consideration.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s estimated contingent consideration are the forecasted growth rates over the 
measurement period and discount rates. Significant increases or decreases in the Company’s forecasted growth rates over the measurement period or discount rates would 
result in a higher or lower fair value measurement.

Inputs used in the fair value measurement of estimated contingent consideration at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized below:
 

Monte Carlo Simulation Model
 
 

December 31,
2021  

 
 

December 31,
2020     

Fair Value
Hierarchy   

Fair Value 
 
 $ 17,963   

 
 $ 16,402        Level 3   

Forecasted growth rate
 
  16.70 %    16.40 %         

Discount rate   10.74 %   11.70 %     
 
Please refer to Note 3. Acquisitions for more details on contingent consideration related to acquisition earnouts. 

At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, financial instruments that are not held at fair value are categorized in the table below: 
  

  
 
 December 31, 2021   

 
 December 31, 2020

 
 

 
     

  
 
 

Carrying
Amount   

 
 

Fair
Value   

 
 

Carrying
Amount   

 
 

Fair
Value

 
 

 
 

Fair Value
Hierarchy   

Financial Assets:
 
       

 
       

 
       

 
     

 
 

 
 

 
     

Cash and cash equivalents
 
 $ 85,744

 
 

 
 $ 85,744

 
 

 
 $ 62,498

 
 

 
 $ 62,498

 
 

 
 

 
 Level I (1) 

Investments  $ 1,588   $ 1,588   $ 914   $ 914    N/A (2)
                     

Financial liabilities:
 
      

 
      

 
      

 
    

 
 

 
 

 
     

Borrowings under credit facility
 
 $ 9,000

 
 

 
 $ 9,000

 
 

 
 $ 12,600

 
 

 
 $ 12,600

 
 

 
 

 
 Level II (3)

  
(1)Includes $1,398 and $1,398 of cash equivalents at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, that fall under Level I in the fair value hierarchy.

(2)Investments consist of the Company’s equity method investments in affiliated investment funds which have been established and managed by the Company and its affiliates.  Fair value of investments 
is based on the net asset value of the affiliated investment funds which is a practical expedient for fair value, which is not included in the fair value hierarchy under GAAP. 

(3)The carrying value of borrowings under the revolving credit agreement and the contingent consideration related to acquisition earnouts approximate fair value, which is determined based on interest 
rates currently available to the Company for similar debt and the weighted average cost of capital of the Company. 
 
5. RECEIVABLES, NET 

The following is a summary of receivables as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020: 
  

   
 

2021     2020  
 

Management and advisory fees receivable  
 

$ 3,379  
 

  $ 3,780  
 

Unbilled receivables  
 

  5,917  
 

    5,107  
 

Other receivables  
 

  2  
 

    2  
 

Receivables  
 

  9,298  
 

    8,889  
 

Allowance for doubtful receivables  
 

  (448 )     (548 )

Receivables, net  
 

$ 8,850  
 

  $ 8,341  
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6. FURNITURE, EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS, NET 

The following is a summary of furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements, net as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020: 
  

     2021     2020   

Leasehold improvements    $ 7,859      $ 7,936
 
 

Furniture and equipment      8,258        7,275
 
 

Artwork      505        502
 
 

Total cost      16,622        15,713
 
 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization      
(11,365

)     
(10,190

)

Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements, net    $ 5,257      $ 5,523
 
 

 
Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was $1,175, $1,117, and $978, respectively. 
 
During 2021, the Company wrote off leased assets with a cost of $120 and accumulated depreciation of $95.  During 2020, the Company wrote off leased assets with a cost of 
$209 and accumulated depreciation of $180.    
 
7. GOODWILL 

The following is a summary of the changes to the carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020: 
  

     2021    2020   

Beginning                 

Gross balance    $ 81,090
 
  $ 81,090    

Accumulated impairment losses      (17,415 )    (17,415 )

Net balance      63,675
 
    63,675    

Ending               
Gross balance

     81,090
 
    81,090    

Accumulated impairment losses      (17,415 )    (17,415 )

Net balance    $ 63,675
 
  $ 63,675    
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The following is a summary of intangible assets as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020: 
  

     
Customer

Relationships     

Other
Intangible

Assets     Total   
Cost                          

Balance, January 1, 2021    $ 44,060
 
   $ 2,461

 
   $ 46,521

 
 

Balance, December 31, 2021      44,060    2,461    46,521
 
 

Useful lives      10-20 years
 
     3-5 years

 
        

Accumulated amortization                          
Balance, January 1, 2021      (17,507 )     (2,461 )     (19,968 )
Amortization expense      (2,629 )   —    (2,629 )
Balance, December 31, 2021      (20,136 )   (2,461 )   (22,597 )

Net book value    $ 23,924
 
   $ —    $ 23,924

 
 

  
Cost                          

Balance, January 1, 2020    $ 44,060
 
   $ 2,467

 
   $ 46,527

 
 

Disposal   —    (6 )   (6 )

Balance, December 31, 2020      44,060    2,461    46,521
 
 

Useful lives      10-20 years
 
     3-5 years

 
        

Accumulated amortization                          
Balance, January 1, 2020      (14,833 )     (2,408 )     (17,241 )
Amortization expense      (2,674 )     (59 )     (2,733 )
Disposal   —    6    6  
Balance, December 31, 2020      (17,507 )     (2,461 )     (19,968 )

Net book value    $ 26,553
 
   $ —

 
   $ 26,553

 
 

Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $2,629, $2,733 and $2,107 for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

Amortization related to the Company’s finite life intangible assets is scheduled to be expensed over the next five years and thereafter as follows: 
  

2022
 
 $ 2,575

 
 

2023
 
   2,416

 
 

2024
 
   2,289

 
 

2025
 
   2,193

 
 

2026
 
   1,832   

Thereafter
 
   12,619   

Total
 
 $ 23,924

 
 

 
9. DEBT 

Credit Facility 

On June 24, 2013, the subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. entered into a $15.0 million credit facility with City National Bank. The subsidiaries of Silvercrest L.P. are the 
borrowers under such facility and Silvercrest L.P. guarantees the obligations of its subsidiaries under the credit facility. The credit facility is secured by certain assets of 
Silvercrest L.P. and its subsidiaries. The credit facility consisted of a $7.5 million delayed draw term loan that was scheduled to mature on June 24, 2025 and a $7.5 million 
revolving credit facility that was scheduled to mature on June 21, 2019.  On July 1, 2019, the credit facility was amended to increase the term loan by $18.0 million to $25.5 
million, extend the draw date on the term loan facility to July 1, 2024, extend the maturity date of the term loan to July 1, 2026 and increase the revolving credit facility by 
$2.5 million to $10.0 million.  On June 17, 2021, the revolving credit facility was further amended to extend the maturity date to June 18, 2022. The loan bears interest at 
either (a) the higher of the prime rate plus a margin of 0.25 percentage points and 2.5% or (b) the LIBOR rate plus 2.75 percentage points, at the borrowers’ option.  
Borrowings under the term loan on or prior to June 30, 2021 are payable in 20 equal quarterly installments.  Borrowings under the term loan after June 30, 2021 will be 
payable in equal quarterly installments through the maturity date. The credit facility contains restrictions on, among other things, (i) incurrence of additional debt, (ii) creating 
liens on certain assets, (iii) making certain 
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investments, (iv) consolidating, merging or otherwise disposing of substantially all of our assets, (v) the sale of certain assets, and (vi) entering into transactions with affiliates. 
In addition, the credit facility contains certain financial covenants including a test on discretionary assets under management, maximum debt to EBITDA and a fixed charge 
coverage ratio. The credit facility contains customary events of default, including the occurrence of a change in control which includes a person or group of persons acting 
together acquiring more than 30% of the total voting securities of Silvercrest. The Company was in compliance with the covenants under the credit facility as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020.  

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not have any outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit loan.  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the 
Company had $9.0 million and $12.6 million, respectively, outstanding under the term loan.  Accrued but unpaid interest was $0.3 million and $0 as of December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 

Interest expense, which also includes amortization of deferred financing fees, incurred on the revolving credit and term loans was $366, $548 and $460 for the years ended 
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019. 
 
10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Lease Commitments 

The Company leases office space pursuant to operating leases that are subject to specific escalation clauses. Rent expense charged to operations for the years ended December 
31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $6,454, $6,382, and $6,214, respectively. The Company received sub-lease income from subtenants during the years ended December 
31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 of $154, $154, and $106, respectively. Therefore, for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, net rent expense amounted to $6,300, 
$6,228, and $6,108, respectively, and is included in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.  

As security for performance under the leases, the Company is required to maintain letters of credit in favor of the landlord totaling $506 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.  
The letter of credit was collateralized by the Company’s revolving credit facility with City National Bank in 2021 and 2020.  Furthermore, the Company maintains an $80 
letter of credit in favor of its Boston landlord that is collateralized by the Company’s revolving credit facility with City National Bank.                 

In March 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement for additional office space in Richmond, VA.  The lease commenced on May 1, 2014 and had an original 
expiration date of July 31, 2019. The lease is subject to escalation clauses and provides for a rent-free period of three months.  Monthly rent expense is $5.  The Company paid 
a refundable security deposit of $3.  In September 2016, the Company entered into Lease Amendment Number One (“Amendment Number One”) to expand its space and 
extend its lease.  This expansion was to occur on or about October 1, 2017, and the lease was extended to November 30, 2024.  This was further amended on January 16, 2018 
(“Amendment Number Two”) to update the expansion date to January 12, 2018 and to extend the term of the lease to November 30, 2028.  The amended lease provides for a 
rent credit of $40.  Monthly rent expense under the amended lease is $10.

In June 2015, the Company entered into a lease agreement for office space in Charlottesville, VA.  The lease commenced on June 30, 2015 and expired, as amended, on June 
30, 2019.  On June 6, 2019, the Company extended this lease for three years, with the new term beginning on July 1, 2019 and expiring on June 30, 2022.  Monthly rent 
expense is $2.  The Company paid a refundable security deposit of $2.

In connection with the Jamison Acquisition, the Company assumed lease agreements for office space in Bedminster and Princeton, NJ.  The Bedminster lease, as extended, 
expires on March 31, 2022.  Monthly rent expense on the Bedminster lease is $11.  The Bedminster lease is subject to escalation clauses and provides for a rent-fee period of 
four months.  The Princeton lease, as extended, expired on April 30, 2016.  In October 2021, the Company extended its Bedminster lease.  The amended lease commences on 
April 1, 2022 and expires on July 31, 2027.  Monthly rent expense under this extension is $11.  The amended lease is subject to escalation clauses and provides for a rent-free 
period of four months.

In December 2015, the Company extended its lease related to its New York City office space.  The amended lease commenced on October 1, 2017 and expires on September 
30, 2028.  The lease is subject to escalation clauses, and provides for a rent-free period of twelve months and for tenant improvements of up to $2,080.  Monthly rent expense 
under this extension is $446.  

In January 2016, the Company entered into a lease agreement for office space in Princeton, NJ.  The lease commenced April 23, 2016 and expires on August 31, 2022.  This 
lease replaces the Princeton lease discussed above that expired on April 30, 2016.  Monthly rent expense on this lease is $6.  The lease is subject to escalation clauses, and 
provides for a rent-free period of five months.

With the Cappiccille Acquisition, the Company assumed a lease agreement for office space in Livingston, NJ.  The lease was month-to-month.  Monthly rent expense was $2.  
This lease was terminated in January 2019.
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In January 2018, the Company extended its lease related to its Boston, MA office space.  The amended lease commenced on January 1, 2018 and expires on April 30, 2023.  
The lease provides for a rent-free period of one month.  Monthly rent expense under this extension is $33.

With the Neosho Acquisition, the Company assumed a lease agreement for office space in La Jolla, CA.  The lease expired on January 31, 2020.  Monthly rent expense was 
$3.  On November 5, 2019, the Company entered into a lease agreement for office space in San Diego, CA.  The lease commenced on February 1, 2020 and expires on June 
30, 2025.  The lease is subject to escalation clauses and provides for a rent-free period of four months and for tenant improvements of up to $27.  Monthly rent expense under 
this lease is $12.

With the Cortina Acquisition, the Company assumed a lease agreement for office space in Milwaukee, WI.  The lease was extended on June 17, 2020 and expires on 
December 31, 2022.  Monthly rent expense is $12.

The components of lease expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
  Year ended December 31,   Year Ended December 31,  

  
 
 2021

 
 

 
 2020

 
 

Operating Lease Cost
 
 $ 6,133

 
 

 
 $ 6,123

 
 

Financing Lease Cost:         
     Amortization of ROU assets   119    118  
     Interest on lease liabilities   11    10  
     Total   130    128  

 
Future minimum lease payments and rentals under lease agreements for office space which expire through 2028 are as follows: 
 

     
Minimum Lease
Commitments      

Non-cancellable
Subleases   

 
 

Minimum Net
Rentals   

2022    $ 6,434       $ (155 )
 
 $ 6,279    

2023      6,068         (6 )
 
   6,062    

2024      6,150         —  
 
   6,150    

2025      6,078         —  
 
   6,078    

2026   5,999    —    5,999  
Thereafter   10,368    —    10,368  
   41,097    (161 )   40,936  
Weighted-average remaining lease term – operating leases (months)           77.2  
Weighted-average discount rate           4.2 %

 

The Company has finance leases for the following office equipment: (i) a three-year lease agreement for one copier totaling $11 with monthly minimum payments of $0.3, 
which began on March 1, 2018 and continued through January 31, 2021, (ii) a three-year lease agreement for one copier totaling $13 with monthly minimum payments of 
$0.4, which began on March 1, 2019 and continue through February 28, 2022, (iii) a 39-month lease agreement for one copier totaling $12 with monthly minimum lease 
payments of $0.4, which began on March 1, 2019 and continue through May 31, 2022, (iv) a lease agreement for one copier that was assumed as part of the Cortina 
Acquisition with monthly minimum lease payments of $1, which began on July 1, 2019 and continue through November 30, 2021, (v) a three year lease agreement for two 
copiers totaling $51 with monthly minimum lease payments of $1, which began on August 1, 2019 and continue through July 31, 2022, (vi) a five year lease agreement for a 
copier totaling $82 with monthly minimum lease payments of $1, which began on May 1, 2020 and continue through April 30, 2025, (vii) a three year lease agreement for a 
copier totaling $59 with minimum monthly lease payments of $2, which began on June 1, 2020 and continue through May 31, 2023, (viii) a three year lease agreement for two 
copiers totaling $43 with minimum monthly lease payments of $1, which began on August 20, 2020 and continue through August 19, 2023, (ix) a three year lease agreement 
for two copiers totaling $39 with minimum monthly lease payments of $1, which began on August 20, 2020 and continue through August 19, 2023, (x) a five year lease 
agreement for four copiers totaling $94 with minimum monthly lease payments of $2, which began on February 1, 2021 and continue through January 31, 2026 and (xi) a 
three year lease agreement for two copiers totaling $52 with minimum monthly lease payments of $1, which begin on July 1, 2021 and continue through June 30, 2024.  The 
aggregate principal balance of finance leases was $253 and $259 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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The assets relating to finance leases that are included in equipment as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
  

  
 
 

December 31, 
2021     

December 31, 
2020   

Finance lease assets included in furniture and equipment
 
 $ 434      $ 417    

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization
 
   (187 )     (163 )

 
 
 $ 247      $ 254    

  
Depreciation expense relating to finance lease assets was $119, $118 and $106 for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

During 2021, the Company wrote off leased assets with a cost of $120 and accumulated depreciation of $95.  During 2020, the Company wrote off leased assets with a cost of 
$209 and accumulated depreciation of $180.       

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases are as follows: 
  

  
 
 

Future Minimum Lease
Commitments   

2022
 
   108    

2023
 
   76    

2024   43  
2025   24  
2026   2  
Thereafter   —  

Total
 
 $ 253    

Weighted-average remaining lease term – finance leases (months)   33.1  

Weighted-average discount rate   3.4 %

 
 
11. EQUITY 

SLP historically made, and will continue to make, distributions of its net income to the holders of its partnership units for income tax purposes as required under the terms of 
its Second Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement and also made, and will continue to make, additional distributions of net income under the terms of its 
Second Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement.  Partnership distributions totaled $6,680, $6,297 and $7,698 for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 
2019, respectively.   Distributions are included in non-controlling interests in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.   

Pursuant to SLP’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement, as amended and restated, partner incentive allocations are treated as distributions of net 
income. The remaining net income or loss after partner incentive allocations was generally allocated to the partners based on their pro rata ownership. Net income allocation 
is subject to the recovery of the allocated losses of prior periods. Distributions of partner incentive allocations of net income for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 
2019 amounted to $27,819, $27,328 and $27,199, respectively. The distributions are included in non-controlling interests in the Consolidated Statements of Financial 
Condition and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019.  The Company treats SLP’s partner incentive allocations 
as compensation expense and accrues such amounts when earned.  During the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, SLP accrued partner incentive allocations of 
$34,781, $27,467 and $27,229, respectively.   
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Silvercrest—Equity 

Silvercrest has the following authorized and outstanding equity: 
  

  
 
 Shares at December 31, 2021

  
 
 Authorized   

 
 Outstanding   

 
 Voting Rights

 
 

Economic
Rights

Common shares
 
       

 
       

 
   

 
   

Class A, par value $0.01 per share  
 

  50,000,000  
 

 
 

  9,869,101  
 

 
 

1 vote per share (1), 
(2)

 
 

All (1), (2)

Class B, par value $0.01 per share  
 

  25,000,000
  

  4,593,687  
 

 
 

1 vote per share (3), 
(4)

 
 

None (3), (4)

Preferred shares  
 

       
 

       
 

   
 

  

Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share  
 

  10,000,000  
 

 
 

  —    
 

See footnote (5)
below

 
 

See footnote (5)
below

(1)Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Class A common stockholders have 100% of the rights of all classes of Silvercrest’s capital stock to receive dividends. 

(2)During 2021and 2020, Silvercrest granted 14,318 and 8,242 restricted stock units, respectively, which will vest and settle in the form of Class A shares of Silvercrest, of which 21,704 remain unvested 
as of December 31, 2021.

(3)Each share of Class B common stock is entitled to one vote per share. 

(4)Each Class B unit of SLP held by a principal is exchangeable for one share of the Company’s Class A common stock. The principals collectively hold 4,593,687 Class B units, which represents the 
right to receive their proportionate share of the distributions made by SLP and 170,854 restricted stock units which will vest and settle in the form of Class B units of SLP. The 170,854 restricted stock 
units which have been issued to our principals entitle the holders thereof to participate in distributions from SLP as if the underlying Class B units are outstanding and thus are taken into account to 
determine the economic interest of each holder of units in SLP. However, because the Class B units underlying the deferred equity units have not been issued and are not deemed outstanding, the holders 
of deferred equity units have no voting rights with respect to those Class B units. Silvercrest will not issue shares of Class B common stock in respect of deferred equity units of SLP until such time that 
the underlying Class B units are issued. 

(5)Silvercrest’s board of directors has the authority to issue preferred stock in one or more classes or series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and related restrictions, including dividend rights, 
dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any class or series, or the designation of the class or 
series, without the approval of its stockholders. 

Silvercrest is dependent on cash generated by SLP to fund any dividends. Generally, SLP will distribute its profits to all of its partners, including Silvercrest, based on the 
proportionate ownership each holds in SLP. Silvercrest will fund dividends to its stockholders from its proportionate share of those distributions after provision for income 
taxes and other obligations. 

During the year ended December 31, 2021, Silvercrest issued the following shares:

Class A Common Stock 
 

   Transaction    # of  
  Date    Shares  

Class A common stock outstanding - January 1, 2021      9,650,692  
Issuance of Class A common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  March 2021    7,605  
Issuance of Class A common stock upon vesting of restricted stock units  May 2021    856  
Issuance of Class A common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  May 2021    4,743  
Issuance of Class A common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  June 2021    5,864  
Issuance of Class A common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  August 2021    10,651  
Purchase of Class A common stock Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.  September 2021    (27,197 )
Issuance of Class A common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  November 2021    51,115  
Purchase of Class A common stock Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.  

November 2021
   

(1,192 )
Issuance of Class A common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  December 2021    170,658  
Purchase of Class A common stock Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.  December 2021    (4,694 )
Class A common shares outstanding - December 31, 2021      9,869,101  
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Class B Common Stock 
  

  Transaction    # of  
  Date    Shares  

Class B common stock outstanding - January 1, 2021      4,721,646  
Issuance of Class B common stock upon vesting of restricted stock units  January 2021    21,598  
Issuance of Class B common stock  January 2021    34,196  
Cancellation of Class B common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  March 2021     (7,605 )
Cancellation of Class B common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  May 2021    (4,743 )
Issuance of Class B common stock upon vesting of restricted stock units  May 2021    20,876  
Cancellation of Class B common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  June 2021    (5,864 )
Issuance of Class B common stock in connection with the Neosho Acquisition  June 2021    1,740  
Issuance of Class B common stock in connection with the Cortina Acquisition  July 2021    44,267  
Cancellation of Class B common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  August 2021    (10,651 )
Cancellation of Class B common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  November 2021    (51,115 )
Cancellation of Class B common stock upon conversion of Class B units to Class A common stock  December 2021    (170,658 )
Class B common shares outstanding - December 31, 2021      4,593,687  
 
In January 2021, the Company issued 21,598 shares of Class B common stock upon the vesting of restricted stock units.

In January 2021, the Company issued 34,196 shares of Class B common stock to certain principals in connection with their admission to SLP.

In March 2021, the Company redeemed 7,605 shares of Class B common stock from certain existing partners, in connection with the exchange of a like number of Class B 
units to Class A common stock pursuant to the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement.

In May 2021, the Company redeemed from certain existing partners 4,743 shares of Class B common stock in connection with the exchange of a like number of Class B units 
to Class A common stock pursuant to the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement.

In May 2021, the Company issued 856 shares of Class A common stock and 20,876 shares of Class B common stock upon the vesting of restricted stock units.

In June 2021, the Company redeemed from certain existing partners 5,864 shares of Class B common stock in connection with the exchange of a like number of Class B units 
to Class A common stock pursuant to the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement.

In June 2021, in connection with the Neosho Acquisition, the Company issued 1,740 shares of Class B common stock.

In July 2021, in connection with the Cortina Acquisition, the Company issued 44,267 shares of Class B common stock.

In August 2021, the Company redeemed from certain existing partners 10,651 shares of Class B common stock in connection with the exchange of a like number of Class B 
units to Class A common stock pursuant to the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement.

In November 2021, the Company redeemed from certain existing partners 51,115 shares of Class B common stock in connection with the exchange of a like number of Class 
B units to Class A common stock pursuant to the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement.

In December 2021, the Company redeemed from certain existing partners 170,658 shares of Class B common stock in connection with the exchange of a like number of Class 
B units to Class A common stock pursuant to the Resale and Registration Rights Agreement.

On July 29, 2021, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program authorizing the Company to repurchase up to $15,000 of the 
Company’s outstanding Class A common stock (the “Repurchase Program”). Repurchases under the Repurchase Program may be made using either cash on hand, borrowings 
under the Company’s existing credit facilities or other sources, or (a) one or more 10b5-1 share trading plans, to be established with one or more banks or brokers (the 
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“Trading Plans”), (b) pursuant to accelerated share repurchase programs with one or more investment banks or other financial intermediaries (the “ASR Programs”), or (c) 
through repurchases to be made outside of the Trading Plans or ASR Programs but in compliance with all applicable requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended (the “Exchange Act”), including the safe harbor provided by Exchange Act Rule 10b-18, and consummated during an open trading window under the Company’s 
insider trading policy. The program may be amended, suspended, or discontinued at any time and does not commit the Company to repurchase any shares of Common Stock.
  
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had purchased 33,083 shares of Class A common stock for an aggregate price of approximately $512.

Treasury stock is accounted for under the cost method and is included as a deduction from equity in the Company’s Equity section of the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Condition. Upon any subsequent retirement or resale, the treasury stock account is reduced by the cost of such stock.

The total number of shares of Class B common stock outstanding and held by employee-principals equals the number of Class B units those individuals hold in SLP. Shares of 
Silvercrest’s Class B common stock are issuable only in connection with the issuance of Class B units of SLP. When a vested or unvested Class B unit is issued by SLP, 
Silvercrest will issue to the holder one share of its Class B common stock in exchange for the payment of its par value, subject to the holder’s agreement to be bound by the 
terms of a stockholders’ agreement amongst the Class B stockholders of the Company. Each share of Silvercrest’s Class B common stock will be redeemed for its par value 
and cancelled by Silvercrest if the holder of the corresponding Class B unit exchanges or forfeits its Class B unit pursuant to the terms of the Second Amended and Restated 
Limited Partnership Agreement of SLP, the terms of the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan of Silvercrest, or otherwise. 
 
12. NOTES RECEIVABLE FROM PARTNERS 

Partner contributions to SLP are made in cash, in the form of five or six year interest-bearing promissory notes and/or in the form of nine year interest-bearing limited 
recourse promissory notes. Certain notes receivable are payable in annual installments and are collateralized by SLP’s units that are purchased with the note. Notes receivable 
from partners are reflected as a reduction of non-controlling interests in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. 

Notes receivable from partners are as follows: 
  

  
 
 

December 31,
2021   

 
 

December 31,
2020   

Beginning balance
 
 $ 353    

 
 $ 645    

New notes issued to partners   475    —  

Repayment of notes
 
   (228 )

 
   (300 )

Interest accrued and capitalized on notes receivable  
   6    

 
   8    

Ending balance
 
 $ 606    

 
 $ 353    

Full recourse notes receivable from partners as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are $606 and $353, respectively.  There were no limited recourse notes receivable from 
partners as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. There is no allowance for credit losses on notes receivable from partners as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During 2021 and 2020, the Company provided services to the following, which operate as feeder funds investing through master-feeder or mini-master feeder structures:

•the domesticated Silvercrest Hedged Equity Fund, L.P. (formed in 2011 and formerly Silvercrest Hedged Equity Fund),

•Silvercrest Hedged Equity Fund (International), Ltd. (which invests through Silvercrest Hedged Equity Fund, L.P.), 

•the domesticated Silvercrest Emerging Markets Fund, L.P. (formed in 2011 and formerly Silvercrest Emerging Markets Fund) (currently in liquidation),

•Silvercrest Market Neutral Fund (currently in liquidation), 

•Silvercrest Market Neutral Fund (International) (currently in liquidation), 

•Silvercrest Municipal Advantage Master Fund LLC,

•Silvercrest Municipal Advantage Portfolio A LLC, 
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•Silvercrest Municipal Advantage Portfolio P LLC,

•Silvercrest Municipal Advantage Portfolio S LLC (formed in 2015), 

•the Silvercrest Jefferson Fund, L.P. (formed in 2014), and 

•the Silvercrest Jefferson Fund, Ltd. (the Company took over as investment manager in 2014, formerly known as the Jefferson Global Growth Fund, Ltd.), which 
invests in Silvercrest Jefferson Master Fund, L.P. (formed in 2014).

The Company also provides services to the following, which operate and invest separately as stand-alone funds:

•the Silvercrest Global Opportunities Fund, L.P. (currently in liquidation), 

•Silvercrest Global Opportunities Fund (International), Ltd. (currently in liquidation), 

•Silvercrest Municipal Special Situations Fund LLC (merged into Silvercrest Municipal Advantage Portfolio S LLC in 2015), 

•Silvercrest Municipal Special Situations Fund II LLC (merged into Silvercrest Municipal Advantage Portfolio S LLC in 2015), 

•Silvercrest International Fund, L.P. (previously known as Silvercrest Global Fund, L.P.), 

•Silvercrest Special Situations Fund, L.P., and 

•Silvercrest Commodity Strategies Fund, L.P. (liquidated as of December 31, 2017).

Pursuant to agreements with the above entities, the Company provides investment advisory services and receives an annual management fee of 0% to 1.75% of assets under 
management and a performance fee or allocation of 0% to 10% of the above entities’ net appreciation over a high-water mark. 

For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 the Company earned management fee income from the funds listed above, which is included in “Management and 
advisory fees” in the Consolidated Statement of Operations, of $4,711, $4,633, and $5,104, respectively, and performance fees and allocations of $1,407, $898, and $1,774, 
respectively, which is included in equity income from investments in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company was owed 
$428 and $1,018, respectively, from its various funds, which is included in the Due from Silvercrest Funds on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. 

For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company earned advisory fees of $1,706, $1,348 and $1,470, respectively, from assets managed on behalf of 
certain of its partners. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company is owed approximately $8 and $10, respectively, from certain of its partners, which is included in 
receivables, net on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. 
 
14. INCOME TAXES  
  

  
 
 Year Ended December 31,   

  
 
 2021     2020     2019   

Current Provision:
 
                       

Federal
 
 $ 3,417

 
   $ 1,309

 
   $ 1,225  

State and local
 
   2,605

 
     1,856

 
     2,378

 
 

Total Current Provision
 
   6,022

 
     3,165

 
     3,603

 
 

Deferred Provision:
 
                    

Federal
 
   611      1,513      1,014  

State and local
 
   290       716       561  

Total Deferred Provision
 
   901

 
     2,229

 
     1,575  

Total Provision for Income Taxes
 
 $ 6,923

 
   $ 5,394

 
   $ 5,178

 
 

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their bases for 
income tax purposes.  

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had a net deferred tax asset of $10,702 and $11,305, respectively.  
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A summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities as follows: 
  

  
 
 As of December 31,

 
 

  
 
 2021   

 
 2020

 
 

Deferred tax assets
 
       

 
     

 
 

Intangible assets  $ 12,660   $ 13,032  
Deferred leases   443    809  

Total deferred tax assets
 
 $ 13,103

 
 

 
 $ 13,841

 
 

Deferred tax liabilities
 
      

 
    

 
 

Intangible assets
 
 $ 142

 
 

 
 $ 201

 
 

Right of use assets   357    674  
Investment on underlying SLP partnership   1,863    1,634  
Other   39    27  

Total deferred tax liabilities
 
 $ 2,401

 
 

 
 $ 2,536

 
 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)
 
 $ 10,702  

 
 $ 11,305  

The following table reconciles the provision for income taxes to the U.S. Federal statutory tax rate: 
  

  
 
 Year Ended December 31,   

  
 
 2021     2020     2019   

Statutory U.S. federal income tax rate
 
   21.00  %     21.00  %     21.00  % 

Income passed through to Partners
 
   (7.05 )%     (7.10 )%     (7.78 )% 

State and local income taxes
 
   7.56  %     9.32  %     12.01  % 

Permanent items   (0.03 )%   (0.13 )%   (0.44 )%

Other
 
   0.24  %     0.49  %     0.36  % 

Effective income tax rate
 
   21.72  %     23.58  %     25.15  % 

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had net tax receivables of $641 which consisted of net federal and state and local tax receivables of ($45) and $686, respectively.  As 
of December 31, 2020, the Company had net tax receivables of $1,653 which consisted of net federal and state and local tax receivables of $949 and $704, respectively.    

Of the total net deferred taxes at December 31, 2021 and 2020, $31 and $30, respectively, of the net deferred tax liabilities relate to non-controlling interests. These amounts 
are included in deferred tax and other liabilities on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, respectively.  

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by federal, state, and local tax regulators. As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s U.S. federal 
income tax returns for the years 2018 through 2021 are open under the normal three-year statute of limitations and therefore subject to examination. 

The guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and 
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. For those benefits to be recognized, a tax position must be more likely than not to be sustained 
upon examination by taxing authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate 
settlement. The Company does not believe that it has any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly 
increase or decrease within the next twelve months.  Furthermore, the Company does not have any material uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
 
15. REDEEMABLE PARTNERSHIP UNITS 

If a principal of SLP is terminated for cause, SLP would have the right to redeem all of the vested Class B units collectively held by the principal and his or her permitted 
transferees for a purchase price equal to the lesser of (i) the aggregate capital account balance in SLP of the principal and his or her permitted transferees and (ii) the purchase 
price paid by the terminated principal to first acquire the Class B units.
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16. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION 

Restricted Stock Units and Stock Options

On November 2, 2012, the Company’s board of directors adopted the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. 

A total of 1,687,500 shares were originally reserved and available for issuance under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 192,689 and 
345,428 shares, respectively, were available for grant. The equity interests may be issued in the form of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock and/or Class B units 
of SLP. (All references to units or interests of SLP refer to Class B units of SLP and accompanying shares of Class B common stock of Silvercrest.) 

The purposes of the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan are to (i) align the long-term financial interests of our employees, directors, consultants and advisers with those of our 
stockholders; (ii) attract and retain those individuals by providing compensation opportunities that are consistent with our compensation philosophy; and (iii) provide 
incentives to those individuals who contribute significantly to our long-term performance and growth. To accomplish these purposes, the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan provides 
for the grant of units of SLP. The 2012 Equity Incentive Plan also provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights, or SARs, restricted stock awards, 
restricted stock units, performance-based stock awards and other stock-based awards (collectively, stock awards) based on our Class A common stock. Awards may be 
granted to employees, including officers, members, limited partners or partners who are engaged in the business of one or more of our subsidiaries, as well as non-employee 
directors and consultants. 

The Compensation Committee may impose vesting conditions and awards may be forfeited if the vesting conditions are not met. During the period that any vesting 
restrictions apply, unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee, the recipient of awards that vest in the form of units of SLP will be eligible to participate in 
distributions of income from SLP. In addition, before the vesting conditions have been satisfied, the transferability of such units is generally prohibited and such units will not 
be eligible to be exchanged for cash or shares of our Class A common stock.

In May 2016, the Company granted 3,791 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $13.19 per share to existing Class B unit holders.  These RSUs will 
vest and settle in the form of Class B units of SLP.  Twenty-five percent of the RSUs granted vest and settle on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the 
grant date.  

In May 2016, the Company granted 3,000 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $13.19 per share to certain members of the Board of Directors.  These 
RSUs will vest and settle in the form of Class A shares of Silvercrest.  One hundred percent of the RSUs granted vest and settle on the first anniversary of the grant date.

In May 2016, the Company granted 7,582 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $13.19 per share to an employee.  These RSUs will vest and settle in 
the form of Class A shares of Silvercrest.  Twenty-five percent of the RSUs granted vest and settle on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.

In October 2018, the Company granted 105,398 non-qualified stock options (“NQOs”) under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to an existing Class B unit holder.  The fair value 
of the NQOs have been derived using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:  Strike price of $13.97, Risk Free rate of 2.94% (5-year treasury rate), 
expiration of 5 years and volatility of 32.7%.  Additionally, the calculation of the compensation expense assumes a forfeiture rate of 1.0%, based on historical experience.  
These NQOs will vest and settle in the form of Class B units of SLP.  One third of the NQOs will vest and settle on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant 
date.

In May 2019, the Company granted 60,742 non-qualified stock options (“NQOs”) under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to an existing Class B unit holder.  The fair value of 
the NQOs has been derived using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:  Strike price of $14.54, Risk Free rate of 2.32% (5-year treasury rate), expiration 
of 5 years and volatility of 34.2%.  Additionally, the calculation of the compensation expense assumes a forfeiture rate of 1.0%, based on historical experience.  These NQOs 
will vest and become exercisable into of Class B units of SLP.  One third of the NQOs will vest and become exercisable on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of 
the grant date.

In May 2019, the Company granted 34,388 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $14.54 per share to an existing Class B unit holder.  These RSUs will 
vest and settle in the form of Class B shares of SLP.  Twenty-five percent of the RSUs granted vest and settle on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the 
grant date.

In March 2020, the Company granted 8,242 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $11.83 per share to a Board member.  These RSUs will vest and 
settle in the form of Class A shares of Silvercrest.  All of the RSUs granted vest on the third anniversary of the grant date.

In May 2020, the Company granted 86,764 NQOs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan to an existing Class B unit holder.  The fair value of the NQOs has been derived using 
the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:  Strike price of $10.18, Risk 
 



 

Free rate of 0.64% (10-year treasury rate), expiration of 10 years and volatility of 48.0%.  Additionally, the calculation of the compensation expense assumes a forfeiture rate 
of 1.0%, based on historical experience.  These NQOs will vest and become exercisable into of Class B units of SLP.  One-third of the NQOs will vest and become exercisable 
on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

In May 2020, the Company granted 49,116 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $10.11 per share to an existing Class B unit holder.  These RSUs will 
vest and settle in the form of Class B shares of SLP.  Twenty-five percent of the RSUs granted vest and settle on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the 
grant date.

In January 2021, the Company granted 21,598 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $13.89 per share to existing Class B unit holders.  These RSUs 
vested and settled immediately in the form of Class B shares of SLP. 

In May 2021, the Company granted 116,823 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $13.91 per share to existing Class B unit holders.  These RSUs will 
vest and settle in the form of Class B shares of SLP.  Twenty-five percent of the RSUs granted vest and settle on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the 
grant date. 

In May 2021, the Company granted 856 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $14.61 per share to an existing Class A unit holder.  These RSUs vested 
and settled immediately in the form of Class A shares of SLP.

In May 2021, the Company granted 11,635 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $14.61 per share to existing Class A unit holders.  These RSUs will 
vest and settle in the form of Class A shares of SLP.  One third of the RSUs granted vest and settle on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

In August 2021, the Company granted 1,827 RSUs under the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan at a fair value of $15.96 per share to an existing Class A unit holder.  These RSUs 
will vest and settle in the form of Class A shares of SLP. The RSUs vest and settle on the third anniversary of the grant date.

A summary of the NQO grants by the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is presented below:
 

  
 
 

Non-Qualified Options
Granted

 

  
 
 Units   Fair Value per unit

 

Total granted at January 1, 2020   166,140  $ 13.97 – 14.54  
Granted in May 2020   86,764   10.18  
Total granted at December 31, 2020   252,904  $ 10.18 – 14.54  

Total granted at December 31, 2021   252,904  $ 10.18 – 14.54  
 
A summary of the RSU grants by the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is presented below: 
  

  
 
 

Restricted Stock Units
Granted

 

  
 
 Units   Fair Value per unit

 

Total granted at January 1, 2020   37,234  $ 13.19 – 14.54  
Granted in March 2020   8,242   11.83  
Granted in May 2020   49,116   10.18  
Vested in May 2020   (11,442 )  (13.19 – 14.54 )
Total granted at December 31, 2020   83,150  $ 10.18 – 14.54  
Granted in  January 2021   21,598   13.89  
Vested in January 2021   (21,598 )  (13.89 )
Granted in  May 2021   129,314   13.91 – 14.61  
Vested in May 2021   (21,732 )  (10.18 – 14.61 )
Granted in  August 2021   1,827   15.96  
Total granted at December 31, 2021   192,559  $ 10.18 – 15.96  

 
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded compensation expense related to such RSUs and NQOs of $1,426 and $659, respectively, as part of 
total compensation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years then ended.  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there was $2,047 and $1,342, 
respectively, of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested awards. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the unrecognized compensation expense related to 
unvested awards is expected to be recognized over a period of 1.22 and 1.44 years, respectively.
 



 

17. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 

SAMG LLC has a defined contribution 401(k) savings plan (the “Plan”) for all eligible employees who meet the minimum age and service requirements as defined in the 
Plan. The Plan is designed to be a qualified plan under sections 401(a) and 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. For employees who qualify under the terms of the Plan, on an 
annual basis Silvercrest matches dollar for dollar an employee’s contributions up to the first 4% of compensation. For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, 
Silvercrest made matching contributions of $106, $160 and $87, respectively, for the benefit of employees. 

18. SOFT DOLLAR ARRANGEMENTS 
The Company obtains research and other services through “soft dollar” arrangements. The Company receives credits from broker-dealers whereby technology-based research, 
market quotation and/or market survey services are effectively paid for in whole or in part by “soft dollar” brokerage arrangements. Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, provides a “safe harbor” to an investment adviser against claims that it breached its fiduciary duty under state or federal law (including ERISA) 
solely because the adviser caused its clients’ accounts to pay more than the lowest available commission for executing a securities trade in return for brokerage and research 
services. To rely on the safe harbor offered by Section 28(e), (i) the Company must make a good-faith determination that the amount of commissions is reasonable in relation 
to the value of the brokerage and research services being received and (ii) the brokerage and research services must provide lawful and appropriate assistance to the Company 
in carrying out its investment decision-making responsibilities. If the use of soft dollars is limited or prohibited in the future by regulation, the Company may have to bear the 
costs of such research and other services. For the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Company utilized “soft dollar” credits of $697, $824 and $997, 
respectively. 

19. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
  

  
 
 2021

 
 

  
 
 First Quarter   

 
 Second Quarter

 
 

 
 Third Quarter

 
 

 
 Fourth Quarter

 
 

Revenue
 
 $ 31,237  

 
 $ 33,101

 
 

 
 $ 33,461

 
 

 
 $ 33,804

 
 

Income before other income (expense), net
 
 $ 5,688  

 
 $ 7,342

 
 

 
 $ 8,181

 
 

 
 $ 9,310

 
 

Net income
 
 $ 4,335  

 
 $ 5,661

 
 

 
 $ 6,354

 
 

 
 $ 8,596

 
 

Net income attributable to Silvercrest
 
 $ 2,552  

 
 $ 3,335

 
 

 
 $ 3,723

 
 

 
 $ 5,083

 
 

Net income per share/unit - basic
 
 $ 0.26  

 
 $ 0.35

 
 

 
 $ 0.38

 
 

 
 $ 0.53

 
 

Net income per share/unit - diluted  $ 0.26   $ 0.35   $ 0.38
 
 

 
 $ 0.53  

Weighted average shares/units outstanding - basic
 
   9,651,765  

 
   9,662,809

 
 

 
   9,670,054

 
 

 
   9,709,169

 
 

Weighted average shares/units outstanding - diluted
 
   9,660,007  

 
   9,678,466

 
 

 
   9,691,103

 
 

 
   9,730,873

 
 

  
  2020  

  
 
 First Quarter   

 
 Second Quarter

 
 

 
 Third Quarter

 
 

 
 Fourth Quarter

 
 

Revenue
 
 $ 28,365

 
 

 
 $ 24,021

 
 

 
 $ 27,182

 
 

 
 $ 28,415

 
 

Income before other income (expense), net
 
 $ 12,614  

 
 
 $ 1,357

 
 

 
 $ 4,949

 
 

 
 $ 3,361

 
 

Net income
 
 $ 9,690

 
 

 
 $ 782

 
 

 
 $ 3,480

 
 

 
 $ 3,526

 
 

Net income attributable to Silvercrest  $ 5,532   
 
 $ 490

 
 

 
 $ 2,059

 
 

 
 $ 1,879  

Net income per share/unit - basic
 
 $ 0.59   

 
 $ 0.05

 
 

 
 $ 0.21

 
 

 
 $ 0.20  

Net income per share/unit – diluted  $ 0.59   $ 0.05   $ 0.21
 
 

 
 $ 0.20  

Weighted average shares/units outstanding - basic
 
   9,391,367   

 
   9,511,767

 
 

 
   9,532,362

 
 

 
   9,576,169

 
 

Weighted average shares/units outstanding - diluted

 
   

9,396,072
  

 
   

9,520,655

 
 

 
   

9,540,604

 
 

 
   

9,584,411

 
 

***** 
 





  
Exhibit 21.1

  
Subsidiaries of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.

  
Subsidiary Organization and Jurisdiction
Silvercrest L.P. Delaware Limited Partnership
Silvercrest Investors LLC Delaware Limited Liability Company
Silvercrest Investors II LLC Delaware Limited Liability Company
Silvercrest Investors III LLC Delaware Limited Liability Company
Silvercrest Asset Management Group LLC Delaware Limited Liability Company
Silvercrest Financial Services Inc. New York Corporation
MW Commodity Advisors, LLC Delaware Limited Liability Company
 

 





 
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-190342 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333-197047 on Form S-3 of our reports 
dated March 2, 2022, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) and the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

  
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
 
New York, New York
March 2, 2022
 

 
 





  
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard R. Hough III, certify that:

1.I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of 
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the consolidated 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which 
this report is being prepared;

(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles;

(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure 
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and

5.The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and 
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting.

 
/s/ Richard R. Hough III
Richard R. Hough III
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 2, 2022

 





  
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Scott A. Gerard, certify that:

1.I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of 
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the consolidated financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the consolidated 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which 
this report is being prepared;

(b)Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles;

(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure 
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and

5.The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and 
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting.

 
/s/ Scott A. Gerard
Scott A. Gerard
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: March 2, 2022

 





 
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard R. Hough III, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, pursuant 
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

•The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2021 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
“Form 10-K”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

•The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

/s/ Richard R. Hough III
Richard R. Hough III
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 2, 2022
 





 
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Scott A. Gerard, the Chief Financial Officer of Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

•The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2021 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
“Form 10-K”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

•The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 

/s/ Scott A. Gerard
Scott A. Gerard
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: March 2, 2022
 




